
 

Meeting Notice 

 
Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Vice Mayor Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Trish Spencer 
 
City of Albany 
Vice Mayor Peter Maass 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor David Haubert 
 
City of Emeryville 
Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor Bill Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Mayor Barbara Halliday 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Councilmember Dan Kalb 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor Margaret Fujioka 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Mayor Pauline Russo Cutter 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 

Alameda County  
Transportation Commission 
Thursday, April 23, 2015, 2:00 p.m. 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA 94607 

Mission Statement 
The mission of the Alameda County Transportation Commission  
(Alameda CTC) is to plan, fund, and deliver transportation programs and 
projects that expand access and improve mobility to foster a vibrant and 
livable Alameda County. 

Public Comments 
Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. Items not on the agenda are 
covered during the Public Comment section of the meeting, and items 
specific to an agenda item are covered during that agenda item discussion.  
If you wish to make a comment, fill out a speaker card, hand it to the clerk of 
the Commission, and wait until the chair calls your name. When you are 
summoned, come to the microphone and give your name and comment. 

Recording of Public Meetings 
The executive director or designee may designate one or more locations from 
which members of the public may broadcast, photograph, video record, or 
tape record open and public meetings without causing a distraction. If the 
Commission or any committee reasonably finds that noise, illumination, or 
obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt the 
proceedings, these activities must be discontinued or restricted as determined 
by the Commission or such committee (CA Government Code Sections 
54953.5-54953.6). 

Reminder 
Please turn off your cell phones during the meeting. Please do not wear 
scented products so individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend  
the meeting. 

Glossary of Acronyms 

A glossary that includes frequently used acronyms is available on the  
Alameda CTC website at www.AlamedaCTC.org/app_pages/view/8081. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8081


 

 

Location Map 

Alameda CTC 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA  94607 

Alameda CTC is accessible by multiple 
transportation modes. The office is 
conveniently located near the 12th Street/City 
Center BART station and many AC Transit bus 
lines. Bicycle parking is available on the street 
and in the BART station as well as in electronic 
lockers at 14th Street and Broadway near 
Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires purchase of key 
card from bikelink.org). 

Garage parking is located beneath City Center, accessible via entrances on 14th Street between  
1300 Clay Street and 505 14th Street buildings, or via 11th Street just past Clay Street.  
To plan your trip to Alameda CTC visit www.511.org. 

 
Accessibility 

Public meetings at Alameda CTC are wheelchair accessible under the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. Guide and assistance dogs are welcome. Call 510-893-3347 (Voice) or 510-834-6754 (TTD)  
five days in advance to request a sign-language interpreter. 

     
 
Meeting Schedule 

The Alameda CTC meeting calendar lists all public meetings and is available at 
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/upcoming/now. 
 
Paperless Policy 

On March 28, 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the implementation of paperless 
meeting packet distribution. Hard copies are available by request only. Agendas and all 
accompanying staff reports are available electronically on the Alameda CTC website at 
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now. 
 
Connect with Alameda CTC 

www.AlamedaCTC.org facebook.com/AlamedaCTC 
 @AlamedaCTC 
 youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC 

http://www.511.org/
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/upcoming/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/month/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AlamedaCTC
https://twitter.com/AlamedaCTC
http://www.youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC


 
 
 

 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
 Thursday, April 23, 2015, 2 p.m. 

 

 
Chair: Supervisor Scott Haggerty,  
Alameda County, District 1 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan,  
City of Oakland 

Executive Director: Arthur L. Dao 

Clerk: Vanessa Lee 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 

3. Public Comment 

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report    

5. Executive Director Report   

6. Approval of Consent Calendar 
On April 13, 2015 Alameda CTC standing committees approved all action 
items on the consent calendar, except Item 6.1. 

Page  A/I* 

6.1. Approval of March 26, 2015 meeting minutes 1 A 
Recommendation: Approve the March 26, 2015 meeting minutes.   

6.2. I-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lanes (724.4/724.5): 
Reimbursable Service Agreement with California Highway Patrol (CHP) 

5 A 

Recommendation: Approve and authorize the Executive Director to 
execute a Reimbursable Services Contract for Violation Enforcement of 
the 580 Express Lanes with the CHP (Agreement No. 10R390000-3). 

  

6.3. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 
720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

7 I 

6.4. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of Alameda CTC’s 
Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan 
Amendments 

29 I 

6.5. California Transportation Commission March 2015 Meeting Summary 33 I 
6.6. Measure BB Master Programs Funding Agreements with Direct Local 

Distribution Funds Recipients 
39 A 

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute Master 
Programs Funding Agreements with Measure BB Direct Local Distribution 
Funds recipients. 
 

  

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16062/6.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16063/6.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16063/6.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16064/6.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16064/6.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16065/6.4_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16065/6.4_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16065/6.4_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16066/6.5_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16067/6.6_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16067/6.6_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

6.7. Measure BB Funding Agreements for Measure BB Allocations Approved 
in March 2015 

43 A 

Recommendation:  Authorize the Executive Director to execute 
Measure BB Funding Agreements with Recipient Agencies related to 
allocations approved in March 2015. 

  

6.8. Measure BB Affordable Student Transit Pass Program  47 A 
Recommendation: Authorize the release of a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) and negotiation with the top ranked firm for program 
development of a pilot Affordable Student Transit Pass Program in 
Alameda County. 

  

6.9. Alameda CTC Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) FY 2015-16 
Program Guidelines 

55 A 

Recommendation: Approve the FY 2015-16 Alameda CTC 
Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Guidelines. 

  

6.10. I-580 Corridor Projects: Cooperative Agreement Amendments with 
Caltrans for Additional Funding for Express Lane Implementation  

85 A 

Recommendation: Approve the Cooperative Agreement 
Amendments with Caltrans (04-2440-3 and 04-2396-4) for additional 
funding necessary to support Express Lane implementation. 

  

6.11. I-680 Northbound Express Lane Project (PN 721.0): 2000 Measure B 
Funding Allocation, Cooperative Agreement, Contract Amendment 
and two (2) Request for Proposal (RFP) Actions  

99 A 

Recommendation: Approve the necessary actions to support delivery 
of the I-680 Northbound Express Lane Project. 

  

6.12. Webster Street SMART Corridor Project (PN 740.0): Construction 
Contract Acceptance (Alameda CTC Resolution 15-016) 

105 A 

Recommendation: Adopt Alameda CTC Resolution 15-016 which 
authorizes acceptance of the completed construction contract with 
Amland Corporation for the Webster Street SMART Corridor Project. 

  

6.13. Administrative Amendments to Various Project Agreements 109 A 
Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute 
administrative amendments to various project agreements in support 
of the Alameda CTC’s Capital Projects and Program delivery 
commitments. 

  

6.14. Contract Amendments to Administrative Professional Services Contracts 
with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc., GenSpring Family Offices, LLC, 
and Vavrinek, Trine, Day, & Co., LLP 

113 A 

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute 
contract amendments to three administrative professional services 
contracts with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc., GenSpring Family 
Offices, LLC, and Vavrinek, Trine, Day, & Co., LLP. 

  

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16068/6.7_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16068/6.7_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16069/6.8_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16070/6.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16070/6.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16071/6.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16071/6.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16073/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16073/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16073/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16074/6.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16074/6.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16076/6.13_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16077/6.14_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16077/6.14_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16077/6.14_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

6.15. Amendment to the Alameda CTC Health Reimbursement Arrangement 
(HRA) Plan for Retirees 

117 A 

Recommendation: Approve and adopt an Amendment to the 
Alameda CTC Health Reimbursement Arrangement Plan for retirees 

  

6.16. Community Advisory Appointment 137 A 
Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC Community Advisory 
Appointment.  

  

7.Community Advisory Committee Reports  
   (Time limit: 3 minutes per speaker) 

  

7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee - Midori Tabata, Chair 139 I 
7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee – James Paxson, Chair 147 I 
7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee – Sylvia Stadmire, Chair 149 I 

8. I-580 Express Lane Policy Committee Action Items 
On April 13, 2015, the I-580 Express Lane policy Committee approved the 
following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

8.1. I-580 Express Lanes: Outreach and Education Update  163 I 

9. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 
On April 13, 2015, the Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee approved 
the following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

9.1. Legislative Update 167 A/I 
Recommendation: Receive an update on state and federal legislative 
activities and approve legislative positions. 

  

10. Programs and Projects Committee Action Items 
On April 13, 2015, the Programs and Projects Committee approved the 
following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

10.1. Report on Coordination with the City of Oakland on its Prior Request for 
$39.2 Million of Measure BB Funds 

173 I 

11.  Member Reports   

12. Adjournment   

Next meeting: May 28, 2015 

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the Commission. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16078/6.15_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16078/6.15_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16079/6.16_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16080/7.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16081/7.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16082/7.3-Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16083/8.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16084/9.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16085/10.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16085/10.1_Combo.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 



 
 
 

 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
 Thursday, April 23, 2015, 2 p.m. 

 

 
Chair: Supervisor Scott Haggerty,  
Alameda County, District 1 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan,  
City of Oakland 

Executive Director: Arthur L. Dao 

Clerk: Vanessa Lee 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 

3. Public Comment 

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report    

5. Executive Director Report   

6. Approval of Consent Calendar 
On April 13, 2015 Alameda CTC standing committees approved all action 
items on the consent calendar, except Item 6.1. 

Page  A/I* 

6.1. Approval of March 26, 2015 meeting minutes 1 A 
Recommendation: Approve the March 26, 2015 meeting minutes.   

6.2. I-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lanes (724.4/724.5): 
Reimbursable Service Agreement with California Highway Patrol (CHP) 

5 A 

Recommendation: Approve and authorize the Executive Director to 
execute a Reimbursable Services Contract for Violation Enforcement of 
the 580 Express Lanes with the CHP (Agreement No. 10R390000-3). 

  

6.3. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 
720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

7 I 

6.4. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of Alameda CTC’s 
Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan 
Amendments 

29 I 

6.5. California Transportation Commission March 2015 Meeting Summary 33 I 
6.6. Measure BB Master Programs Funding Agreements with Direct Local 

Distribution Funds Recipients 
39 A 

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute Master 
Programs Funding Agreements with Measure BB Direct Local Distribution 
Funds recipients. 
 

  

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16062/6.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16063/6.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16063/6.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16064/6.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16064/6.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16065/6.4_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16065/6.4_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16065/6.4_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16066/6.5_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16067/6.6_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16067/6.6_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

6.7. Measure BB Funding Agreements for Measure BB Allocations Approved 
in March 2015 

43 A 

Recommendation:  Authorize the Executive Director to execute 
Measure BB Funding Agreements with Recipient Agencies related to 
allocations approved in March 2015. 

  

6.8. Measure BB Affordable Student Transit Pass Program  47 A 
Recommendation: Authorize the release of a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) and negotiation with the top ranked firm for program 
development of a pilot Affordable Student Transit Pass Program in 
Alameda County. 

  

6.9. Alameda CTC Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) FY 2015-16 
Program Guidelines 

55 A 

Recommendation: Approve the FY 2015-16 Alameda CTC 
Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Guidelines. 

  

6.10. I-580 Corridor Projects: Cooperative Agreement Amendments with 
Caltrans for Additional Funding for Express Lane Implementation  

85 A 

Recommendation: Approve the Cooperative Agreement 
Amendments with Caltrans (04-2440-3 and 04-2396-4) for additional 
funding necessary to support Express Lane implementation. 

  

6.11. I-680 Northbound Express Lane Project (PN 721.0): 2000 Measure B 
Funding Allocation, Cooperative Agreement, Contract Amendment 
and two (2) Request for Proposal (RFP) Actions  

99 A 

Recommendation: Approve the necessary actions to support delivery 
of the I-680 Northbound Express Lane Project. 

  

6.12. Webster Street SMART Corridor Project (PN 740.0): Construction 
Contract Acceptance (Alameda CTC Resolution 15-016) 

105 A 

Recommendation: Adopt Alameda CTC Resolution 15-016 which 
authorizes acceptance of the completed construction contract with 
Amland Corporation for the Webster Street SMART Corridor Project. 

  

6.13. Administrative Amendments to Various Project Agreements 109 A 
Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute 
administrative amendments to various project agreements in support 
of the Alameda CTC’s Capital Projects and Program delivery 
commitments. 

  

6.14. Contract Amendments to Administrative Professional Services Contracts 
with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc., GenSpring Family Offices, LLC, 
and Vavrinek, Trine, Day, & Co., LLP 

113 A 

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute 
contract amendments to three administrative professional services 
contracts with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc., GenSpring Family 
Offices, LLC, and Vavrinek, Trine, Day, & Co., LLP. 

  

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16068/6.7_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16068/6.7_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16069/6.8_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16070/6.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16070/6.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16071/6.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16071/6.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16073/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16073/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16073/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16074/6.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16074/6.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16076/6.13_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16077/6.14_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16077/6.14_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16077/6.14_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

6.15. Amendment to the Alameda CTC Health Reimbursement Arrangement 
(HRA) Plan for Retirees 

117 A 

Recommendation: Approve and adopt an Amendment to the 
Alameda CTC Health Reimbursement Arrangement Plan for retirees 

  

6.16. Community Advisory Appointment 137 A 
Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC Community Advisory 
Appointment.  

  

7.Community Advisory Committee Reports  
   (Time limit: 3 minutes per speaker) 

  

7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee - Midori Tabata, Chair 139 I 
7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee – James Paxson, Chair 147 I 
7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee – Sylvia Stadmire, Chair 149 I 

8. I-580 Express Lane Policy Committee Action Items 
On April 13, 2015, the I-580 Express Lane policy Committee approved the 
following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

8.1. I-580 Express Lanes: Outreach and Education Update  163 I 

9. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 
On April 13, 2015, the Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee approved 
the following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

9.1. Legislative Update 167 A/I 
Recommendation: Receive an update on state and federal legislative 
activities and approve legislative positions. 

  

10. Programs and Projects Committee Action Items 
On April 13, 2015, the Programs and Projects Committee approved the 
following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

10.1. Report on Coordination with the City of Oakland on its Prior Request for 
$39.2 Million of Measure BB Funds 

173 I 

11.  Member Reports   

12. Adjournment   

Next meeting: May 28, 2015 

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the Commission. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16078/6.15_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16078/6.15_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16079/6.16_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16080/7.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16081/7.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16082/7.3-Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16083/8.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16084/9.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16085/10.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16085/10.1_Combo.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 



 
 
 

 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, March 26, 2015, 2:00 p.m. 6.1 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 
A roll call was conducted. All members were present with the exception of Commissioner 
Chan, Comissioner Fujioka, Commissioner Miley and Commissioner Kaplan. 
 
Commissioner Narum was present as an alternate for Commissioner Thorne. 
Commissioner Biddle was present as an alternate for Commissioner Haubert. 
Commissioner Worthington was present as an alternate for Commissioner Capitelli. 
 
Subsequent to the roll call: 
Commissioner Kaplan and Commissioner Fujioka arrived during Item 3. Commissioner 
Campbell-Washington arrived as an alternate during Item 4.1. Commission Miley arrived 
prior to the vote on item 6.7 of the Consent Calendar.  

3. Public Comment 
There were no public comments.  

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report  
4.1. Recognition of Safe Routes to School Platinum Sneaker Award Recipient 
       Chair Haggerty presented the Platinum Sneaker Award to Oakland’s Westlake Middle  
        School and recognized Ms. Kelley Haskins as the Teacher Champion from Westlake  
        Middle School. 
 
4.2. Recognition of the Retirement of Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and   
       Projects 
       Chair Haggerty recognized Stewart Ng, upon his retirement and presented a Resolution  
       of Appreciation for his service to the Alameda CTC.  

5. Executive Director Report 
Art Dao stated that the Executive Directors report could be found in the Commissioners 
folders as well as on the Alameda CTC website. Art thanked the Chair and Vice Chair for 
their leadership and provided an update on agency activities.  

6. Approval of Consent Calendar 

6.1. Approval of February 26, 2015 meeting minutes 
6.2. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 

Page 1Page 1



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 
6.3. I-580 Express Lanes: Outreach and Education Update 
6.4. I-580 Express Lane Toll Evasion Violation Process 
6.5. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of Alameda CTC’s Review and 

Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments 
6.6. Countywide Transit Plan Preliminary Vision, Goals, and  

Performance Measures 
6.7. Countywide Goods Movement Plan Needs Assessment  
6.8. Alameda CTC’s Comprehensive Investment Plan FY 15/16 Measure BB 2-Year 

Allocation Plan 
6.9. Lifeline Cycle 4 Transportation Program 
6.10. Countywide Bicycle/Pedestrian Planning and Promotion Measure B Funding Request 
6.11. I-80 Gilman Interchange (PN 765.0): Preliminary Design and Environmental Studies 

(PAED) and Final Design Service Phases 
6.12. I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Project (PN 730.1): Contract Amendment to Professional 

Services Agreement No. A08-017.WMH with WMH Corporation  
6.13. FY2014-15 Mid-Year Budget Update 
6.14. Alameda CTC FY2014-15 Second Quarter Financial Report  

 
Item 6.7 was pulled of the Consent Calendar for further consideration. Commissioner 
Atkin wanted more information on increasing the rail capacity of the Martinez 
division through Emeryville. Art stated that the list in the staff report is for projects that 
staff will evaluate through a technical process and will be brought back to the 
commission before approval. Michael Fischer, from EMC Research stated that the 
issue was brought up and address by the technical committees as well as the PPLC 
and staff will work with the city of Emeryville staff on this item. 
Commissioner Kaplan moved to approve this item. Commissioner Harrison seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Item 6.8 was pulled off the Consent Calendar for further consideration. Commissioner 
Kaplan introduced Matt Nichols, from the City of Oakland, who made the following 
funding requests in the form of a letter from the City of Oakland: 1million allocation 
for Port of Oakland, $200,000 for Coliseum BART project, and 38million dollars 
commitment for the  Oakland Army Base project to be added to the 
Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP). 
 
Art informed the Commission that approval of the CIP item is intended to get the 
direct local distribution funds out to cities as soon as possible. He stated it is important 
to note that funds from Measure BB aren’t anticipated to come to the agency until 
late August and the Commission would need to see the entire program of projects 

Page 2Page 2



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

before making funding allocations to the city. 
  
Commissioner Cutter wanted more information on the impact of the City of 
Oakland’s request as it relates to other projects in the plan and/or any funding 
streams. Art stated that there is a process for project delivery under the CIP and 
recommended that staff work with the City of Oakland to make sure important 
projects are included while ensuring adherence to the process.  
 
Commissioner Valle asked for more information on the Coliseum BART project 
mentioned by the City of Oakland. Art stated that it is a transit orientated 
development project. 
 
There was significant discussion among the Commission regarding the funding and 
commitment requests made by the City of Oakland. A recommendation was made 
to take the City of Oakland’s letter with funding requests back to the technical 
committee for review and then to the full Commission for consideration at its next 
scheduled meeting. 
 
Commissioner Kaplan made a motion to approve Item 6.8 with the amended 
recommendation. Commissioner Halliday seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously (Carson absent) 
 
Commissioner Atkin moved to approve the remainder of the Consent Calendar. 
Commission Cutter seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
7.  Community Advisory Committee Reports 

7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) 
There was no one present from BPAC. 
   

7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 
James Paxson, Chair of CWC stated that the committee last met on March 9, 2015. He 
stated that the committee started working on the draft summary reports, formed an 
annual report subcommittee and he concluded by reviewing new members and 
vacancies on the committee.  
 

7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee (PAPCO) 
Sylvia Stadmire, Chair of PAPCO stated that the committee met on March 23, 2015. 
She stated that the committee reviewed gap grant progress reports and received a 
reported from AC Transit on the marketing mobility management project. She 
concluded by reviewing vacancies on the committee.  

Page 3Page 3



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

 

8. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 

8.1. Legislative Update 
Tess Lengyel recommended that the Commission receive an update on state and 
federal legislative activities and approve legislative positions. She focused her 
presentation on the state level by updating the Commission on the Governors budget 
and recommended positions on four pieces of legislations. I 
  
Tess recommended that the commission approve four positions: 
 
AB 464- Support position 
ACA 4- Support position Spencer voted no on this item   
SB 321- Support position  
AB 516- Support position  
 
Commissioner Halliday wanted to more information on the Speakers transportation 
plan and suggested that the Commission support the proposed bill. Tess stated that 
this bill isn’t in print and that once the bill is written staff will evaluate and provide a 
position.  
 
There was on public comment on this item by Dave Campbell. 
 
Commissioner Kaplan moved to approve the recommended positions. Commissioner 
Halliday seconded the motion. Commission Spencer voted to oppose support on bill 
ACA 4. The motion passed unanimously with Commissioner Spencers opposition on 
AVA 4.    
 

9. Member Reports  
There were no member reports.  

10. Adjournment 
The next meeing is: 

Date/Time:    April 23, 2015 @ 2:00 p.m. 
Location:       Alameda CTC Offices, 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607 

Attested by: 

 

____________________ 

Page 4Page 4



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.2_ 
I580EL_Draft_Toll_Violation_CHP_agreement\6.2_580ExpressLane_Contract_CHP_final.docx 

 

Memorandum 6.2 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lanes (724.4/724.5): 
Reimbursable Service Agreement with California Highway Patrol (CHP) 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve and authorize the Executive Director to execute a  
Reimbursable Services Contract for Violation Enforcement of the 580 
Express Lanes with the CHP (Agreement No. 10R390000-3) 

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV)/Express 
Lanes Project which is part of an overall 550-mile Bay Area express lane network that will 
expand commuter choices and maximize the efficiency of this highly congested I-580 
corridor by employing emerging technologies, such as real-time congestion pricing and 
automated toll violation enforcement.  The project will implement HOV/express lanes from 
Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road in the eastbound direction and from Greenville Road to 
San Ramon Road/Foothill Road in the westbound direction.   

Since the opening of the Express Lane facility on southbound I-680 in September 2010, the 
California Highway Patrol (CHP) has been providing patrol and enforcement services that 
support the safe and efficient operation of the I-680 Express Lane facility.   

Staff recommends approval of the violation and occupancy enforcement contract with CHP 
for enforcement services on I-580.  

Background 

The CHP has been providing traffic control and enforcement services to improve safety, 
deter toll evasion, and ensure proper use of the facility by the patrons on the I-680 
Southbound Express Lane. A similar approach is planned to be implemented on the I-580 
Express Lanes.  This agreement would ensure that CHP’s officers are routinely present in the 
corridor to patrol and provide the necessary enforcement of I-580 (westbound and 
eastbound) High Occupancy Toll (Express) lanes in Alameda County.  Officers will provide 
focused enforcement of toll and occupancy violations in addition to all other applicable 
vehicle code violations within the Express Lanes.    

Page 5Page 5Page 5



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.2_ 
I580EL_Draft_Toll_Violation_CHP_agreement\6.2_580ExpressLane_Contract_CHP_final.docx 

 

Fiscal Impact:  Approval of the requested action will encumber $400,000 of toll funds. 
Sufficient funds are available in project financial plans, and the necessary funds will be 
incorporated into the annual budget for fiscal year 2015-16. 

Staff Contact  

Arun Goel, Express Lane Operations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 6Page 6Page 6

mailto:agoel@alamedactc.org


 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.3_I580Corridor_Update\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 

  

Memorandum  6.3 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 
720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive a monthly status update on the I-580 Corridor High 
Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects. 

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV)/Express 
Lane Projects along the I-580 corridor in the Tri-Valley. The Eastbound I-580 Express Lane 
Project will convert the newly constructed eastbound HOV lane, from Hacienda Drive to 
Greenville Road, to a double express lane facility.  The I-580 Westbound Express Lane 
Project will convert the westbound HOV lane (currently under construction) to a single 
express lane facility from Greenville Road to San Ramon Road/Foothill Road.   

The environmental and civil design work for the express lanes is complete for both 
eastbound and westbound.   Civil construction is being implemented through multiple 
contract change orders (CCO’s) on the on-going HOV Lane construction contracts for 
constructing the necessary infrastructure, such as signing, sign gantries for dynamic 
messaging and toll reading, electrical conduit for connecting power and communication 
sources, and striping to accommodate the express lanes.  The final component of express 
lane implementation, system Integrator contract will install the required communication 
equipment, toll hardware and integrate the toll subsystems, utilizing emerging 
technologies/software development.  Coordination with regional agencies and California 
Toll Operators Committee is crucial for implementing express lanes on I-580.  The express 
lane facility is scheduled to open for public use in November 2015.   

For detailed information on project funding, schedule and status of each corridor project, 
including the Eastbound HOV Lane Project - Segment 3 Auxiliary Lanes, the Westbound 
HOV Lane Project (Segments 1 and 2), the Eastbound I-580 Express Lane Project, 
Westbound I-580 Express Lane Project and Toll System Integration activities, see 
Attachments A, B, C, D and E of this report. This item is for information only. 

 

 

 

Page 7Page 7Page 7



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.3_I580Corridor_Update\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 
 

Background 

The projects in the I-580 Corridor will provide increased capacity, safety and efficiency for 
commuters and freight along the primary corridor connecting the Bay Area with the 
Central Valley.  In its role as project sponsor, the Alameda CTC has been working in 
partnership with Caltrans, California Highway Patrol, the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC), Alameda County, and the cities of Livermore, Dublin, and Pleasanton 
to deliver the projects. 

The I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects will be completed with the construction of three final 
projects in the Livermore Valley (two westbound HOV segments and one eastbound 
auxiliary (AUX) lanes project).  All of these projects are currently in construction and are 
being administered by Caltrans. Construction activity began in March 2013 and will 
complete by late 2015 in parallel with completion of express lane infrastructure. 

For efficiency purposes, the I-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lane Projects have 
been combined into one construction project. All the contract change orders (CCO’s) for 
express lane-civil infrastructure construction have already been issued to the on-going 
construction contracts along I-580 (I-580 Westbound HOV, I-580 Eastbound Auxiliary Lane 
and Freeway Performance Project). The benefit of implementing CCO’s is to avoid 
working in the environmentally sensitive areas, minimize additional traffic disruptions to 
the traveling public, reduce or eliminate re-work and potentially finish construction 
sooner.  Specific items in CCO’s include: 

• Electrical Conduit – across and along I-580  

• Service and controller cabinets 

• Striping – stripe to final express lane configuration  

• Install K-rail along median at sign locations  

• Median concrete barrier 

• Fiber Optics Cable 

• Sign structures including tolling gantries, dynamic messaging signs, lighting 
standards and other sign structures. 

The system integration for express lane implementation is currently in the design phase.  To 
avoid schedule conflicts, the upcoming system installation activities have been 
coordinated with other on-going construction projects within the corridor.  Construction 
activities of express lane-system integration are expected to commence in April 2015 with 
electronic toll system, fully operational in November 2015. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. This is information only.  

Page 8Page 8Page 8



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.3_I580Corridor_Update\6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 
 

 

Attachments 

A.  I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 720.5) 

B. I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects Monthly Progress Report (PN 724.4/724.5) 

C.  I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 720.4) 

D.  I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 724.1) 

E.  I-580 Express Lanes System Integration Monthly Progress Report 

F.  I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects – Location Map 

G. I-580 Corridor Express Lane Projects – Location Map 

 

Staff Contact  

Stefan Garcia, Project Controls Team 

Kanda Raj, Project Controls Team 

  

Page 9Page 9Page 9

mailto:sgarcia@alamedactc.org
mailto:kraj@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 10Page 10Page 10



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.do

c 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project (PN 720.5) 

Monthly Progress Report 

March 2015 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The Eastbound I-580 HOV Lane Project is completing one final construction segment, 

Segment 3 Auxiliary (AUX) Lanes, between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road. The 

Project scope includes: 

 Construction of auxiliary lanes from Isabel Avenue to First Street; 

 Pavement width necessary for a double express (high occupancy toll lane 

facility); 

 Final lift of asphalt concrete (AC) pavement and striping for entire eastbound 

project limits from Hacienda Drive to Portola Avenue; 

 The soundwall that was deleted from the I-580/Isabel Avenue Interchange 

Project; and 

 The widening of two bridges at Arroyo Las Positas in the eastbound direction. 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS  

 

Traffic Handling & Night Work 

Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in 

rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no 

complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes, 

closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement 

rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include 

setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and 

striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement 

and overlay) and electrical work.  Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to 

perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge 

work is expected to occur during daytime hours. 

 

Construction Challenges 

Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the 

project within limited funding.  Challenges and managed risks for this project include: 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Installation of future express Lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

construction work in a manner that will keep the single HOV lane open until the 

double lane HOT/HOV express facility is completed 

 

Completed Activities – 80% of the contract work was completed as of 02/20/15 

Construction activities began in April 2013.  Work completed to date includes: 

 Construction of auxiliary lanes from Isabel Ave. to First St. 

 Las Positas Creek (EB and WB) bridge widening 

 Widening of major box culvert at Arroyo Seco and modification of drainage 

facilities; Creek diversion is removed and area restored 

 Most retaining walls on the outside of the freeway corridor 

 

6.3A 

 

Page 11Page 11Page 11



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.do

c 

 

 

Ongoing & Upcoming Activities 

Caltrans maintains a project website 

(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information 

and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work 

activities include: 

 Construct remaining retaining wall #18 and sound wall east of Portola Ave. 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

 Pull fiber optic trunk line on south side of I-580 from Hacienda Dr. to Greenville Rd. 

 Rubberized hot mix asphalt and open graded asphalt concrete will be placed 

on main line I-580 between Hacienda Dr. and Greenville Rd. from June through 

September 2015 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The I-580 Eastbound HOV Project is funded through federal, state and local funds. 

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 3  

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($ million) 

CMIA RM2 TVTC FED SHOPP Meas. B Total 

PA&ED      0.02 0.02 

PS&E  1.72 1.30 0.23   3.25 

ROW  0.17 0.08    0.28 0.53 

Construct 

Cap 

17.87 2.20 0.14  4.69 6.57 31.47 

Construct 

Sup 

2.53 1.12 0.10   0.71 4.46 

Total 20.40 5.21 1.62 0.23 4.69 7.58 39.73 

Total Project Cost: $39.7M 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS  

 

The Eastbound AUX Lane project between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road was 

advertised on July 9, 2012; bids were opened on October 5, 2012. Caltrans awarded 

the contract to OC Jones & Sons (with a bid 6.33 percent below the Engineer’s 

Estimate) on November 16, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to support express 

lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in late 2015. 

 

Project Approval December 2011 (A) 

RTL May 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote May 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction 

(Award) 

November 2012 (A) 

End Construction October 2015 (T) 

 

Page 12Page 12Page 12

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects (PN 724.4/724.5) 

Monthly Progress Report 

March 2015 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The Westbound (WB) I-580 HOV Lane Project includes three segments: 

 SEGMENT 1 – WB HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue 

 SEGMENT 2 – WB HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road 

 SEGMENT 3 – Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas Creek.  This work is included in the 

construction contract for the Eastbound (EB) HOV Lane Project (see Attachment A).   

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS – SEGMENTS 1 & 2  

 

Traffic Handling & Night Work 

Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in 

rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no 

complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes, 

closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement 

rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include 

setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and 

striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement 

and overlay) and electrical work.  Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to 

perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge 

work is expected to occur during daytime hours. 

 

Construction Challenges 

Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the 

project within limited funding.  Challenges and managed risks for the project include: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 Installation of future express Lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

construction work in a manner that will allow the HOV/express lane facility to be 

opened concurrently 

 Additional widening of the North Livermore Avenue structure to accommodate 

express lane width requirements 

 New retaining wall to account for recent, accelerated erosion within the Arroyo 

Seco Creek adjacent to the widening necessary for westbound lanes 

 Coordination with concurrent Caltrans projects in the area to reduce cost 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Revision of pavement slab replacements to prioritize in areas most in need 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

 Installation of future express lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

construction work in a manner that will allow the HOV/express lane facility to be 

opened concurrently 

6.3B 

 

Page 13Page 13Page 13



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 Elimination of a retaining wall to reduce project cost 

 Changes to the pavement cross section to reduce project cost 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Revision of pavement slab replacements to prioritize in areas most in need 

 

Completed Activities 

Construction activities began in March 2013.  Work completed to date includes: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) – 70% of the contract work was completed as of 02/20/15 

 North Livermore Avenue bridge widening 

 Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas (2 locations)  

 Arroyo Seco RCB culvert extension 

 Construct major drainage facilities (e.g. double box culvert) 

 Concrete pavement slab replacements  

 Excavate and construct retaining walls and soil nail walls 

 Median barrier reconfiguration 

 Soundwall construction at Vasco Road 

 Paving of ramp and gore areas 

 Installation of electroliers in the median 

 Installation of sign structure foundations in the median for express lane tolling 

system signage 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment – 78% of the contract work was completed as of 02/20/15 

 Median widening from Airway Boulevard to Hacienda Drive 

 Temporary striping, shift traffic lanes and placement of safety barrier (k-rail) to 

allow for Stage 2 outside widening 

 Median widening and barrier reconfiguration 

 Bridge widening at Dougherty Undercrossing near Dublin BART station  

 Bridge widening at Tassajara Creek  

 Precast slab pavement replacements 

 Retaining walls substantially completed 

 Outside widening from Airway Boulevard to Hacienda Drive 

 Installation of electroliers in the median 

 Installation of sign structure foundations in the median for express lane tolling 

system signage 

 

Ongoing & Upcoming Activities 

Caltrans maintains a project website 

(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information 

and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work 

activities include: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 Install drainage facilities in median 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

 Final pavement layers will be placed on main line I-580 between Greenville Road 

and Airway Boulevard from April through September 2015 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

Page 14Page 14Page 14

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 Install drainage systems 

 Complete retaining walls 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

 Final paving and striping between Airway Boulevard and Hacienda Drive will 

begin in June 2015 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Project is funded through federal, state and local funds 

available for the I-580 Corridor. The total project cost is $143.9M, comprised of 

programmed (committed) funding from federal, state and local sources.   

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($  million) 

CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVTC Total 

Scoping   0.53 0.04         0.57 

PA&ED   4.38           4.38 

PS&E   2.29 0.11 0.15   1.69 0.42 4.66 

ROW   1.16       0.04  1.20 

Utilities   0.32           0.32 

Const Cap 35.34   5.92 6.19 13.54 1.60   62.59 

Const. Sup 6.52   1.59     1.08   9.19 

Total 41.86 8.68 7.66 6.34 13.54 4.41 0.42 82.91 

Total Project Cost: $82.9M 

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

 

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($  million) 

CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVTC Total 

Scoping   0.36 0.02         0.38 

PA&ED   2.92           2.92 

PS&E   1.53 0.07 0.10   1.12 0.28 3.10 

ROW   0.77       0.03   0.80 

Utilities   0.21          0.21 

Const Cap 33.73   2.49   9.61 0.10 0.30 46.23 

Const. Sup 6.75         0.58   7.33 

Total 40.48 5.79 2.58 0.10 9.61 1.83 0.58 60.97 

Total Project Cost: $61.0M 

 

 

Page 15Page 15Page 15



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment): 

The Westbound HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue was 

advertised on July 16, 2012 and bids were opened on September 19, 2012. Caltrans 

awarded the contract to Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc. (with a bid 16.33 percent 

below Engineer’s Estimate) on November 20, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to 

support express lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in early 2016. 

 

Project Approval January 2010 (A) 

RTL May 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote May 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction (Award) November 2012 (A) 

End Construction January 2016 (T) 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment): 

The Westbound HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road was 

advertised on June 25, 2012 and bids were opened on August 29, 2012. Caltrans 

awarded the contract to DeSilva Gates Construction (with a bid 23.32 percent below 

Engineer’s Estimate) on October 29, 2012.  With the inclusion of infrastructure to support 

express lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in mid 2015. 

 

Project Approval January 2010 (A) 

RTL April 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote April 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction (Award) October 2012 (A) 

End Construction July 2015 (T) 

 

Page 16Page 16Page 16



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project 

Monthly Progress Report 

March 2015 
 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project will convert the newly constructed eastbound 

HOV lane, from Hacienda Drive in Dublin/Pleasanton to Greenville Road in Livermore, to 

a majority double express lane facility for the a distance of approximately 11 miles. 

 

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS 

   

 Civil design is complete and combined with the westbound component as one 

contract package. The civil construction is being implemented through the 

Contract Change Orders (CCOs) process; under the three I-580 HOV lane projects 

currently in construction (I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 

Westbound HOV Lane - East Segment and I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 

with Auxiliary Lanes). All the CCOs have been issued to the contractors 

 Electronic toll system design is completed and awaiting permit approval from 

Caltrans 

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES 

 

 Construction activities are progressing, for detailed civil construction updates see 

Attachment A  

 Construction coordination meetings have been held to ease construction sequence 

between the civil and systems construction projects  

 Toll system design updates provided in Attachment E 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Coordinate civil construction activities to begin system installation by late April 
2015, civil construction updates are provided in Attachment A  

 Toll system design updates provided in Attachment E 

 

POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS 

 

With the exception of final paving and striping, the civil construction activities are 

scheduled to be completed in spring 2015 to allow ETCC to start the electronic toll 

system installation so that the express lane facility can be opened by November 2015. 

This schedule is very aggressive. Staff has been working closely with Caltrans and ETCC 

to monitor progress and take appropriate actions to maintain the schedule. 

 

 

 

 

6.3C 

 

Page 17Page 17Page 17



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The total project cost of the combined express lane project is $55 million and is fully 

funded with a combination of federal, regional and local fund sources. 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project Schedule: 
 

Project Approval March 2014 (A) 

Civil Design Completion April 2014 (A) 

Begin Construction June 2014 (A) 

End Construction 

(Civil and System Integration) 

November 2015 (T) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 18Page 18Page 18



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D 

I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project 

Monthly Progress Report 

March 2015 
 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Westbound Lane Project will convert the planned westbound HOV lane 

(currently in construction), to a single express lane facility from Greenville Road in 

Livermore to San Ramon Road / Foothill Road in Dublin / Pleasanton, a distance of 

approximately 14 miles. 

 

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS 

 

 The environmental phase is complete    

 Civil design is complete; it has been combined with the eastbound component as 

one contract package. The civil construction is being implemented through the 

Contract Change Order (CCO) process under the three I-580 HOV lane projects 

currently in construction (I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 

Westbound HOV Lane - East Segment and I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 

with Auxiliary Lanes). All the CCOs have been issued to the contractors 

 Electronic toll system design is completed and awaiting permit approval from 

Caltrans. 

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES 

 

 Construction activities are progressing, see Attachment B for civil construction 

updates 

 Construction coordination meetings have been held to ease construction sequence 

between the civil and systems construction projects  

 Toll system design updates included in Attachment E 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Coordinate civil construction activities to begin system installation by April 2015, 
civil construction updates provided in Attachment B 

 Toll system design updates included in Attachment E 

 

POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS 

 

With the exception of final paving and striping, civil construction activities are 

scheduled to complete in spring 2015 to allow ETCC to start the electronic toll system 

installation so that express lane facility can be opened by November 2015. This 

schedule is very aggressive. Staff has been working closely with Caltrans and ETCC to 

monitor progress and take appropriate actions to maintain the project schedule. 

 

 

6.3D 

 

Page 19Page 19Page 19



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\SourceDocs\4.2D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The total project cost of the combined express lane project is $55 million and is fully 

funded with a combination of federal, regional and local fund sources. 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project Schedule: 

 

Project Approval August  2013  (A) 

Civil Design Completion April 2014 (A) 

Begin Construction June 2014  (A) 

End Construction  

(Civil and System Integration) 

November 2015 (T) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 20Page 20Page 20



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\4.2E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate.doc 

 

 

ATTACHMENT E 

I-580 Express Lanes System Integration 

Monthly Progress Report 

March 2015 
 

  
SYSTEM INTEGRATION SCOPE DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Express Lane civil contract will construct the necessary civil infrastructure to 

implement the express lanes on I-580, these Items include signing, sign gantries for 

dynamic messaging and toll reading, electrical conduit for connecting power and 

communication sources and pavement striping.  The System Integration component of 

the project will include communication and tolling hardware design, software 

development, and factory testing of equipment/design, toll system 

equipment/hardware installation and toll system integration. It will also consist of field 

testing the toll equipment and all subsystems, including the interfaces to the Bay Area 

Toll Authority - Regional Customer Service Center and Caltrans, prior to implementing 

the new express lanes. 

 

Detailed Discussion 

 

Electronic Transaction Consultants Corporation (ETCC), the project toll system 

integrator, has been updating the electronic toll system design to support the “near 

continuous” access configuration in both directions of I-580. System integration in the I-

580 corridor includes the most recent technologies for software, hardware and traffic 

detection to efficiently manage current and forecasted traffic congestion by optimizing 

the existing corridor capacity.  The system integrator, however, will continue to own the 

software while the implementing agency will pay for a license to allow for the use of the 

toll integrator’s software.   

 

As reported during the I-580 Workshops which were held in 2013, the “near continuous” 

concept provides additional access opportunities while reducing the foot-print required 

for implementing a shared express/general purpose lane facility.  In addition, it looks 

and feels similar to a High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) facility and, therefore, is 

expected to provide driver familiarity through the corridor. 

 

To support near continuous access configuration, the electronic toll system has been 

designed to implement zone tolling and automated toll violation enforcement 

(involving license plate image capture and review process). Closely spaced toll 

antennas and readers will be placed approximately at ¾-mile intervals to effectively 

read FasTrak® / FasTrak flex® transponders. A transponder will be read once within a 

(tolling) zone by a toll reader and will be charged a fee for use of the lane. Throughout 

the facility, real-time traffic/travel conditions will be gathered through traffic monitoring 

stations/devices and demand-based toll rates will be calculated, utilizing a dynamic 

pricing model algorithm.  Calculated toll rates will be displayed on Dynamic Message 

Signs (DMSs) ahead of potential express lane entry locations in order to inform travelers.  

6.3E 

 

Page 21Page 21Page 21



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\4.2E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate.doc 

 

The DMSs are expected to display two rates, the first rate is for travel within the current 

or immediately downstream zone and the second rate is for travel to a major 

destination within the corridor (determined as the end of the line in the I-580 Corridor).    

The system design also includes automated toll violation enforcement.  To enact toll 

violation enforcement the Commission will have to adopt a “Toll Ordinance” under the 

purview of Vehicle Code Section 40250 which allows toll operators to enact such 

ordinances, including the penalties associated with violations. Several administrative 

steps will have to be finalized prior to the Commission adopting a toll ordinance. Staff 

has been discussing the details, timeline and process associated with development and 

adoption of a toll ordinance at the Commission meetings.  

Express lane implementation on I-580 will depend on services provided by others, 

primarily by the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA).  Therefore, staff is closely working with 

BATA to finalize the switchable (aka FasTrak flex®) transponder rollout plan, a new I-580 

customer service agreement for BATA provided services such as toll collection, FasTrak 

account relations, toll violation/delinquent notices and penalty collection services, etc., 

and the interface requirements for interacting toll systems with BATA operated regional 

customer service center. Project toll system design and implementation are contingent 

on finalizing the above. 

 

Project Geometry and Electronic Toll System Design  

The latest version of the express lanes concept includes the following: 

 

In the eastbound I-580 direction: 

• Buffer separated single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Hacienda Drive 

to Fallon Road 

• Continuous access dual-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Fallon Road to 

west of Vasco Road 

• Continuous access single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from west of Vasco 

Road to Greenville Road 

 

In the westbound I-580 direction: 

• Continuous access single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Greenville 

Road to Hacienda Drive 

• A buffer separated single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Hacienda 

Drive to the I-580/I-680 Interchange 

 

PROJECT STATUS 

  

Software and hardware design   

The design of system integration is nearing completion.  The system integrator 

consultant, ETCC, has been proceeding with software and hardware development, 

consistent with project concepts presented during the I-580 Workshops held in 2013. 

Zone tolling to facilitate efficient toll collection and an automated toll violation system 

are part of the design. System design also includes tools to support the California 

Highway Patrol’s efforts in curtailing vehicle occupancy violation. 

Page 22Page 22Page 22



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\4.2E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate.doc 

 

 

Sequencing of ETCC’s system installation has been coordinated with the on-going 

Caltrans construction projects to finalize the installation schedule. ETCC performed a 

simulated factory acceptance test during the week of February 14, 2015 and will 

perform subsequent site/field acceptance testing in September 2015 to validate its 

hardware and software design, prior to opening the new express lanes facility. 
Construction of system installation is expected to commence in April 2015 with the 

electronic toll system fully operational in November 2015. 
 

Agency staff, in cooperation with regional partners, is working to deploy a 

comprehensive public education and outreach program to support the 

implementation of the express lanes. As explained at the February 2015 Committee 

meeting, business rules were developed to provide drivers with a consistent experience 

throughout the Regional Bay Area Express Lane Network.   

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES   

  
     To coordinate the sequence of construction activities, staff has been conducting 

monthly coordination meetings with ETCC and Caltrans construction 
     ETCC has already procured several back office equipment and performed a 

simulated factory acceptance test during the week of February 14, 2015. No major 

implementation issues were observed during this testing 
     Submitted an encroachment permit application to Caltrans to secure a permit for 

installing toll systems within state right-of-way, issuance of the encroachment permit 

is anticipated in early April 2015 
     Continued to discuss interface requirements with BATA’s vendor Xerox for processing 

transponder-based and image-based toll trips 
     Continued to work with BATA on tasks necessary for distributing FasTrak flex toll 

transponders and completing a customer services agreement 

       Met with Stanislaus Council of Government (STANCOG) members to discuss the 

project implementation, benefits, new technologies, schedule and outreach 

activities within their communities, and sought their input 

 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Continue outreach and education efforts to public/stakeholders focused on 

educating them about the benefits of express lanes, how to use the lanes, new 

technologies, including the required use of switchable transponders, and how the 

public can acquire a new transponder, etc   

 Continue to work with Xerox to finalize interfacing requirements with BATA Regional 

Customer Service Center 

 Secure Caltrans encroachment permits and begin system installation in early April 

2015 

 Continue to coordinate with BATA to complete a customer services agreement by 

April 2015 for collecting tolls and processing toll violation enforcement services 

 Continue to work with Caltrans to complete an Operations and Maintenance 

(O&M) Agreement by spring 2015 

Page 23Page 23Page 23



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150413\4.2_I580Corridor_Update\4.2E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate.doc 

 

 Service Agreement with California Highway Patrol will be presented April 2015 for 

consideration 

 Continue to work with California Highway Patrol to complete a Service Agreement 

by spring 2015 

 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The total project cost of the combined Eastbound and Westbound I-580 Express lane 

project is $55 million, and is fully funded with a combination of federal, regional and 

local fund sources. 

 

Page 24Page 24Page 24



580

580

680

84

84

680

Portola Ave

Airway       

Las Posita
s Rd

S V
asco Rd

G
reenville Rd

N
 V

asco Rd

S Livermore Ave

Hopyard
   Rd

Haciend
a  

Santa    Rita      Rd
Tassajara    Rd

Fallon Rd

San Ram
on Rd

D
ougherty Rd

Foothill    

Pleasanton

Dublin

Dr

Fir
st 

St

Isabel     A
ve

NCa n yon 

N
 Liverm

ore A
ve

El  Charro 

Bl vd

Rd

Portola 

AveLivermore
Municipal Airport

Livermore

Altamont Pass R
d

Rd

 I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects - Location map 

 I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane (Complete) 
  

 I-580 Eastbound AUX Lane (PN 720.5) 
  

 I-580 Westbound HOV Lane (West - PN 724.4) 
  

 I-580 Westbound HOV Lane (East - PN 724.5) 

6.3F

Page 25Page 25Page 25

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia



       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 

Page 26Page 26Page 26



580

580

680

84

84

680

Portola 

Airway       Las Posita
s    

 Rd

S V
asco Rd

G
reenville Rd

N
 V

asco Rd

S Livermore Ave

Hopyard
   Rd

Haciend
a  

Santa    Rita      Rd
Tassajara    Rd

Fallon Rd

San Ram
on Rd

D
ougherty Rd

Foothill    

Pleasanton

Dublin

Dr

Fir
st 

St

Isabel     A
ve

N
 Liverm

ore A
ve

El  Charro 

Bl vd

Rd

AveLivermore
Municipal Airport

Livermore

Altm
ont Pass R

d

Rd

 Buffer Separated 1-Lane Express Lane 
  

 Continuous Access 1-Lane Express Lane 
  

 Continuous Access 2-Lane Express Lane 

 I-580 Express Lane Projects Location map 

6.3D

Page 27Page 27Page 27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 28Page 28Page 28



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.4_EnvDocs\6.4_EnvironmentalDocReview.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.4 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda 
CTC’s Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and 
General Plan Amendments 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the Alameda CTC’s Review and Comments on 
Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments. 

 

Summary 

This item fulfills one of the requirements under the Land Use Analysis Program (LUAP) element 
of the Congestion Management Program (CMP). As part of the LUAP, Alameda CTC reviews 
Notices of Preparations (NOPs), General Plan Amendments (GPAs), and Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIRs) prepared by local jurisdictions and comments on them regarding the 
potential impact of proposed land development on the regional transportation system.  

Since the last update on March 9, 2015, the Alameda CTC reviewed one Draft Subsequent 
Environmental Impact Report (DSEIR). Comments were submitted on this document and the 
comment letter is included as attachment A. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments: 

A. Response to Notice of Availability of the Tracy Hills Specific Plan Draft Subsequent 
Environmental Impact Report 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Daniel Wu, Assistant Transportation Planner 

 

Page 29Page 29Page 29

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:dwu@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 30Page 30Page 30



6.4A

Page 31Page 31Page 31



Page 32Page 32Page 32



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.5_CTC_Meeting_Summary\6.5_CTC_Meeting_Summary.docx  

 

 

Memorandum 6.5 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: California Transportation Commission March 2015 Meeting Summary 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the March 2015 CTC Meeting. 

 
Summary  

The March 2015 California Transportation Commission (CTC) meeting was held in Irvine, 
Ca. Detailed below is a summary of the seven (7) agenda items of significance pertaining 
to Projects/Programs within Alameda County that were considered at the meeting. 

Background 

The CTC is responsible for programming and allocating funds for the construction of 
highway, passenger rail, and transit improvements throughout California. The CTC consists 
of eleven voting members and two non-voting ex-officio members. The San Francisco Bay 
Area has three CTC members residing in its geographic area: Bob Alvarado, Jim 
Ghielmetti, and Carl Guardino.  

Detailed below is a summary of the seven agenda items of significance pertaining to 
Projects / Programs within Alameda County that were considered at the March 2015 CTC 
meeting (Attachment A). 

1. State Transportation Improvement Program / Route 84 Expressway Widening -  
 Segment 2 Project 
CTC approved the allocation of $47.03 million STIP funds for the construction phase of the 
Route 84 Expressway Widening - Segment 2 Project. This project is located in the City of 
Livermore and will widen Route 84 from 2 lanes to 4 lanes between Ruby Hill Drive to north of 
Concannon Boulevard. 
Outcome: Allocation will fund the Construction phase of the project. Construction activities 
are scheduled to begin summer 2015 and continue through the fall of 2017 

2. Draft 2016 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
CTC staff presented an overview of the Draft 2016 STIP Guidelines. The first draft of the 
guidelines was presented at the October 8, 2014 Commission meeting. CTC staff will bring the 
final 2016 STIP Guidelines to the Commission for adoption in August 2015. Between now and 
August 2015, CTC will monitor enacted state and federal legislation that may affect the STIP, 
and will include any changes required by law and the 2016 Fund Estimate.  

Page 33Page 33Page 33



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.5_CTC_Meeting_Summary\6.5_CTC_Meeting_Summary.docx 

 

 

Over the next several months, the Department of Transportation (Caltrans) will work closely 
with CTC staff to identify key issues and assumptions, and prepare the 2016 STIP Fund Estimate 
for adoption in August 2015. The key milestones for the development of the 2016 STIP Fund 
Estimate are: 

• January 2015 – Overview 
• March 2015 – Present Draft Assumptions and Key Issues 
• May 2015 – Approve Assumptions  

(pending changes to the May Revision of the 2015-16 Governor’s Budget) 
• June 2015 – Present Draft STIP Fund Estimate 
• August 2015 – Adopt STIP Fund Estimate 

 

3. 2015 Active Transportation Program (ATP) 
CTC adopted 2015 Active Transportation Program (ATP) Guidelines and Fund Estimate. 
The CTC also adopted amendments to the 2015 ATP Guidelines for the project selection 
criteria proposed by Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for the Regional 
program and released the call for projects for the state and regional programs. 
Applications are due on June 1, 2015.  
 
The ATP, as articulated in SB 99 and AB 101, was signed into law on September 26, 2013. It 
replaced the existing system of small-dedicated grant programs, which funded Safe 
Routes to Schools, bicycle programs, and Recreational Trails. The ATP Cycle 2 divides 
approximately $120 million for active transportation projects between the state and 
regions, subject to 2015 guidelines. The intent of combining this funding is to improve 
flexibility and reduce the administrative burden of having several small independent 
grant programs.  
 
Outcome: Approximately $60 million of ATP funding is estimated to be available through 
the state program. Additionally, $10 million of ATP funding is estimated to be available for 
MTC Region through the regional program; Alameda County share will be determined 
through MTC’s Regional process.  
 
4. Mitigated Negative Declaration for City of Alameda’s Cross Alameda Trail Project 
CTC accepted the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and approved City of 
Alameda’s Cross Alameda Trail – Jean Sweeney Open Space Park project for future 
consideration of funding. 
 
Outcome: Construction work is estimated to begin fiscal year 2015-16. 
 
5. Active Transportation Program / Alameda County’s Be Oakland, Be Active: A 
 Comprehensive Safe Routes to School Program Project 
CTC approved allocation of $988,000 ATP funds for the construction/operations phase of 
Alameda County’s Be Oakland, Be Active: A Comprehensive Safe Routes to School 
Program Project. 
 
Outcome: Allocation will fund the operations phase of the project. 

Page 34Page 34Page 34



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.5_CTC_Meeting_Summary\6.5_CTC_Meeting_Summary.docx 

 

 

 
6. Active Transportation Program / City of Alameda’s Cross Alameda Trail Project 
CTC approved the allocation of $226,000 ATP funds for the Plans, Specifications and 
Estimates (PS&E) phase of the Cross Alameda Trail project. 
 
Outcome: Allocation will fund the PS&E phase activities of the project. 
 
7. Active Transportation Program / City of Livermore’s Marylin Avenue Elementary School 
 Safe Routes to School Project 
CTC approved the allocation of $83,000 ATP funds for the PS&E phase of the Marylin 
Avenue Elementary School Safe Routes to School project. 
 
Outcome: Allocation will fund the PS&E phase activities of the project. 
 

Fiscal Impact: There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. This is for information only.  

Attachments  
A. March 2015 CTC Meeting summary for Alameda County Project / Programs  

 

Staff Contact  

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

Vivek Bhat, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Page 35Page 35Page 35

mailto:jobrien@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 36Page 36Page 36



March 2015 CTC Summary for Alameda County Projects/ Programs

Sponsor Program / Project Item Description CTC Action / Discussion

Alameda CTC
State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) / 

Route 84 Expressway Widening - Segment 2 Project

Approve allocation of $47.03 Million STIP funds for the 

construction phase of the Route 84 Expressway Widening - 

Segment 2 Project. 

Approved

Caltrans 2016 STIP Draft Guidelines and Fund Estimate
Overview of the 2016 STIP Draft guidelines and Fund 

Estimate.
Information

Caltrans 2015 Active Transportation Program (ATP)

Adopt 2015 Active Transportation Program (ATP) 

Guidelines and Fund Estimate, amendments to the 2015 ATP 

Guidelines for the project selection criteria proposed by 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for the 

Regional program and release  call for projects for  state and 

regional programs

Approved

Alameda CTC
2014 ATP / Mitigated Negative Declaration for City of 

Alameda’s Cross Alameda Trail Project

Accept the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and 

approved City of Alameda’s Cross Alameda Trail – Jean 

Sweeney Open Space Park project for future consideration of 

funding.

Approved

Alameda CTC

2014 ATP / Alameda County’s Be Oakland, Be Active: 

A Comprehensive Safe Routes to School Program 

Project

Approve allocation of $988,000 ATP funds for the 

construction/operations phase of Alameda County’s Be 

Oakland, Be Active: A Comprehensive Safe Routes to School 

Program Project.

Approved

Alameda CTC
2014 ATP / City of Alameda’s Cross Alameda Trail 

Project

Approve allocation of $226,000 ATP funds for the Plans, 

Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) phase of the Cross 

Alameda Trail project.

Approved

Alameda CTC
2014 ATP/ City of Livermore’s Marylin Avenue 

Elementary School Safe Routes to School Project

Approve allocation of $83,000 ATP funds for the PS&E 

phase of the Marylin Avenue Elementary School Safe Routes 

to School project.

Approved

http://www.catc.ca.gov/meetings/agenda/2015Agenda/2015_03/000-ETA.pdf

6.5A

Page 37Page 37Page 37

http://www.catc.ca.gov/meetings/agenda/2015Agenda/2015_03/000-ETA.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 38Page 38Page 38



 
 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 

Items\6.6_MeasureBBDLD_MPFA_Authorization\6.6_MeasureBB_ 
MPFA_Authorization_20150401Final.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.6 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Measure BB Master Programs Funding Agreements with Direct Local 
Distribution Funds Recipients 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Executive Director to execute Master Programs Funding 
Agreements with Measure BB Direct Local Distribution Funds recipients. 

 
Summary  

On November 4, 2014, Alameda County voters approved the 2014 Transportation 
Expenditure Plan (TEP), Measure BB, authorizing the extension of the existing transportation 
sales tax and augmenting it by one-half percent to fund projects and programs.  The 2014 
TEP includes two types of distributions:  1) Direct fund disbursements to recipients known as 
Direct Local Distributions (DLD) and 2) fund reimbursements after work is performed.  
Revenue collection for Measure BB will commence on April 1, 2015.  The first DLD payments 
are expected in the June/July timeframe shortly after the Alameda CTC receives the first 
revenues from the Board of Equalization (BOE).   The DLD funds account for 53.55% of the 
total net revenues. In order to receive Measure BB DLD funds, recipients must enter into a 
Master Programs Funding Agreement (MPFA) with the Alameda CTC.   

Staff recommends the Commission authorize the Executive Director or his designee to enter 
into MPFA’s with the twenty eligible DLD fund recipients. Once executed, the MPFA will 
enable the flow of funds as soon as funds are received by the Alameda CTC from the BOE.  

Background 

On November 4, 2014, Alameda County voters approved Measure BB, authorizing the 
extension of the existing transportation sales tax and augmenting it by one- half percent to 
fund projects and programs included in the 2014 TEP.  Revenue collection will begin April 1, 
2015 and the first receipts from the California BOE are expected by the end of June 2015. The 
2014 TEP, which guides the expenditures of Measure BB, requires that each fund recipient 
enter into a MPFA with the Alameda CTC to define the roles and responsibilities related to 
the expenditure of Measure BB sales tax revenues.   

The 2014 TEP includes two types of distributions:  1) direct disbursements to recipients as a 
percentage of net revenues, and 2) payments made on a reimbursement basis after work is 
performed.  The Measure BB MPFA delineates only the requirements of the direct 
disbursements or DLD funds.  Projects and Programs managed on a reimbursement basis will 

Page 39Page 39Page 39



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.6_MeasureBBDLD_MPFA_Authorization\6.6_MeasureBB_ 

MPFA_Authorization_20150401Final.docx 
 

be addressed in separate agreements.   The DLD funds account for 53.55% of the total net 
revenues and will fund the four investment categories summarized in Table A.   

TABLE A:  MEASURE BB DLD INVESTMENT SUMMARY 

Investment Category Program  

Transit:  Operations, 
Maintenance and Safety 
Program (OMSP) 

AC Transit OMSP (18.8%) 
Altamont Commuter Express (ACE) OMSP (1.0%) 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) 
Maintenance OMSP (0.5%) 
San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency 
Transportation Authority (WETA) OMSP(0.5%) 
Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA) 
OMSP(0.5%) 
Union City Transit OMSP (0.25%) 

Affordable Transit for Seniors 
and People with Disabilities 
(Paratransit) 

City-based and Locally Mandated (3.0%) 
East Bay Paratransit Consortium– AC Transit (4.5%) 
 East Bay Paratransit Consortium – BART (1.5%) 

Direct Allocation to Cities and 
County (Local Streets and 
Roads) 
 

Local streets maintenance and safety program 
(20.0%) 

Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Infrastructure and Safety 
 
 

Bicycle and pedestrian direct allocation to cities 
and Alameda County (3.0%) 
 

Note:  Percentages shown represent percentage of the total net revenues. 

On February 26, 2015, the Commission reviewed and approved the draft MPFA as presented 
by staff. The approved MPFA authorizes the distributions of Measure BB DLD funding collected 
from April 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, unless amended or a new MPFA is executed. It is 
important to note the 2014 TEP identifies criteria that will require the development of specific 
policies and procedures to implement.  Examples of these criteria include local contracting, 
performance based measurements, distribution formulas, and geographical equity formulas.    
The Measure BB MPFA will serve as the initial master agreement to disburse Measure BB DLD 
funds for the initial period from the first disbursements until June 30, 2016.  This initial period will 
allow staff time to develop the necessary policies and procedures for long term 
implementation of Measure BB DLD funds following the initial period. 

No changes or comments were received regarding the draft MPFA presented in February 
2015.  Staff recommends the Commission authorize the Executive Director or his designee to 
enter into MPFA’s with eligible Measure BB DLD fund recipients to permit the flow of funds as 
soon as they are received by the Alameda CTC from the California BOE. 

Page 40Page 40Page 40



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.6_MeasureBBDLD_MPFA_Authorization\6.6_MeasureBB_ 

MPFA_Authorization_20150401Final.docx 
 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact expected as a result of the recommended 
action.  The recommended action will allow for agreements to be executed that will govern 
the disbursements of Direct Local Distributions authorized by Measure BB. 

Staff Contacts 

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

John Nguyen, Project Controls Team 

 

 

Page 41Page 41Page 41

mailto:james@advancepdi.com
mailto:jnguyen@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 42Page 42Page 42



 
 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 

Items\6.7_MeasureBBFundingAgreements\6.7_MeasureBB_Funding_Agreements_20150401Final.docx 
 

Memorandum 6.7 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Project Funding Agreements for Measure BB Allocations Approved in 
March 2015 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Executive Director to execute Measure BB Funding 
Agreements with Recipient Agencies related to allocations approved 
in March 2015. 

 
Summary  

On November 4, 2014, Alameda County voters approved the 2014 Transportation 
Expenditure Plan (TEP), Measure BB, authorizing the extension of the existing transportation 
sales tax and augmenting it by one-half percent to fund a new list of projects and programs.  
The first allocations of Measure BB funds for capital projects and programs were approved by 
the Commission in March 2015.  A number of the allocations approved in March 2015 were 
for project scoping and definition activities intended to jump start the delivery of the new 
program and to provide well-developed project delivery information to be used as the basis 
for future allocations.  Some of the Measure BB commitments included in the 2014 
Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) are for multiple projects, or groups of projects, to be 
implemented by different project sponsors.  The process for accessing the Measure BB funds 
allocated for scoping requires sponsors to submit a request for a project scoping agreement.  
The number of scoping grants approved will not be known until the requests for scoping 
agreements are received.  The allocations for scoping approved in March 2015 included 
capacity for multiple scoping grants within each of the multiple project commitments for 
which allocations were approved.  The initial list of allocations approved in March 2015 also 
included a number of allocations for individual projects specifically identified with a Measure 
BB amount in the 2014 TEP. 

Staff recommends the Commission authorize the Executive Director or his designee to enter 
into project funding agreements necessary to make the allocated funds available for 
encumbrance and subsequent expenditure related to the scoping efforts along with eligible 
expenditures related to the individual projects for which an allocation was approved in 
March 2015. 

Discussion 

On November 4, 2014, Alameda County voters approved Measure BB, authorizing the 
extension of the existing transportation sales tax and augmenting it by one-half percent to 

Page 43Page 43Page 43



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 

Items\6.7_MeasureBBFundingAgreements\6.7_MeasureBB_Funding_Agreements_20150401Final.docx 
 

fund projects and programs included in the 2014 TEP.  Since the passage of the Measure, the 
Alameda CTC has worked to prepare for the implementation of the capital projects and 
programs included in the 2014 TEP.  A portion of the Measure BB funding available for 
programs and projects, i.e. 53.55%, is represented by Direct Local Distributions (DLD) which 
are revenues passed through to the named recipients in the 2014 TEP.  The remainder of the 
funding will be allocated and expended on the capital projects and other programs on a 
reimbursement basis.  The disbursements of the DLD funding are covered in separate 
agreements from the agreements recommended in this item. 

In March 2015, the Alameda CTC approved the first batch of Measure BB funding allocations 
for capital projects and programs to be funded on a reimbursement basis.  The allocations 
included a number of allocations from the commitments in the 2014 TEP for individual capital 
projects or programs listed in the 2014 TEP with a specific commitment amount, and for 
commitments in the 2014 TEP which include multiple, or “grouped,” projects.  For projects 
and programs which are not well-defined at this point, allocations were approved for project 
scoping and definition activities to afford project sponsors resources to prepare a well-
defined project implementation plan for each project.  The information derived from the 
scoping efforts will be used as the basis for consideration of future allocations and 
programming actions related to Measure BB.  The scoping activities will take place 
concurrently with the upcoming Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) update. 

In order for project sponsors to receive reimbursements of eligible project costs, the allocated 
funds must be encumbered in funding agreements with project sponsors or made available 
for encumbrance by the Alameda CTC for projects being implemented directly by the 
Alameda CTC.  The recommended action will allow for the necessary encumbrances of the 
Measure BB funds allocated in March 2015. 

The next steps for the scoping agreements, assuming approval of this item, are as follows: 

April 2015 Alameda CTC distributes the Request for Scoping Agreements form to 
project sponsors; 

April 2015 Project sponsors submit Request for Scoping Agreement form to the 
Alameda CTC; 

May 2015 Alameda CTC amend FY 14/15 Annual Budget to include current year 
scoping budgets; 

May 2015 Alameda CTC distribute Scoping Agreements to project sponsors for 
execution; and 

June 2015 Alameda CTC release call for project information for CTP update 
process (scoping funds available for responding to call for project 
information). 

Page 44Page 44Page 44



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 

Items\6.7_MeasureBBFundingAgreements\6.7_MeasureBB_Funding_Agreements_20150401Final.docx 
 

The next step related to funding agreements for individual projects named in the 2014 TEP for 
scoping or subsequent project delivery phases is for the sponsor to request a project funding 
agreement from the Alameda CTC. 

Fiscal Impact:  The recommended action will result in the encumbrance and subsequent 
expenditure of Measure BB funds allocated in March 2015.  A portion of the allocated 
amounts are being amended into the current FY 14/15 Alameda CTC Annual Budget, with 
the remainder being included in the FY 15/16 Alameda CTC Annual Budget. 

Staff Contacts 

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

 

Page 45Page 45Page 45

mailto:james@advancepdi.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 46Page 46Page 46



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.8_MeasureBB_Student_Transit_Pass_Program\6.8_MeasureBB_Affordable_Student_Transit_Pass_Program_20150413_rv1.d
ocx 

 

Memorandum 

DATE:  April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Affordable Student Transit Pass Program  

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the release of a Request for Proposals (RFP) and negotiation 
with the top ranked firm for program development of a pilot Affordable 
Student Transit Pass Program in Alameda County.  

 

Summary  

The 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) includes $15 million for an Affordable Student 
Transit Pass Program (STPP) through the implementation of pilot programs in different areas of 
the county.  The purpose of the STPP is to expand access opportunities to schools on transit 
by testing different models of possible student transit pass programs for middle-school and 
high-schools students in Alameda County. The programs developed will address the 
geographically different areas of the County. 

The passage of Measure BB provides the necessary funding for the pilot programs.  This 
memorandum provides an update on the development of the Affordable Student Transit 
Pass Program (STPP) and seeks approval to release a RFP to procure Professional Services in 
implementing the STPP. The top ranked firm will be brought back for award to the 
Commission for contract approval. 

Discussion 

In 2011, Alameda CTC convened a working group of interested stakeholders, including 
school districts, transit operators, Alameda County, the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission, youth, faith-based, environmental and community organizations to discuss the 
program purpose and objectives of an Alameda County Affordable Student Transit Pass 
Program.  From January 2012 through May 2012, monthly meetings were held with 
stakeholders to discuss and formulate program objectives.  This work was bolstered by 
research on student transit pass programs nationwide; collection of background information 
on existing Alameda County transit operator student fares; and convening of focus groups 
with middle and high school students in Alameda County to seek feedback directly from 
students.  This work was placed on hold in summer 2012 in anticipation of Measure B1 
passage, which failed to receive voter approval on the November 2012 ballot.  

6.8 

 

Page 47Page 47Page 47



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.8_MeasureBB_Student_Transit_Pass_Program\6.8_MeasureBB_Affordable_Student_Transit_Pass_Program_20150413_rv1.d
ocx 
 

With passage of Measure BB in November 2014, work commenced on the STPP in December 
2014 and two workshops were held with previous and additional stakeholders on January 28, 
2015 and March 25, 2015 (Attachment A includes participants).   In addition, expanded 
research was conducted by staff to evaluate new student transit pass programs in the 
nation, as well as to assess transit access to schools in Alameda County, and collection of 
additional demographic information at schools.   

Program Purpose:  The purpose of the STPP is to expand access opportunities to schools 
on transit by testing different models of possible student transit pass programs for middle-
school and high-schools students in Alameda County. The programs developed will need 
to serve and/or address the geographically different areas of the County. Students at 
participating middle schools and high schools will receive transit passes that will provide 
access to transit services for transport to school and afterschool activities, during the 
project period. The model programs will be evaluated for effectiveness, and successful 
models will be implemented throughout the County in middle schools and high schools. 

Pilot Program Term:  The initial STPP pilots will run for approximately three years. Different 
models will be tested to address differences in geography, transit service availability, and 
economic needs in different areas of the County.  The aim of the initial model programs is 
to gather data to determine success factors for implementing a program for all middle 
and high school students in Alameda County.  

Program Objectives: The objectives of the STPP include the following: 

• Reduce barriers to transportation access to schools to enable increased school 
attendance and youth engagement in school, after school programs, jobs, and 
other learning opportunities.   

• Improve transportation options for transit travel to school with the use of a student 
transit pass, which may also ease financial burdens on families, reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions and traffic congestion around schools. 

• Improve student transit ridership with the aim of educating a new generation of 
transit riders to understand the relationship between travel choices and the 
associated environmental effects (ie. Climate change and emissions reduction). 

• Improve transit access to all students in middle and high schools, subject to 
funding availability. 

• Leverage other programs to provide benefit to the model programs implemented 
including, but not limited to the Alameda County Safe Routes to Schools Program 
(SR2S), the Alameda County Travel Training program (as modified to suit the needs 
of students), and workforce development-type programs appropriate for high 
school students. 

 

 

Page 48Page 48Page 48



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.8_MeasureBB_Student_Transit_Pass_Program\6.8_MeasureBB_Affordable_Student_Transit_Pass_Program_20150413_rv1.d
ocx 
 

Consultant Assistance:  Consultant assistance is sought to help:   

1. Define and rationalize realistic models for each planning area of the county 
that will address the program objectives and identify goals, performance 
measures and evaluation tools to evaluate effectiveness both on a periodic 
basis and over the three-year pilot term. This includes definition of program 
administration, budgets, eligibility and operational parameters. 

2. Review and analyze existing programs nationally. 

3. Define how the multiple partners will be engaged in the STPP to establish 
successful programs, including strategies for low-income communities.  This 
includes school faculty, student and parent engagement in committees, as 
well as technical advisory and oversight committees. 

4. Define how the proposed approach will tailor each model STPP program to 
each unique community and how the program will aim to expand 
participation at each school site. 

5. Develop a program that removes barriers to involvement in a STPP program for 
students, parents and staff at schools. 

6. Define how technology can support implementation of the program. 

7. Implement and evaluate the program. 

8. Identify opportunities for partnerships, such as the Alameda County Safe 
Routes to School Program and Alameda County Travel Training Program, and 
additional funding. 

Program elements that will be taken into consideration will include, but are not limited to, 
addressing different types of programs with differing parameters and any potential need 
for capital improvements at school sites to improve transit access. Transit analyses will 
address transit availability, coordination, and capacity, including analysis of service 
reliability with increased ridership and service demand on transit operators. The consultant 
will be required to review peak demand on transit service both before and after school, 
along with identification of potential impacts on transit operators.  

An important aspect of the STPP will be the communication and outreach coordination 
throughout the county with the various agencies, jurisdictions, and school districts. The 
program is expected to have several levels of committees as described above to assist in 
the program development.  Community outreach, marketing, and surveying will be 
conducted both before and after the pilot programs and will include findings in periodic 
progress reports. Performance measures and an evaluation matrix will be established prior 
to program commencement as a benchmark to evaluate potential program impacts 
both qualitatively and quantitatively.  An annual report of the pilot program will be 
required to provide updates on program progress and evaluation.  

 

Page 49Page 49Page 49



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.8_MeasureBB_Student_Transit_Pass_Program\6.8_MeasureBB_Affordable_Student_Transit_Pass_Program_20150413_rv1.d
ocx 
 

  

 

Implementation Timeline  

The Preliminary RFP Schedule outline is below: 

• April 23, 2015:  Commission Approval to Release RFP 
• May 1, 2015: Release of Request for Proposals 
• Week of May 11, 2015:  Pre-Proposal Meeting 
• Week of June 8, 2015:  Proposals Due to Alameda CTC  
• Week of July 13, 2015: Interview of Top Ranked Firms 
• September 24, 2015: Recommendation of Top Ranked Firm for Contract Award  
• October 2015: Potential Contract Commencement 
• Anticipated/Target Consultant Schedule (to be Determined by Top Rank Firm) 

o February 2016 – Identify Potential Pilot Locations/Requirements/Goals 
Including Model Elements 

o February/March 2016 – Hold Stakeholder Meetings to Insure Transit Operator 
Involvement and Acceptance 

o March/April 2016– Recommendation to Commission with Roll Out Schedule 
and Locations 

o April/May 2016 – Establish Administrative Requirements and Duties by Whom 
o August 2016 – Early Deployment of Pilot Locations that are Capable of 

Coming Online (Not Requiring Technology)  

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact.  The top ranked firm will be brought back for award 
to the Commission for contract approval. 

Attachments 

A. Participating stakeholders and attendee affiliation of Student Transit Pass Program 
meetings/workshops 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy  

Arun Goel, Program Manager 

Laurel Poeton, Assistant Transportation Planner 

 

Page 50Page 50Page 50

mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org
mailto:agoel@alamedactc.org
mailto:lpoeton@alamedactc.org


6.8A

Page 51Page 51Page 51



Page 52Page 52Page 52



Page 53Page 53Page 53



Page 54Page 54Page 54



 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.9_TFCA_FY15-
16_Guidelines\6.9_TFCA_Guidelines_memo_PPC_20150413_final.docx 

 

6.9
 

 DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) FY 2015-16 
Program Guidelines 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the FY 2015-16 Alameda CTC Transportation Fund for Clean 
Air (TFCA) Program Guidelines. 

Summary 

TFCA funding is generated by a vehicle registration fee collected by the Bay Area Air 
Quality Management District (Air District) to fund eligible projects that result in the 
reduction of motor vehicle emissions. The Alameda CTC’s TFCA Program Guidelines are 
reviewed annually and were last approved by the Commission in March 2014.  The 
recommended updates to the Alameda CTC FY 2015-16 TFCA Program Guidelines 
(Attachment A) conform to the Air District Board-adopted FY 2015-16 TFCA County 
Program Manager Fund Policies (Attachment B), reflect Air District guidance and 
include provisions specific to the administration of Alameda County’s TFCA program.  

Background 

TFCA funding is generated by a $4 vehicle registration fee collected by the Air District. 
Eligible projects are intended to result in the reduction of motor vehicle emissions and to 
achieve surplus emission reductions beyond what is currently required through 
regulations, ordinances, contracts, or other legally binding obligations. Projects typically 
funded with TFCA include shuttles, bicycle lanes and lockers, signal timing and trip 
reduction programs.  As the TFCA Program Manager for Alameda County, the 
Alameda CTC is responsible for programming 40 percent of the revenue generated in 
Alameda County for this program, with the remaining 60 percent programmed directly 
by the Air District. Five percent of the revenue for the county program is set aside for the 
Alameda CTC’s administration of the TFCA program. The Alameda CTC TFCA Program 
Guidelines (Guidelines) include a distribution formula through which 70 percent of the 
available funds are allocated to the cities/county based on population, with a 
minimum of $10,000 to each jurisdiction. The remaining 30 percent of the funds are 
allocated to transit-related projects on a discretionary basis. The total amount of 
available TFCA is required to be programmed annually. To help facilitate the 
programming of all available funds, a jurisdiction may borrow against its projected 
future share in order to receive more funds in the current year.   

Page 55Page 55Page 55



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.9_TFCA_FY15-
16_Guidelines\6.9_TFCA_Guidelines_memo_PPC_20150413_final.docx 

 

 

TFCA County Program Managers are required to hold one or more public meetings 
each year to review the expenditure of revenues received and to adopt criteria for the 
expenditure of the funds. The FY 2015-16 TFCA Expenditure Plan Application identified 
$2.038 million in TFCA funding available for programming to projects and was approved 
by the Commission in February 2015.  The FY 2015-16 TFCA Fund Estimate, provided as 
Attachment C, applies the distribution formula to this amount. 

Projects proposed for TFCA funding are required to meet the requirements of the TFCA 
program, including the Air District TFCA County Program Manager Fund Policies (Air 
District Policies). The recommended Guidelines conform to the Air District Policies, 
reflect Air District guidance and include provisions specific to the administration of 
Alameda County’s TFCA program. County-specific provisions include the TFCA 
distribution formula and timely use of funds milestones, which help ensure program 
compliance and timely project completion.    

FY 2015-16 TFCA Program Updates  

Edits and clarifications to the Alameda CTC Guidelines for FY 2015-16 include: 

• A new section that provides attributes of cost-effective projects has been added 
to help project sponsors identify potential project for TFCA funding;   

• Section V, program schedule, has been updated to reflect FY 2015-16 activities;  
• Section X, project initiation milestone, has been updated to reflect that projects 

approved for FY 2015-16 funding must commence by the end of calendar year 
2016; and 

•  Additional edits included throughout to facilitate program compliance and 
timely project delivery. 

The Air District FY 2015-16 TFCA Policies include the following changes which affect the 
eligibility of certain project types and how they are evaluated for TFCA:  

• For all shuttle operations projects: (1) TFCA-eligible service hours have been 
expanded from Air District-defined “peak commute” hours to any service hours 
that are cost-effective for TFCA, and (2) what constitutes ineligible “duplication 
of service” has been clarified;  

• For existing shuttle operations projects: the cost-effectiveness threshold has been 
increased from $90,000/ton to $125,000/ton;  

• For pilot shuttle operations: projects located in a Planned or Potential Priority 
Development Area (PDA) have a higher cost-effectiveness threshold of 
$500,000/ton and may receive a maximum of three years of TFCA Funds under 
the pilot designation;  

• Bike share (Bay Area Bike Share) projects may apply for up to 5 years of 
operations funding;  

• Cycle Tracks and separated bikeways have been added as an eligible project 
type within the bike facility category; and 

Page 56Page 56Page 56



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.9_TFCA_FY15-
16_Guidelines\6.9_TFCA_Guidelines_memo_PPC_20150413_final.docx 

 

 

• Clean-air vehicle purchase and alternative fuel infrastructure projects cannot 
receive both County and Regional TFCA funding for the same project. 

Next Steps 

The Commission-approved Guidelines will be included with the annual TFCA call for 
projects material, which is scheduled for release following the April 2015 Commission 
meeting. Applications will be due in late May 2015 and a program recommendation is 
scheduled for September 2015.  

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact expected as a result of the 
recommended action. 

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC FY 2015-16 TFCA County Program Manager Fund Guidelines  

B. Air District FY 2015-16 TFCA County Program Manager Fund Policies  

C. Alameda CTC FY 2015-16 TFCA Fund Estimate 

Staff Contacts  

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

 

Page 57Page 57Page 57

mailto:james@advancepdi.com
mailto:jtaylor@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 58Page 58Page 58



   

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 
TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR  

COUNTY PROGRAM MANAGER FUND 
  

FY2015-16 PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
April 2015 Draft  

6.9A

Page 59Page 59Page 59



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 2  
   

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR (TFCA) 

COUNTY PROGRAM MANAGER FUND 
FY 2015-16 PROGRAM GUIDELINES 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTETNTS 
 

  

 I.  BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................................ 3 

 II.  ELIGIBLE PROJECTS ...................................................................................................................... 3 

 III.  TFCA COST EFFECTIVENESS ........................................................................................................ 4 

 IV.  ATTRIBUTES OF COST-EEFFECTIVE PROJECTS ............................................................................ 5 

 IV.  GENERAL PROGRAM STRUCTURE .............................................................................................. 6 

 V.  PROGRAM SCHEDULE ................................................................................................................ 7 

 VI.  APPLICATION PROCESS .............................................................................................................. 7 

   VII. MONITORING REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................... 8 

  VIII.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS ....................................................................................................... 8 

 IX.  AGREEMENT, REPORTS AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS................................................................ 9 

 X.  TIMELY IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECTS AND USE OF FUNDS ............................................. 10 

 XI.  ELIGIBLE COSTS AND REIMBURSEMENTS ................................................................................. 11 
 

APPENDIX A - FY 2015-16 Air District TFCA County Program Manager Fund Policies ............. 13 

 

Page 60Page 60Page 60



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 3  
   

I. BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to the 1988 Cali fornia Clean A ir Act, the Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District (Air District) is required to periodically adopt a Clean A ir Plan ( CAP), which 
describes how the region will work toward compliance with State and Federal ambient air 
quality standards and make progress on climate protection. To reduce emi ssions from 
motor vehicles, the CA P includes transportation control measures (TCMs) and mobile 
source measures (MSMs). A TCM is defined as any strategy to reduce vehicle trips, vehicle 
use, vehicle miles traveled, vehicle idling, or traffic congestion for the purpose of reducing 
motor vehicle emissions. MSMs encourage the retirement of older, more polluting vehicles 
and the introduction of newer, less polluting motor vehicle technologies.  
 
To fund t he implementation of TCMs and MSMs,  the State Legislature, through AB 434 
(Sher; Statutes of 1991) and AB 414 (Sher, Statutes of 1995) , authorized the Air District to 
collect a fee of up to $4 per vehicle per year for reducing air pollution from motor vehicles 
and for related planning and programs.  This legislation requires the Air District to allocate 
40 percent of the revenue to an ov erall program manager i n each county.  The overall 
program manager must  be desi gnated by resolutions adopted by the county board of 
supervisors and the city councils of a majority of the cities representing a majority of the 
population.   
 
AB 414 references t he trip reduction requirements in the Congestion Management 
Program (CMP) legislation and states that Congestion Management Agencies (CMAs) in 
the Bay Area that are designated as AB 434 program managers “shall ensure t hat those 
funds are expended as part  of an ov erall program for improving air quality and for the 
purposes of this chapter (the CMP Statute).” The Air District has interpreted this language 
to allow a wi de variety of t ransportation control measures as now eligible for funding by 
program managers, including an expansion of eligible transit, rail and ferry projects. 
 
AB 414 also adds a requirement that designated county program managers adopt criteria 
for the expenditure of the county subventions and to review the expenditure of the funds.  
The content of the criteria and the review were not speci fied in the bill.  However, the Air 
District has speci fied that any criteria used by  a Program Manager must  allocate TFCA 
funding to projects that are: 1) eligible under the law,  2) reduce motor v ehicle emissions, 
3) implement the r elevant Transportation Control Measures and/or Mobile Source 
Measures in the Air District’s most recently approved CAP , and 4)  are not  planning or 
technical studies.  
 
II. ELIGIBLE PROJECTS 
Only projects that result in the reduction of motor vehicle emissions are eligible for TFCA 
funding. Projects must achieve surplus emi ssion reductions beyond what is currently 
required through regulations, ordinances, contracts, or other legally binding obligations at 
the time of the executi on of a project-spec ific fund transfer agreement between the 
county program manager (Alameda CTC) and the project sponsor.   
 
Consistent with the project types authorized under the California Health and Safety Code 
(HSC) Section 44241, projects and programs eligible for TFCA funds include: 

1. Implementation of rideshare programs; 

Page 61Page 61Page 61



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 4  
   

2. Purchase or lease of clean fuel buses for school districts and transit operators; 

3. Provision of local feeder bus or shuttle service to rail and ferry stations and to airports; 

4. Implementation and maintenance of local arterial traffic management, including, 
but not limited  to, signal timing, transit signal preemption, bus stop relocati on and 
“smart streets”; 

5. Implementation of rail-bus integration and regional transit information systems; 

6. Implementation of demonstration projects in telec ommuting and in congestion 
pricing of highways, bridges and public transit; 

7. Implementation of v ehicle-based projects to reduce mobi le source emi ssions, 
including, but not limited to light duty vehicles with a gross v ehicle weight (GVW) of 
10,000 pounds or lighter, engine repowers (subject to Air District approval on a case-
by-case basis), engine retrofits, fleet modernization, alternative fuels, and advanced 
technology demonstrations; 

8. Implementation of smoking vehicles program;  

9. Implementation of an automobi le buy-back scrappage program operated by a 
governmental agency; 

10. Implementation of bi cycle facility improvement projects that are i ncluded in an 
adopted countywide bicycle plan or congestion management program; and 

11. Design and constructi on by local publi c agencies of phy sical improvements that 
support development projects that achi eve motor v ehicle emission reductions. The 
projects and the physical improvements shall be i dentified in an approv ed area-
specific plan, redevelopment plan, general plan, or other similar plan. 

 
The Air District annually adopts policies for the County Program Manager Fund. The current 
Air District policies, included as Appendix A, further define eligible projects and also 
establish criteria for calculating emissions reductions (i.e., TFCA cost-effectiveness). Projects 
that are aut horized by HSC Sect ion 44241 and achi eve TFCA cost-effectiveness, but do 
not fully meet the Air District’s current TFCA policies are subject to Air District approval on a 
case-by-case basis. 
 
TFCA funds may not be used for: 

 Planning activities that are not directly related to the implementation of a specific 
project;  

 The purchase of personal computing equipment for an individual's home use; 

 Projects that provide a direct or indirect financial transit or rideshare subsidy for 
shuttle/feeder bus service exclusively for the grantee’s employees; or 

 Costs of developing TFCA grant applications. 
 
III. TFCA COST EFFECTIVENESS 
The Air District requires the ev aluation of all proposed and completed projects for TFCA 
cost-effectiveness. The Alameda CTC will measure cost-effectiveness  based on the ratio 
of the TFCA cost divided by the sum total tons of emissions (reactive organic gases (ROG), 

Page 62Page 62Page 62



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 5  
   

oxides of ni trogen (NOx), and weighted particulate matter ten microns in diameter and 
smaller “PM10”) that are estimated to be r educed by the project. For the purpose of 
calculating the TFCA cost-effectiveness, the TFCA project cost is the sum of the requested 
TFCA County Program Manager Funds and any  secured TFCA Regional Funds.  Air District-
generated forms are used t o calculate a cost  effectiveness result of $ TFCA/ton.  The 
Alameda CTC will only approve projects with a TFCA cost effectiveness, on an i ndividual 
project basis, that is equal to or less t han either: (1) the standard threshold of $90,000 of 
TFCA funds per ton of total ROG, NOx and weighted PM10 emissions reduced ($/ton), or (2) 
another threshold as identified in the current Air District Policies, included as Appendix A,  
for a specific project type.  Project sponsors are required to provide the data necessary to 
evaluate projects for TFCA cost-effectiveness. This may include, but is not limited to, transit 
ridership, verifiable survey data, bicycle counts, and results from comparable projects.  
 
Projects that provide a service, such as ridesharing programs and shut tle and feeder bus 
projects, are eli gible to apply  for a peri od of up to two ( 2) years, except for bike share 
projects, which are eligible to apply for a peri od of up t o five (5) years. TFCA funding for 
additional years must be re-applied for and re-evaluated in subsequent funding cycles.  
 
IV. ATTRIBUTES OF COST-EEFFECTIVE PROJECTS 
The following attributes of cost-effective projects are provided by the Air District to help 
project sponsors identify successful candidate projects for TFCA funding: 

 Project purchases or provides service using best available technology or cleanest 
vehicle (e.g., achieves significant petroleum reduction, utilizes vehicles that have 
2010 and newer engines, is not a Family Emission Limit (FEL) engine, and/or have 
zero tailpipe emissions). 

 Project is delivered or placed into service within one year and/or significantly in 
advance of regulatory changes (e.g., lower engine emission standards.). 

 Project requests relatively low amount of TFCA funds; Grantee provides significant 
matching funds. 

The following attributes are for specific project categories: 

 For shuttle/feeder bus service and ridesharing projects: 
o Project provides service to relatively large % of riders/participants that 

otherwise would have driven alone over a long distance. 
o Shuttle provides “first and last mile” connection to between employers and 

transit. 
o Shuttle travels relatively short distances between start and end point/ and 

has relatively low mileageminimal amount of non-service milesShuttle 
operates on a route (service and non-service miles) that is relatively short in 
distance. 

 For vehicle-based projects: 
o oVehicle has high operational use, annual mileage, and/or fuel consumption 

(e.g., taxis, transit fleets, utility vehicles). 

 For arterial management and smart growth projects: 
o Pre- and post-project counts demonstrate high usage and potential to 

Page 63Page 63Page 63



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 6  
   

affect mode or behavior shift that reduces emissions. 
o Project demonstrates a strong potential to reduce motor vehicle trips by 

significantly improving mobility via walking, bicycling, and improving transit. 
o Project is located along high volume transit corridors and/or is near major 

activity centers such as schools, transit centers, civic or retail centers. 
o Project is associated with a multi-modal transit center, supports high-density 

mixed-use development or communities. 
 
IV. GENERAL PROGRAM STRUCTURE 
As the designated county program manager for A lameda County, the Alameda CTC i s 
allocated 40% of the funds collected i n Alameda County. The A ir District will advance 
these funds to the Alameda CTC in biannual installments each fi scal year. The Alameda 
CTC must program the TFCA revenue received each year within the Air District’s allowable 
time period. Any unallocated funds may be reallocated by the Air District.   
 
The TFCA funds programmed by the Alameda CTC will be distributed as follows: 

 A maximum of 5% of the annual rev enue to the A lameda CTC for program 
implementation and administration.  

 As follows, 70% of the remaining funds to be allocated to the cities/county based on 
population: 

o A minimum of $10,000 to each jurisdiction.  
o City population will be updated annually based on State Department of 

Finance (DOF) estimates.  
o The 70% funds will be programmed annually in its own call for projects or in a 

coordinated call for projects with like funding sources. 
o A city or the county, with approval from the Alameda CTC, may choose to 

roll its annual 70% allocation into a future program year.    
o A jurisdiction may borrow against its projected future year share in order to 

use rolled over funds from other jurisdictions available in the current year. 
o Relinquished funds from a city’s or the county’s completed projects are 

made available to the same jurisdiction through its 70% allocation for 
reprogramming to future projects. 

o The Commission may also program against future TFCA revenue for projects 
that are larger than the annual funds available. 

 As follows, 30% of the remaining funds to be allocated to transit-related projects on a 
discretionary basis:  

o The 30% funds will be programmed annually in its own call for projects or in a 
coordinated call for projects with like funding sources. 

o Projects competing for the 30% discretionary funds will be evaluated based 
on the total emissions reductions projected as a result of the project.  
Projects will be prioritized based on the TFCA cost-effectiveness evaluation.  
When this calculation is not sufficient to prioritize candidate projects, the 
Alameda CTC Commission may also consider the emissions reductions per 

Page 64Page 64Page 64



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 7  
   

total project dollar invested for the project and the matching funds provided 
by the project sponsor. 

o Relinquished funds from completed discretionary projects are returned to the 
30% revenue for reprogramming in future funding cycles.   

o The Commission may also program against future TFCA revenue for projects 
that are larger than the annual funds available. 

 
The minimum TFCA funding request is $50,000, unless the project sponsor can show special 
and unusual circumstances to set this limit aside. 
 
V. PROGRAM SCHEDULE 
Below is the schedule for the FY 2015-16 TFCA program: 

 February Resolution adopted by Commission endorsing the programming of FY 
2015-16 TFCA funds consistent with the TFCA Expenditure Plan 
Application.    

 March Expenditure Plan Application due to Air District.   

 April Annual review of Alameda County TFCA Program Guidelines by 
Commission.  Alameda CTC will issue a call for projects. 

 May Project applications and semi-annual project status reports for active 
projects due to Alameda CTC. Alameda CTC submits Semi-annual 
Report to Air District by May 31st.   

 July Commission reviews summary of applications received.  

 September Program approval by Commission. 

 September For active projects, annual status reports due to Alameda CTC. 

 October Draft fund-transfer agreements distributed. Alameda CTC submits 
Annual Report to Air District by October 31st. 

 
Schedule subject to modification based on schedule changes i mposed by the Air District 
and/or previous programming actions by the Alameda CTC. 
 
VI. APPLICATION PROCESS 
Project sponsors shall complet e the Alameda CTC TFCA  funding application.  The 
application is updated annually and may be included in a coordinated call for projects 
process that consolidates like fund sources. The t ype of i nformation required for t he 
application includes the following: 

1.  Partner Agencies/Organizations: If t he project is sponsored by more than one 
agency, the applicant shall li st the partner agenci es, including the poi nt of 
contact(s).    

2.  TFCA Funding Category:  The applicant shall indicate whether the funds applied for 
are from the 7 0% city/county funds or the 30% transit discretionary funds. Project 
sponsors may choose t o rollover their 70% funds t o into a fut ure fiscal year 70% 
allocation. Project sponsors may also request to reprogram any remaining TFCA funds 
from previous projects or allocations in their jurisdiction, to the proposed project. 

Page 65Page 65Page 65



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 8  
   

3.  Funding Sources/Budget: Applicants shall include a funding plan listing all funding 
sources and amounts (including regional 60% TFCA funds and unsecured funds)  and 
reflects the total project cost by phase and cost type. 

4.  Schedule and Project  Milestones: Applicants shall include the project schedule and 
applicable milestones. 

5.  Project Data:  Applicants shall submit the r equested project-related data, which is  
necessary to determine eligibility and calculate the estimated emissions reductions 
and cost-effectiveness.  

6.  Transportation Control Measures (TCM) and Mobi le Source Measures ( MSM): 
Applicants shall li st the appli cable TCMs and/or MSMs from t he Air District’s most 
recently approved Clean Air Plan.  

 
VII. MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 
The Air District requires a pre- and post -project evaluation of emissions reductions. The first 
is an estimate of t he projected emissions reduction. Sponsors must  provide data for t his 
calculation in the project application. 
 
Sponsors must also conduct post-project monitoring and/or surv eys (known as t he 
monitoring requirements) as specified in the fund transfer agreement for the project for 
use in the required post-project evaluation of emissions reductions.  
 
Project sponsors requesting TFCA reimbursement for moni toring costs shall prov ide the 
estimated cost in the T FCA application. The cost of collecting data to fulfill the TFCA 
monitoring requirements may be considered an administrative project cost. Administrative 
project costs reimburseable by TFCA are limited to a  total of 5% of the tota l TFCA funds 
received.  
 
VIII. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
Each Project Sponsor must maintain general liability insurance, property insurance, workers 
compensation insurance and addi tional insurance as appropri ate for speci fic projects, 
with coverage amounts as specified in the fund-transfer agreement, throughout the life of 
the project.   

Verification of Coverage 
Project Sponsors are requi red to prov ide certificates and/or other ev idence of the 
insurance coverage prior to the execution of a fund-t ransfer agreement.  Certificates of 
insurance are to identify the Alameda CTC as an addi tional insured. Project Sponsors shall 
continue to provide certificates and/or other evidence of the insurance coverage, as 
required, throughout the project period and until the pr oject has been c ompleted.  
Certificates, policies and other ev idence provided shall speci fy that the Air District and 
Alameda CTC shall receive 30 days advanced notice of cancellation from the insurers. 

Minimum Scope of Insurance 
This section provides guidance on the insurance coverage and documentation typically 
required for TFCA  Program Manager Fund project s. Note that the Air District and/or 
Alameda CTC reserve the right to require different types or levels of insurance for specific 
projects.  

Page 66Page 66Page 66



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 9  
   

1.  Liability Insurance - with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, of the type 
usual and customary to the business of the project sponsor, and to the operation of 
the vehicles, vessels, engines or equipment operated by the project sponsor. 

2.  Property Insurance -  in an amount  of not  less t han the insurable value of project 
sponsor’s vehicles, vessels, engines or equipment funded under the A greement, and 
covering all ri sks of loss,  damage or dest ruction of such vehicles, vessels, engines or 
equipment. 

3.  Worker’s Compensation Insurance - for construction projects including but not limited 
to bike/pedestrian paths, bike la nes, smart growth and vehicle infrastructure, as 
required by California  law and employ ers insurance with a li mit not less t han 
$1,000,000. 

Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less t han A, 
VII. The Air District may, at its sole discretion, waive or alter this requirement or accept self-
insurance in lieu of any required policy of insurance.  
 
The following table lists the types of i nsurance coverage generally required for each 
project type. The requirements may differ in specific cases.  
 
 Project/ Contract Activity  Insurance Required 
 Vehicle Purchase and lease / Engine retrofits  Automobile Liability and 

 Automobile Physical Damage 

 Operation of shuttle services and vanpools  Commercial General Liability, 
 Automobile Liability, 
 Automobile Physical Damage, 

and 
 Workers Compensation (shuttle 

services).  
 Construction projects including:  bicycle/pedestrian 

overpass; bicycle facilities including bike paths, lanes, 
routes and cycle tracks/separated bikeways; smart 
growth and traffic calming; and vehicle infrastructure.  

 Commercial General Liability, 
 Automobile Liability and  
 Workers Compensation 

 Bicycle lockers, racks and bike share programs 
 Arterial management and signal timing 
 Transit marketing programs 
 Ridesharing projects 

 Commercial General Liability 

 Guaranteed Ride Home programs 
 Transit pass subsidy or commute incentives  

 None 

 
IX. AGREEMENT, REPORTS AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
The Air District and the Alameda CTC annually enter into a “mast er” fund t ransfer 
agreement and the execution of this agreement constitutes final approval and obligation 
for the Air District to fund a project. Any project costs incurred prior to the execution of the 
annual “master” agreement will not be reimbursed.  

Page 67Page 67Page 67



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 10  
   

 
Additionally, project sponsors must  enter into a project-specific fund transfer agreement 
with the Alameda CTC.  T he fund transfer  agreement i ncludes a descri ption of the 
project/program to be funded and speci fies the terms and conditions for the expenditure 
of funds, including audit requirements.  An executed agreement between the Alameda 
CTC and a project  sponsor i s required before any  reimbursements will be made.  The 
funding agreement between the A lameda CTC and project sponsor i s to be executed 
within three months from the date the funding agreement i s provided to the project 
sponsor.  A fter the three month deadline has passed,  any funding associated with an 
unexecuted funding agreement may  be consi dered unallocated and may  be 
reprogrammed. 
 
Project sponsors will be requi red to submit semi-annual progress report s to the Alameda 
CTC which provide project status and itemize the expenditure of funds for each project.  
Upon completion of t he project, project sponsors are also required to submit a final 
project report, which includes monitoring requirements. 
 
Project sponsors must  fulfill the funding agency credit requirements specified in the 
project-specific funding agreement, crediting both the Air District and Alameda CTC as 
funding agencies, and i s to prov ide, upon request, documentation that such credi t was 
given.    
 
The Air District may conduct performance and fi scal audits of TFCA -funded projects to 
ensure that all TFCA funds have been spent in accordance with the applicable Air District 
TFCA County Program Manager Policies, included as Appendix A, and executed T FCA 
funding agreement. Project sponsors will, for the duration of the project/program, and for 
three (3) years following completion, make av ailable to the Air District or t o an 
independent auditor, all records relat ing to expenses i ncurred in implementing the 
projects.   
 
X. TIMELY IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECTS AND USE OF FUNDS  
The enabling legislation requires project sponsors to encumber and expend funds wi thin 
two years, unless a time extension has been granted.  To ensure the timely implementation 
of projects and use of funds, the following TFCA Timely Use of Funds Policy, will be imposed 
for each program year: 

1. Within two months of receipt of funds from the Air District, the Alameda CTC will send 
out project-specific fund transfer agreements to project sponsors. 

2. Project sponsors must execute a project-spec ific fund transfer agreement wi th the 
Alameda CTC within three months of rece ipt of the agreement from the A lameda 
CTC.  The executed fund transfer agreement must contain an expendi ture plan for 
implementation of the project. After the d eadline has passed, any funding 
associated with an unexecuted fund transfer agreement may  be consi dered 
unallocated and may be reprogrammed. 

3.Project sponsors must initiate implementation of a project within three months of the 
date of receipt of the executed fund transfer  agreement from the A lameda CTC, 
unless an extended schedule has been a pproved in advance by the Alameda CTC. 

Page 68Page 68Page 68



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 11  
   

For the FY 2015-16 program,  the Alameda CTC wi ll not approve an extended 
schedule with a project start date beyond calendar year 2015 2016.  

4.Project sponsors must expend TFCA funding within two years from t he date of t he 
Alameda CTC’s first receipt of the TFCA revenue from the Air District. The Alameda 
CTC may, if it finds that significant progress has been made on a project, approve no 
more than two one-year schedule extensions for a project. Additional schedule 
extension requests requi re approval from the A lameda CTC Commission and Air 
District Board.   

5.Project sponsors must  submit requests for rei mbursement at least once  ev ery six 
months, but not more t han once per mont h. Costs incurred within a fi scal year, 
defined as t he period from July 1 st  to June 30th , are to be included in a 
reimbursement request submitted within two months after the end of the fiscal year in 
which the costs were i ncurred. All final requests for reimbursement are to be 
submitted no later than the submittal date of the Final Project Report. 

6. Project sponsors must submit semi-annual progress report s within the period 
established by the Air District. 

7.Project sponsors must submit required Final Project Reports (project monitoring reports) 
within three months of project completion or, as applicable, within three months after 
the post-project evaluation period as established in the project-specific fund transfer 
agreement. 

 
A monitoring report will be periodically presented to Alameda CTC Committees to inform 
sponsors of upcoming critical dates and deadlines. Any sponsor that does not comply with 
any of the a bove requirements within the es tablished time frames will be given written 
notice from the A lameda CTC that they have 60 days in w hich to comply.  Failure to 
comply within 60 days will result in the reprogramming of the TFCA funds allocated to that 
project, and the project sponsor will not be per mitted to apply for new projects until the 
sponsor has demonstrated to the Alameda CTC that steps have been t aken to avoid 
future violations of this policy.  
 
XI. ELIGIBLE COSTS AND REIMBURSEMENTS  
The date the a nnual “master” fund transfer agreement between the A ir District and 
Alameda CTC is executed sets the date from which eligible project costs may be incurred. 
Project sponsors may  only request reimbursement for eligible, documented project 
expenses after a project-speci fic fund tr ansfer agreement wi th the A lameda CTC has 
been executed. All reimbursable project costs mu st be identified in the budget from the 
approved grant application and conform t o the project scope i ncluded in the project 
expenditure plan of an executed project-spec ific fund transfer agreement. TFCA funds 
may be used for project implementation costs as follows:  

 Project implementation costs are charges associ ated with implementing a speci fic 
TFCA-funded project, including: 

o Documented hourly labor charges ( salaries, wages, and benefi ts) directly and 
solely related to implementation of the TFCA project, 

o Shuttle driver labor and equipment maintenance costs, 

o Capital costs, including equipment, procurement and installation, 

Page 69Page 69Page 69



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 12  
   

o Operator or personnel training directly related to project implementation, 

o Contractor/vendor labor charges related to the TFCA project, 

o Travel, and t raining and associated personnel costs that are di rectly related to 
the implementation of the TFCA-funded project (e.g., the c ost of training 
mechanics to service TFCA-funded natural gas clean air vehicles),  

o Indirect costs associated with implementing the project, including reasonable 
overhead costs (supported by a federally-approved Indirect Cost Allocation 
Plan (ICAP), incurred to provide a physical place of work (e.g., rent, utilities, 
office supplies), general support  services (e.g., payroll, reproduction) and 
managerial oversight, and 

o Sponsor may choose not to charge any indirect costs to a TFCA project. 

 Project administration costs include invoicing and reporting activities related to the 
administration of the TFCA funding may be considered eligible for reimbursement on 
a case-by-case basis provided the project sponsor request s and just ifies the 
reimbursement in the approved grant application and the costs are i dentified in the 
expenditure plan of the executed projec t-specific fund transfer agreement.  
Reimbursable administrative project costs are limited to a maximum of 5% of the total 
TFCA reimbursed per project. 

 
For each reimbursement request, a TFCA  "TFCA Grant Reimbursement Request" form i s 
required. The form must have an original signature by an authorized person, and should be 
sent to the attenti on of Alameda CTC’s Financial Officer. The requi red form wi ll be 
attached to the fund transfer agreement or otherwise provided by Alameda CTC.  Project 
sponsors must submit requests for reimbursement at least once every six months, but not 
more than once per month. Costs incurred within a fiscal year, defined as the period from 
July 1 to J une 30, are to be inc luded in a  reimbursement request submitted within two 
months following the end of t he fiscal year in which the costs were i ncurred. All final 
requests for reimbursement are to be s ubmitted no later than the submittal date of the 
Final Project Report. 
 
The reimbursement request form must be accompanied by the following documentation: 

1. Direct Costs:  Direct project costs are di rectly and solely  related to the 
implementation of the project.  Documentation includes copies of paid invoices and 
evidence of payment.   

2. Labor Charges:  Hourly labor charges are the sum of the salary paid to an employee 
plus the cost of fri nge benefits provided, expressed on t he basis of hours worked.  
Documentation of hourly charges includes payroll records indicating job t itle, hourly 
pay rate, and time s heets indicating time worked on project ( other accounting 
methods to allocate and document staff time will be considered on a case by case 
basis). 

3. Indirect Costs:  Reasonable indirect project implementation costs may be considered 
eligible for rei mbursement with TFCA funds on a case-by -case basis provided the 
project sponsor requests and justifies the reimbursement in the approved grant 
application. For the purposes of det ermining “reasonable” ov erhead costs, the 

Page 70Page 70Page 70



  

April 2015 Draft  Page 13  
   

Alameda CTC may allow indirect costs to be charged t o and reimbursed by TFCA if 
the sponsor has a federally -approved indirect rate, as identified through a federally-
approved Indirect Cost Allocation Plan ( ICAP).  The requi red documentation for 
indirect project costs would be si milar to what is required for direct costs and hourly 
labor charges. 

4. Administrative Costs:  Administrative costs that are reimbursable to a project sponsor 
are limited to a maximum of 5% of the to tal TFCA funds received and include TFCA 
invoicing and report ing activities. Administrative project costs may be considered 
eligible for rei mbursement with TFCA funds on a case-by -case basis provided the 
project sponsor requests and justifies the reimbursement in the approved grant 
application.  The required documentation for administrative project costs would be 
similar to what is required for direct costs and hourly labor charges. 

 
 

APPENDIX A – FY 2015-16 Air District TFCA County Program Manager Fund Policies  

 

Page 71Page 71Page 71



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 72Page 72Page 72



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 15 

Appendix D: Board-Adopted TFCA County Program Manager 

Fund Policies for FYE 2016 

Adopted November 17, 2014 
 

The following Policies apply only to the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) County Program 
Manager Fund. 

BASIC ELIGIBILITY  

1. Reduction of Emissions: Only projects that result in the reduction of motor vehicle 

emissions within the Air District’s jurisdiction are eligible.  

Projects must conform to the provisions of the California Health and Safety Code (HSC) 

sections 44220 et seq. and these Air District Board of Directors adopted TFCA County 

Program Manager Fund Policies for FYE 2016.  

Projects must achieve surplus emission reductions, i.e., reductions that are beyond what is 

required through regulations, ordinances, contracts, and other legally binding obligations 

at the time of the execution of a grant agreement between the County Program Manager 

and the grantee.  Projects must also achieve surplus emission reductions at the time of an 

amendment to a grant agreement if the amendment modifies the project scope or extends 

the project completion deadline.  

2. TFCA Cost-Effectiveness:  Projects must achieve TFCA cost-effectiveness, on an 

individual project basis, equal to or less than $90,000 of TFCA funds per ton of total 

emissions reduced, unless a different value is specified in the policy for that project type.  

(See “Eligible Project Categories” below.)  Cost-effectiveness is based on the ratio of 

TFCA funds divided by the sum total tons of reactive organic gases (ROG), oxides of 

nitrogen (NOx), and weighted particulate matter 10 microns in diameter and smaller 

(PM10) reduced ($/ton).  All TFCA-generated funds (e.g., TFCA Regional Funds, 

reprogrammed TFCA funds) that are awarded or applied to a project must be included in 

the evaluation.  For projects that involve more than one independent component (e.g., 

more than one vehicle purchased, more than one shuttle route), each component must 

achieve this cost-effectiveness requirement. 

County Program Manager administrative costs are excluded from the calculation of a 

project’s TFCA cost-effectiveness. 

3. Eligible Projects and Case-by-Case Approval: Eligible projects are those that conform 

to the provisions of the HSC section 44241, Air District Board adopted policies and Air 

District guidance.  On a case-by-case basis, County Program Managers must receive 

approval by the Air District for projects that are authorized by the HSC section 44241 and 

achieve Board-adopted TFCA cost-effectiveness but do not fully meet other Board-

adopted Policies.   

4. Consistent with Existing Plans and Programs: All projects must comply with the transportation 

control measures and mobile source measures included in the Air District's most recently 

approved plan for achieving and maintaining State and national ambient air quality standards, 

6.9B

Page 73Page 73Page 73



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 16 

which are adopted pursuant to HSC sections 40233, 40717 and 40919, and, when specified, with 

other adopted State, regional, and local plans and programs.  

5. Eligible Recipients: Grant recipients must be responsible for the implementation of the 

project, have the authority and capability to complete the project, and be an applicant in 

good standing with the Air District (Policy #8). 

A. Public agencies are eligible to apply for all project categories. 

B. Non-public entities are only eligible to apply for new alternative-fuel (light, medium, 

and heavy-duty) vehicle and infrastructure projects, and advanced technology 

demonstrations that are permitted pursuant to HSC section 44241(b)(7).   

6. Readiness: Projects must commence by the end of calendar year 2016.  “Commence” includes 

any preparatory actions in connection with the project’s operation or implementation.  For 

purposes of this policy, “commence” can mean the issuance of a purchase order to secure project 

vehicles and equipment, commencement of shuttle/feeder bus and ridesharing service, or the 

delivery of the award letter for a construction contract. 

7. Maximum Two Years Operating Costs: Projects that provide a service, such as ridesharing 

programs and shuttle and feeder bus projects, are eligible to apply for a period of up to two (2) 

years, except for bike share projects, which are eligible to apply for a period of up to five (5) 

years. Grant applicants that seek TFCA funds for additional years must reapply for funding in the 

subsequent funding cycles.   

APPLICANT IN GOOD STANDING  

8. Independent Air District Audit Findings and Determinations: Grantees who have failed either 

the fiscal audit or the performance audit for a prior TFCA-funded project awarded by either 

County Program Managers or the Air District are excluded from receiving an award of any TFCA 

funds for five (5) years from the date of the Air District’s final audit determination in accordance 

with HSC section 44242, or duration determined by the Air District Air Pollution Control Officer 

(APCO).  Existing TFCA funds already awarded to the project sponsor will not be released until 

all audit recommendations and remedies have been satisfactorily implemented.  A failed fiscal 

audit means a final audit report that includes an uncorrected audit finding that confirms an 

ineligible expenditure of TFCA funds.  A failed performance audit means that the program or 

project was not implemented in accordance with the applicable Funding Agreement or grant 

agreement. 

 A failed fiscal or performance audit of the County Program Manager or its grantee may subject 

the County Program Manager to a reduction of future revenue in an amount equal to the amount 

which was inappropriately expended pursuant to the provisions of HSC section 44242(c)(3). 

9. Authorization for County Program Manager to Proceed: Only a fully executed Funding 

Agreement (i.e., signed by both the Air District and the County Program Manager) constitutes the 

Air District’s award of County Program Manager Funds.  County Program Managers may only 

incur costs (i.e., contractually obligate itself to allocate County Program Manager Funds) after the 

Funding Agreement with the Air District has been executed. 

10. Insurance: Both the County Program Manager and each grantee must maintain general liability 

insurance, workers compensation insurance, and additional insurance as appropriate for specific 

Page 74Page 74Page 74



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 17 

projects, with required coverage amounts provided in Air District guidance and final amounts 

specified in the respective grant  agreements. 

INELIGIBLE PROJECTS 

11. Duplication: Grant applications for projects that provide additional TFCA funding for existing 

TFCA-funded projects (e.g., Bicycle Facility Program projects) that do not achieve additional 

emission reductions are ineligible.  Combining TFCA County Program Manager Funds with other 

TFCA-generated funds that broaden the scope of the existing project to achieve greater emission 

reductions is not considered project duplication. 

12. Planning Activities:  A grantee may not use any TFCA funds for planning related activities 

unless they are directly related to the implementation of a project or program that result in 

emission reductions.    

13. Employee Subsidies: Projects that provide a direct or indirect financial transit or rideshare 

subsidy or shuttle/feeder bus service exclusively to the grantee’s employees are not eligible. 

USE OF TFCA FUNDS 

14. Cost of Developing Proposals: Grantees may not use TFCA funds to cover the costs of 

developing grant applications for TFCA funds. 

15. Combined Funds: TFCA funds may be combined with other grants (e.g., with TFCA 

Regional Funds or State funds) to fund a project that is eligible and meets the criteria for 

all funding sources, unless it is otherwise prohibited (e.g., in the project-specific policies). 

For the purpose of calculating the TFCA cost-effectiveness, the TFCA’s portion of the 

project cost is the sum of TFCA County Program Manager Funds and TFCA Regional 

Funds. 

16. Administrative Costs: The County Program Manager may not expend more than five 

percent (5%) of its County Program Manager Funds for its administrative costs.  The 

County Program Manager’s costs to prepare and execute its Funding Agreement with the 

Air District are eligible administrative costs.  Interest earned on County Program Manager 

Funds shall not be included in the calculation of the administrative costs.  To be eligible 

for reimbursement, administrative costs must be clearly identified in the expenditure plan 

application and in the Funding Agreement, and must be reported to the Air District. 

17. Expend Funds within Two Years: County Program Manager Funds must be expended 

within two (2) years of receipt of the first transfer of funds from the Air District to the 

County Program Manager in the applicable fiscal year, unless a County Program Manager 

has made the determination based on an application for funding that the eligible project 

will take longer than two years to implement.  Additionally, a County Program Manager 

may, if it finds that significant progress has been made on a project, approve no more than 

two one-year schedule extensions for a project.  Any subsequent schedule extensions for 

projects can only be given on a case-by-case basis, if the Air District finds that significant 

progress has been made on a project, and the Funding Agreement is amended to reflect the 

revised schedule. 

18. Unallocated Funds:  Pursuant to HSC 44241(f), any County Program Manager Funds 

that are not allocated to a project within six months of the Air District Board of Directors 

Page 75Page 75Page 75



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 18 

approval of the County Program Manager’s Expenditure Plan may be allocated to eligible 

projects by the Air District.  The Air District shall make reasonable effort to award these 

funds to eligible projects in the Air District within the same county from which the funds 

originated. 

19. Incremental Cost (for the purchase or lease of new vehicles): For new vehicles, TFCA 

funds awarded may not exceed the incremental cost of a vehicle after all rebates, credits, 

and other incentives are applied.  Such financial incentives include manufacturer and 

local/state/federal rebates, tax credits, and cash equivalent incentives.  Incremental cost is 

the difference in cost between the purchase or lease price of the new vehicle, and its new 

conventional vehicle counterpart that meets the most current emissions standards at the 

time that the project is evaluated. 

20. Reserved. 

21. Reserved. 

ELIGIBLE PROJECT CATEGORIES  

22. Alternative Fuel Light-Duty Vehicles:  

Eligibility: For TFCA purposes, light-duty vehicles are those with a gross vehicle weight rating 

(GVWR) of 14,000 lbs. or lighter.  Eligible alternative light-duty vehicle types and equipment 

eligible for funding are: 

A. Purchase or lease of new hybrid-electric, electric, fuel cell, and CNG/LNG vehicles certified 

by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) as meeting established super ultra-low 

emission vehicle (SULEV), partial zero emission vehicle (PZEV), advanced technology-

partial zero emission vehicle (AT-PZEV), or zero emission vehicle (ZEV) standards.  

B. Purchase or lease of new electric neighborhood vehicles (NEV) as defined in the California 

Vehicle Code. 

Gasoline and diesel (non-hybrid) vehicles are not eligible for TFCA funds.  Funds are not 

available for non-fuel system upgrades, such as transmission and exhaust systems, and should not 

be included in the incremental cost of the project. 

TFCA funds awarded may not exceed incremental cost after all other applicable manufacturer and 

local/state rebates, tax credits, and cash equivalent incentives are applied. Incremental cost is the 

difference in cost between the purchase or lease price of the new vehicle and its new conventional 

vehicle counterpart that meets, but does not exceed, current emissions standards. 

Vehicles that are funded by the TFCA County Program Manager Fund are not eligible for 

additional funding from the TFCA Regional Fund.  

23. Reserved. 

24. Alternative Fuel Heavy-Duty Replacement Vehicles (high mileage):  

Page 76Page 76Page 76



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 19 

Eligibility: These projects are intended to accelerate the deployment of qualifying alternative fuel 

vehicles that operate within the Air District’s jurisdiction. All of the following additional 

conditions must be met for a project to be eligible for TFCA Funds:  

A. Vehicles purchased and/or leased have a GVWR greater than 14,000lbs; and  

B. Are 2014 model year or newer hybrid-electric, electric, CNG/LNG, and hydrogen fuel cell 

vehicles certified by the CARB.  

TFCA funds may not be used to pay for non-fuel system upgrades such as transmission and 

exhaust systems. 

 

Scrapping Requirements: Grantees with a fleet that includes model year 1998 or older 

heavy-duty diesel vehicles must scrap one model year 1998 or older heavy-duty diesel 

vehicle for each new vehicle purchased or leased under this grant. Costs related to the 

scrapping of heavy-duty vehicles are not eligible for reimbursement with TFCA funds. 

TFCA funds awarded may not exceed incremental cost after all other applicable manufacturer and 

local/state rebates, tax credits, and cash equivalent incentives are applied. Incremental cost is the 

difference in cost between the purchase or lease price of the vehicle and/or retrofit and its new 

conventional vehicle counterpart that meets, but does not exceed, current emissions standards. 

Vehicles that are funded by the TFCA County Program Manager Fund are not eligible for 

additional funding from the TFCA Regional Fund or other funding sources that claim emissions 

credits. 

25. Alternative Fuel Bus Replacement:   

Eligibility: For purposes of transit and school bus replacement projects, a bus is any vehicle 

designed, used, or maintained for carrying more than 15 persons, including the driver.  A vehicle 

designed, used, or maintained for carrying more than 10 persons, including the driver, which is 

used to transport persons for compensation or profit, or is used by any nonprofit organization or 

group, is also a bus.  A vanpool vehicle is not considered a bus.  Buses are subject to the same 

eligibility requirements and the same scrapping requirements listed in Policy #24.   

Vehicles that are funded by the TFCA County Program Manager Fund are not eligible for 

additional funding from the TFCA Regional Fund or other funding sources that claim emissions 

credits. 

26. Alternative Fuel Infrastructure:   

Eligibility: Eligible refueling infrastructure projects include new dispensing and charging 

facilities, or additional equipment or upgrades and improvements that expand access to 

existing alternative fuel fueling/charging sites (e.g., electric vehicle, CNG, hydrogen).  

This includes upgrading or modifying private fueling/charging sites or stations to allow 

public and/or shared fleet access.  TFCA funds may be used to cover the cost of 

equipment and installation.  TFCA funds may also be used to upgrade infrastructure 

projects previously funded with TFCA-generated funds as long as the equipment was 

Page 77Page 77Page 77



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 20 

maintained and has exceeded the duration of its years of effectiveness after being placed 

into service. 

TFCA-funded infrastructure projects must be available to and accessible by the public.  

Equipment and infrastructure must be designed, installed and maintained as required by 

the existing recognized codes and standards and approved by the local/state authority.  

TFCA funds may not be used to pay for fuel, electricity, operation, and maintenance costs. 

Projects that are funded by the TFCA County Program Manager Fund are not eligible for 

additional funding from the TFCA Regional Fund. 

27. Ridesharing Projects: Eligible ridesharing projects provide carpool, vanpool or other 

rideshare services.  Projects that provide a direct or indirect financial transit or rideshare 

subsidy are also eligible under this category. 

28. Shuttle/Feeder Bus Service:  

These projects are intended to reduce single-occupancy vehicle commute-hour trips by providing 

the short-distance connection between a mass transit hub and one or more commercial hub or 

employment centers.  All of the following conditions must be met for a project to be eligible for 

TFCA funds:   

A. The project’s route must provide connections only between mass transit hubs, e.g., a rail or 

Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) station, ferry or bus terminal or airport, and distinct commercial or 

employment areas. 

B. The project’s schedule must coordinate with the transit schedules of the connecting mass 

transit services.  

C. The service must be available for use by all members of the public. 

D. The project may not duplicate existing local transit service or service that existed along the 

project’s route within the last three years. “Duplication” of service means establishing a 

shuttle route where there is an existing transit service stop within 0.5 miles of the 

commercial hub or business center and that can be reached by pedestrians in 20 minutes or 

less. Projects that propose to increase service frequency to an area that has existing service 

may be considered for funding if the increased frequency would reduce the commuter’s 

average transit wait time to  thirty minutes or less. 

Project applicants that were awarded FYE 2014 or FYE 2015 TFCA Funds that propose 

identical routes in FYE 2015 or in FYE 2016 may request an exemption from the 

requirements of Policy 28.D. Provided they meet the following requirements: 1) No further 

TFCA project funding as of January 2017; 2) Submission of a financial plan to achieve 

financial self-sufficiency from TFCA funds within two years by demonstrating how they 

will come into compliance with this requirement or by securing non-TFCA Funds. The plan 

must document: i) the funding source(s) that will be targeted and the bases for eligibility of 

such funding, ii) the amounts from each funding source for which the applicant is eligible 

and that will be pursued; 3) the schedule (timeline) from application to receipt of such 

funds; 4) the process for securing each funding source; and 5) the specific efforts taken by 

the applicant to be eligible for such funds, and the status of the applicants’ application for 

securing funds.  

Page 78Page 78Page 78



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 21 

E. Shuttle/feeder bus service applicants must be either: 1) a public transit agency or transit 

district that directly operates the shuttle/feeder bus service; or (2) a city, county, or any other 

public agency. 

F. Existing projects must meet a cost-effectiveness of $125,000 per ton of emissions reduced.   

 

G. Pilot Shuttle/Feeder Bus Service: Pilot shuttle/feeder bus service projects are defined as 

routes that are at least 70% unique and where no other service was provided within the past 

three years.  In addition to meeting the conditions listed in Policy #28.A-F for shuttle/feeder 

bus service, pilot shuttle/feeder bus service, project applicants must also comply with the 

following: 

i. Provide data and other evidence demonstrating the public’s need for the service, 

including a demand assessment survey and letters of support from potential users. 

ii. Provide written documentation of plans for financing the service in the future; 

iii. Provide a letter from the local transit agency denying service to the project’s proposed 

service area, which includes the basis for denial of service to the proposed areas.  The 

applicant must demonstrate that the project applicant has attempted to coordinate service 

with the local service provider and has provided the results of the demand assessment 

survey to the local transit agency.  The applicant must provide the transit service 

provider’s evaluation of the need for the shuttle service to the proposed area.   

 

iv. Pilot projects located in Highly Impacted Communities as defined in the Air District 

Community Air Risk Evaluation (CARE) Program and/or a Planned or Potential Priority 

Development Area (PDA) may receive a maximum of three years of TFCA Funds under 

the Pilot designation and must meet the following requirements: 

a. During the first year of operation, projects must not exceed a cost-

effectiveness of $500,000/ton, 

b. By the end of the second year of operation, projects must not exceed a 

cost-effectiveness of $200,000/ton, and 

c. By the end of the third year of operation, projects must not exceed a 

cost-effectiveness of $125,000/ton and meet all of the requirements of Policy #28.A-F 

(existing shuttles). 

v. Projects located outside of CARE areas and PDAs may receive a maximum of two years 

of TFCA Funds under this designation and must meet the following requirements: 

a. By the end of the first year of operation, projects shall meet a cost-

effectiveness of $200,000/ton, and 

b. By the end of the second year of operation, projects shall cost $125,000 

or less per ton (cost-effectiveness rating) and shall meet all of the requirements of 

Policy #28. A-F (existing shuttles). 

29. Bicycle Projects:  

New bicycle facility projects that are included in an adopted countywide bicycle plan or 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) are eligible to receive TFCA funds.  Eligible 

Page 79Page 79Page 79



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 22 

projects are limited to the following types of bicycle facilities for public use that result in 

motor vehicle emission reductions:  

A. New Class-1 bicycle paths;  

B. New Class-2 bicycle lanes;  

C. New Class-3 bicycle routes;  

D. New Class-4 cycle tracks or separated bikeways;  

E. New bicycle boulevards; 

F. Bicycle racks, including bicycle racks on transit buses, trains, shuttle vehicles, and 

ferry vessels; 

G. Bicycle lockers; 

H. Capital costs for attended bicycle storage facilities; 

I. Purchase of two-wheeled or three-wheeled vehicles (self-propelled or electric), plus 

mounted equipment required for the intended service and helmets; and 

J. Development of a region-wide web-based bicycle trip planning system.   

All bicycle facility projects must, where applicable, be consistent with design standards 

published in the California Highway Design Manual, or conform to the provisions of the 

Protected Bikeway Act of 2014. 

30. Bay Area Bike Share 

These projects make bicycles available to individuals for shared use for completing first- and last-

mile trips in conjunction with regional transit and stand-alone short distance trips.  To be eligible 

for TFCA funds, bicycle share projects must work in unison with the existing Bay Area Bike 

Share Project by either increasing the fleet size within the initial participating service areas or 

expanding the existing service area to include additional Bay Area communities. Projects must 

have a completed and approved environmental plan and a suitability study demonstrating the 

viability of bicycle sharing.  Projects must meet a cost-effectiveness of $500,000/ton.  Projects 

may be awarded TFCA funds to pay for up to five years of operations. 

  

31. Arterial Management:  

Arterial management grant applications must identify a specific arterial segment and define what 

improvement(s) will be made to affect traffic flow on the identified arterial segment.  Projects 

that provide routine maintenance (e.g., responding to citizen complaints about malfunctioning 

signal equipment) are not eligible to receive TFCA funds.  Incident management projects on 

arterials are eligible to receive TFCA funds.  Transit improvement projects include, but are not 

limited to, bus rapid transit and transit priority projects.  For signal timing projects, TFCA funds 

may only be used for local arterial management projects where the affected arterial has an 

average daily traffic volume of 20,000 motor vehicles or more, or an average peak hour traffic 

volume of 2,000 motor vehicles or more (counting volume in both directions).  Each arterial 

segment must meet the cost-effectiveness requirement in Policy #2.  

32. Smart Growth/Traffic Calming:   

Physical improvements that support development projects and/or calm traffic, resulting in motor 

vehicle emission reductions, are eligible for TFCA funds, subject to the following conditions:  

Page 80Page 80Page 80



County Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan Guidance FYE 2016 

BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air   Page 23 

A.  The development project and the physical improvements must be identified in an approved 

area-specific plan, redevelopment plan, general plan, bicycle plan, pedestrian plan, traffic-

calming plan, or other similar plan; and  

B.  The project must implement one or more transportation control measures (TCMs) in the most 

recently adopted Air District plan for State and national ambient air quality standards.  

Pedestrian projects are eligible to receive TFCA funds.  

C. The project must have a completed and approved environmental plan. 

Traffic calming projects are limited to physical improvements that reduce vehicular speed by 

design and improve safety conditions for pedestrians, bicyclists or transit riders in residential 

retail, and employment areas.  

 

Page 81Page 81Page 81



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 82Page 82Page 82



Alameda CTC TFCA County Program Manager Fund:  FY 2015-16 Draft Fund Estimate

Population
(Estimate1)

%
Population

Total % of 
Funding

TFCA Funds 
Available

(new this FY)

Balance
from

Previous FY
Programmed

Last Cycle

Returned 
Funds from 

Closed 
Projects

FY 13-14 
Rollover
(Debits/
Credits)

TFCA Balance 
(New + Rollover)

75,988 4.83% 4.82% 63,961$            (300,577)$      -$                   -$                  (300,577)$      (236,616)$       
145,461 9.25% 9.23% 122,438$          290,477$       74,000$         -$                  216,477$       338,915$        
18,472 1.17% 1.17% 15,548$            1,348$           -$                   -$                  1,348$           16,896$          

117,372 7.46% 7.45% 98,795$            263,708$       317,000$       -$                  (53,292)$        45,503$          
53,462 3.40% 3.39% 45,000$            240,249$       90,000$         -$                  150,249$       195,249$        
10,491 0.67% 0.75% 10,000$            49,075$         -$                   -$                  49,075$         59,075$          

223,972 14.24% 14.22% 188,522$          534,614$       430,000$       84,170$         188,785$       377,307$        
151,037 9.60% 9.59% 127,131$          (469,101)$      50,000$         -$                  (519,101)$      (391,970)$       
84,852 5.39% 5.39% 71,422$            456,052$       -$                   -$                  456,052$       527,474$        
43,856 2.79% 2.78% 36,915$            305,624$       -$                   -$                  305,624$       342,539$        

404,355 25.70% 25.67% 340,355$          746,565$       1,030,116$    -$                  (283,551)$      56,804$          
11,023 0.70% 0.75% 10,000$            66,409$         -$                   -$                  66,409$         76,409$          
73,067 4.64% 4.64% 61,502$            (17,871)$        -$                   -$                  (17,871)$        43,631$          
87,691 5.57% 5.57% 73,812$            195,416$       -$                   -$                  195,416$       269,228$        
72,155 4.59% 4.58% 60,735$            281,548$       -$                   -$                  281,548$       342,282$        

1,573,254      100% 100% 1,326,135$       2,643,536$    1,991,116$    84,170$         736,590$       2,062,726$     

FY 2015-16 TFCA New Revenue 1,985,706.50$  

Less 5% for Program Administration (99,285.33)$     
Subtotal New Programming Capacity 1,886,421.18$  

Calendar Year 2014 Interest Earned 8,057.98$         

Total New Programming Capacity 1,894,479.16$  

 Totals 
 Cities/County

(Shares)
70% 

 Transit 
(Discretionary)

30% 

Total New Programming Capacity 1,894,479$          1,326,135$      568,344$         

Returned Funds from Closed Projects 143,873$             84,170$              59,702$              

FY 2014-15 Rollover (debit/credit) Adjustment -$                         652,420$            (652,420)$           

143,873$             736,590$            (592,718)$           

Adjusted Total Available to Program 2,038,352$       2,062,726$      (24,374)$          

Notes:
1.

2.

Pleasanton
San Leandro
Union City

TOTAL:  

Total Returned Funds & Rollover Adjustments2

Includes TFCA programming actions and returned funds from closed projects as of 12/31/14.

Dept. of Finance (www.dof.ca.gov) population estimates as of 1/01/2014 (released May 2014).

Dublin

Agency
Alameda
Alameda County
Albany
Berkeley

Emeryville
Fremont
Hayward
Livermore
Newark
Oakland
Piedmont

6.9C

Page 83Page 83Page 83

jtaylor
Typewritten Text

jtaylor
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 84Page 84Page 84



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.10_I-580EL_CT_Coop_Amends\6.10_I-
580EL_CT_Coop_Amends-final.docx 

 

Memorandum 

DATE:  April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-580 Corridor Projects: Cooperative Agreement Amendments with 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) for Additional 
Funding for Express Lane Implementation 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the following Cooperative Agreements with Caltrans for 
additional funding necessary to support Express Lane implementation: 

1. I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project (PN 720.5): Amendment No. 3 
to Cooperative Agreement No. 04-2440 with Caltrans for 
additional funding of $800,000; and 

2. I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Project (PN 724.5): Amendment No. 4 
to Cooperative Agreements No. 04-2396 with Caltrans for 
additional funding of $400,000. 

 

Summary  

The I-580 Express (HOT) Lanes Project proposes to convert the newly constructed 
eastbound High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lane from Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road 
to a double express lane facility and the westbound HOV lane, currently under 
construction, from Greenville Road to San Ramon Boulevard/Foothill Road to a single 
express lane facility. 

The civil infrastructure components necessary for the I-580 express lanes facility are 
currently being constructed through the Contract Change Order (CCO) process under 
the on-going construction contracts for the I-580 Corridor HOV projects. 

As the work has progressed, risks realized during construction of the express lane civil 
infrastructure require that additional funding capacity be provided to Caltrans. Alameda 
CTC included funds expressly for this purpose in the project funding plan. Amending the 
cooperative agreements (Attachments A and B) with Caltrans will allow for the 
completion of the construction of remaining express lanes civil work.   

Background 

In September 2013 and April 2014, the Commission approved actions authorizing all civil 
components of the I-580 Express Lanes Project to be implemented through the CCO 
process under the on-going construction contracts along the I-580 corridor, the I-580 
Westbound HOV (East and West Segments) and the I-580 Eastbound Auxiliary Lane 
Projects. The CCOs under these contracts are currently underway and expected to be 

6.10 

 

Page 85Page 85Page 85



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.10_I-580EL_CT_Coop_Amends\6.10_I-
580EL_CT_Coop_Amends-final.docx 

 
 

complete by mid-May 2015.  Performing this work by CCOs is critical in order to maintain 
the delivery schedule of the I-580 Express Lanes Project.  

Staff proposes to amend two out of three cooperative agreements (substantially as 
shown in Attachments A and B) for two of the above mentioned projects for a new 
combined total not-to-exceed amount of $27.85 million in local funds.  The funding for the 
CCO work is included in the funding plans for the I-580 Westbound HOV East and West 
Segments (PN: 724.4 and 724.5) and I-580 Eastbound Auxiliary Lane (PN: 720.5) Projects.  

The table below summarizes the construction contracts and cooperative agreements 
under which the CCO work is being performed, the requested amendment amounts, and 
the total estimated cost of each CCO. It is anticipated that Alameda CTC’s internal 
phase budgets for construction will need to be adjusted within the total amounts shown 
for each agreement’s reimbursements to match Caltrans’ actual expenditures in 
completing the express lane infrastructure scope for the corridor. The estimated cost 
distribution among the three cooperative agreements shown below is subject to change 
pending the final CCO cost agreement; however, the total cost will not exceed $27.85 
million. 

Construction Contract Cooperative 
Agreement 
No. 

Requested 
Amendment 

Amount 
(Proposed 

Action) 

Total Estimated 
Cost 

I-580 Westbound HOV - East Segment 04-2397-A3 $ 0 $13,500,000 

I-580 Westbound HOV - West Segment 04-2396-A4 $400,000 $8,650,000 

I-580 Eastbound Aux Lane 04-2440-A3 $800,000 $5,700,000 

 Total Cost  $27,850,000 

 

Fiscal Impact: The fiscal impact for approving the cooperative agreement amendments is 
$1.2 million and the action will authorize the encumbrance of additional project funding for 
subsequent expenditure.  This budget is included in the corresponding project funding plans 
and has been included in the Alameda CTC Adopted FY 2014-2015 Operating and Capital 
Program Budget.   

Attachments 

A. Draft Cooperative Agreement 04-2440-A3 (PN 720.5)  
B. Draft Cooperative Agreement 04-2396-A4 (PN 724.5) 

 

Page 86Page 86Page 86



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.10_I-580EL_CT_Coop_Amends\6.10_I-
580EL_CT_Coop_Amends-final.docx 

 
 

Staff Contact  

James O'Brien, Project Controls Team 

Stefan Garcia, Project Controls Team  

Page 87Page 87Page 87

mailto:jobrien@alamedactc.org
mailto:sgarcia@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 88Page 88Page 88



04-ALA-580-R7.8/19.1 
EA: 2908V 

Project ID: 0400000783 
District Agreement 04-2440-A3 

 

Page 1 of 4 

Draft 3-5-15 (AH) (EH) 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO AGREEMENT 04-2440
 
This Amendment No. 3 to Agreement (AMENDMENT 3), entered into, and effective on, 
______________________________, 2015, is between the State of California, acting through its 
Department of Transportation, referred to as CALTRANS, and:  
 

Alameda County Transportation Commission, a joint powers agency, referred to as 
ALAMEDA CTC.  

 
RECITALS 

 
1. CALTRANS and ALAMEDA CTC, collectively referred to as PARTNERS, entered into 

Agreement No. 04-2440, (AGREEMENT) on February 14, 2012.  AGREEMENT outlines 
the terms and conditions of cooperation between PARTNERS to advertise, award and 
administer the contract to add eastbound auxiliary lanes from Isabel Avenue to First Street 
along I-580 in Livermore, and to widen at spot locations within the above-referenced limits 
and construct other improvements that shall not preclude construction of the eastbound 
express lane (HOT) facility (collectively, “PROJECT”). 

 
2. PARTNERS entered into Amendment No. 1 (AMENDMENT 1) to AGREEMENT on 

November 8, 2013 to add $818,000 for Construction Capital and $82,000 for Construction 
Support for a total of $900,000 of Local funds for Construction.  The increase in funding was 
due to a change in the scope of PROJECT to include Contract Change Orders (CCOs) to 
install power and communication conduits, to install pull boxes, and to construct concrete 
pads for controller cabinets and service enclosures. 

 
3. PARTNERS also entered into Amendment No. 2 (AMENDMENT 2) to AGREEMENT on 

June 26, 2014, to revise the funding obligations on PROJECT.  Local funds in the amount of 
$3,500,000 for Construction Capital and $500,000 for Construction Support, for a total of 
$4,000,000, were added to the PROJECT funding under AMENDMENT 2.  The need for the 
additional Construction funding arose because certain Change Orders, referred to as A1 CCO 
and A2 CCO in AMENDMENT 2, had increased the PROJECT scope. 

 
4. PARTNERS have now agreed to (a) combine the scopes of A1 CCO and A2 CCO of 

AMENDMENT 2 into one Change Order, namely A3 CCO, (b) redirect all Local funds from 
A1 CCO and A2 CCO, as shown in AMENDMENT 2, to A3 CCO, and (c) add $800,000 of 
Local funds to supplement the A3 CCO funding.  In addition, for greater flexibility in fund 
utilization, PARTNERS wish to show only lump sum Local funds contribution in the revised 
funding for A3 CCO.  PARTNERS now wish to enter into AMENDMENT 3 to incorporate 
these funding revisions into AGREEMENT. 

 
 

6.10A

Page 89Page 89Page 89



District Agreement 04-2440-A3 
 

Page 2 of 4 

 
 
IT IS THEREFORE MUTUALLY AGREED: 
 
 
5. FUNDING SUMMARY of AGREEMENT, as amended under AMENDMENT 2, 

is hereby replaced in its entirety by FUNDING SUMMARY A3, attached to and 
made a part of AMENDMENT 3.  Any reference to FUNDING SUMMARY in 
AGREEMENT is now deemed to be a reference to FUNDING SUMMARY A3.  
Funding for A3 CCO shown in FUNDING SUMMARY A3 will be tracked 
separately for invoicing purposes. 

 
6. All other terms and conditions of AGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
7. AMENDMENT 3 is deemed to be included in, and made a part of, AGREEMENT. 
 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
The information provided below indicates the primary contact data for each PARTNER to this 
agreement. PARTNERS will notify each other in writing of any personnel or location changes. 
Contact information changes do not require an amendment to this agreement.  
 

The primary agreement contact person for CALTRANS is:  
Issa Bouri, Project Manager 
111 Grand Avenue 
Oakland, California 94612 
Office Phone: (510) 622-5220 
Email: issa_bouri@dot.ca.gov  
 
The primary agreement contact person for ALAMEDA CTC is:  
Stewart D. Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, California  94607 
Office Phone: (510) 208-7400 
Email: stewartng@alamedactc.org  
 
 

  

Page 90Page 90Page 90



District Agreement 04-2440-A3 
 

Page 3 of 4 

 
SIGNATURES 

 
PARTNERS declare that: 

1. Each PARTNER is an authorized legal entity under California state law. 
2. Each PARTNER has the authority to enter into AMENDMENT 3. 
3. The people signing AMENDMENT 3 have the authority to do so on behalf of their public 

agencies.  
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
By:   

Helena (Lenka) Culik-Caro 
Deputy District Director, Design 

 
 
CERTIFIED AS TO FUNDS: 
 
 
 
By:  

Jeffrey Armstrong 
District Budget Manager, Acting 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION 
 
 
 
By:______________________________ 

Arthur L. Dao 
Executive Director 

 
 
RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL 
 
 
 
By:____________________________ 

Stewart D. Ng 
Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

 
 
REVIEWED AS TO BUDGET/FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS 
 
 
 
By:______________________________ 

Patricia Reavey 
Director of Finance 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
 
 
 
By:______________________________ 

Wendel, Rosen, Black & Dean LLP 
Legal Counsel to Alameda CTC 

 

Page 91Page 91Page 91



04-ALA-580-R7.8/19.1 
EA: 2908V 

Project ID: 0400000783 
District Agreement 04-2440-A3 

 

Page 4 of 4 

 
FUNDING SUMMARY A3 

 
 
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Pa
rt

ne
r 

Fu
nd

 T
yp

e 

C
O

N
 C

ap
ita

l 

C
O

N
 

Su
pp

or
t 

C
O

N
 C

ap
ita

l 
&

 S
up

po
rt

 
fo

r A
3 

C
C

O
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 
Fu

nd
s 

Ty
pe

 

STATE CALTRANS 
Bond - Corridor 

Mobility 
Improvement 

$17,865,000 $2,535,000  $20,400,000 

STATE CALTRANS SHOPP $4,694,000 $0  $4,694,000 

LOCAL ALAMEDA CTC Local $8,285,000 $1,015,000  $9,300,000 

LOCAL 
A3 CCO ALAMEDA CTC Local - - $5,700,000 $5,700,000 

  Subtotals by 
Component $30,844,000 $3,550,000 $5,700,000 $40,094,000 

Page 92Page 92Page 92



04-ALA-580-R14.6/21.6 
EA: 2908E 

Project ID: 0400021249 
District Agreement 04-2396-A4 

 

Page 1 of 5 

 
Draft 3-9-15 (AH) 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO AGREEMENT 04-2396
 
This Amendment No. 4 to Agreement (AMENDMENT 4), entered into, and effective on, 
_____________________________, 2015, is between the State of California, acting 
through its Department of Transportation, referred to as CALTRANS, and: 
 

Alameda County Transportation Commission, a joint powers agency, referred to as 
ALAMEDA CTC.  

 
RECITALS 

 
1. CALTRANS and ALAMEDA CTC, collectively referred to as PARTNERS, entered 

into Cooperative Agreement No. 04-2396 (AGREEMENT) on December 7, 2011 
defining the terms and conditions of cooperation between PARTNERS to advertise, 
award and administer a construction contract for a westbound HOV lane from west of 
Isabel Avenue Overcrossing to San Ramon/Foothill Road Overcrossing and other 
ancillary improvements (aka West Segment), referred to as PROJECT. 
 

2. PARTNERS entered into Amendment No. 1 (AMENDMENT 1) to AGREEMENT 
on November 19, 2012, to allow ALAMEDA CTC to be reimbursed for project 
management and design support during Construction as a PROJECT cost.  A 
SPENDING SUMMARY for Construction Support was added to AGREEMENT. 
 

3. PARTNERS entered into Amendment No. 2 (AMENDMENT 2) to AGREEMENT 
on November 8, 2013, to add $680,000 for Construction Capital and $70,000 for 
Construction Support for a total of $750,000 of Local funds for Construction due to a 
change in the scope of PROJECT.  Contract Change Orders (CCOs) were issued to 
install power and communication conduits, to install pull boxes and construct 
concrete pads for controller cabinets and service enclosures, and to provide extra 
widening at the North Livermore Structure. 
 

4. PARTNERS also entered into Amendment No. 3 (AMENDMENT 3) to 
AGREEMENT to revise the funding obligations on PROJECT.  Local funds in the 
amount of $6,500,000 for Construction Capital and $1,000,000 for Construction 
Support, for a total of $7,500,000, were added to the PROJECT funding under 
AMENDMENT 3.  The need for the additional Construction funding arose because  
certain Change Orders, referred to as A2 CCO and A3 CCO in AMENDMENT 3, had 
increased the PROJECT scope.  Additionally, under AMENDMENT 3, new billing 
and payment articles were added to cover ALAMEDA CTC’s reimbursement of 
Local funds for Change Orders A2 CCO and A3 CCO.     

 

6.10B

Page 93Page 93Page 93



District Agreement 04-2396-A4 

Page 2 of 5 

5. PARTNERS have now agreed to (a) combine the scopes of A2 CCO and A3 CCO of 
AMENDMENT 3 into one Change Order, namely A4 CCO, (b) redirect all Local 
funds from A2 CCO and A3 CCO, as shown in AMENDMENT 3, to A4 CCO, (c) 
add $400,000 of Local funds to supplement the A4 CCO funding, and (d) extend the 
Obligation Completion date of the Agreement from December 31, 2014, which is 
past, until December 31, 2016.  In addition, PARTNERS agree that, for greater 
flexibility in fund utilization, the Local funds contribution for A4 CCO will only be 
shown as a lump sum in AMENDMENT 4.  PARTNERS now wish to enter into 
Amendment 4 to AGREEMENT (AMENDMENT 4) to incorporate these revisions to 
the PROJECT funding and OBLIGATION COMPLETION date. 

 
   

IT IS THEREFORE MUTUALLY AGREED: 
 
 
6. FUNDING SUMMARY of AGREEMENT, as amended under AMENDMENT 3, is 

hereby replaced in its entirety by FUNDING SUMMARY A4, attached to and made a 
part of AMENDMENT 4, and any reference to FUNDING SUMMARY in 
AGREEMENT is now deemed to be a reference to FUNDING SUMMARY A4.  
Funding for A4 CCO shown in FUNDING SUMMARY A4 will be tracked 
separately for invoicing purposes. 
 

7. Recital 6 of AGREEMENT is hereby revised in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
6. The estimated date for OBLIGATION COMPLETION is December 

31, 2016.  
 
8. All other terms and conditions of AGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
9. AMENDMENT 4 is deemed to be included in, and made a part of, AGREEMENT. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94Page 94Page 94



District Agreement 04-2396-A4 

Page 3 of 5 

 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

The information provided below indicates the primary contact data for each PARTNER 
to this agreement.  PARTNERS will notify each other in writing of any personnel or 
location changes.  Contact information changes do not require an amendment to this 
agreement. 
 

The primary agreement contact person for CALTRANS is:  
Issa Bouri, Project Manager 
111 Grand Avenue 
Oakland, California 94612 
Office Phone: (510) 622-5220 
Email: issa_bouri@dot.ca.gov 
 
The primary agreement contact person for ALAMEDA CTC is:  
Stewart D. Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, California  94607 
Office Phone: (510) 208-7400 
Email: stewartng@alamedactc.org 

Page 95Page 95Page 95



District Agreement 04-2396-A4 

Page 4 of 5 

 
SIGNATURES 

 
PARTNERS declare that: 

1. Each PARTNER is an authorized legal entity under California state law. 
2. Each PARTNER has the authority to enter into AMENDMENT 4. 
3. The people signing AMENDMENT 4 have the authority to do so on behalf of their public 

agencies.  
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
By:   

Helena (Lenka) Culik-Caro 
Deputy District Director, Design 

 
 
CERTIFIED AS TO FUNDS: 
 
 
 
By:  

Jeffrey Armstrong 
District Budget Manager, Acting 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION 
 
 
 
By:______________________________ 

Arthur L. Dao 
Executive Director 

 
 
RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL 
 
 
 
By:____________________________ 

Stewart D. Ng 
Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

 
 
REVIEWED AS TO BUDGET/FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS 
 
 
 
By:______________________________ 

Patricia Reavey 
Director of Finance 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
 
 
 
By:______________________________ 

Wendel, Rosen, Black & Dean LLP 
Legal Counsel to Alameda CTC 

Page 96Page 96Page 96



04-ALA-580-R14.6/21.6 
EA: 2908E 

Project ID: 0400021249 
District Agreement 04-2396-A4 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 
FUNDING SUMMARY A4 

 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Pa
rt

ne
r 

Fu
nd

 T
yp

e 

C
O

N
 C

ap
ita

l 

C
O

N
 

Su
pp

or
t 

C
O

N
 C

ap
ita

l 
&

 S
up

po
rt

 
fo

r A
4 

C
C

O
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 
Fu

nd
s 

Ty
pe

 

STATE CALTRANS Bond - Corridor 
Mobility Improvement $45,614,000 $6,750,000 - $52,364,000 

STATE CALTRANS SHOPP $13,000,000 $0 - $13,000,000 

STATE CALTRANS Traffic Congestion 
Relief Program $2,486,000 $0 - $2,486,000 

LOCAL 
A4 CCO ALAMEDA CTC Local - - $8,650,000 $8,650,000 

  Subtotals by 
Component $61,100,000 $6,750,000 $8,650,000 $76,500,000 

Page 97Page 97Page 97



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 98Page 98Page 98



 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.11_I-
680NB_Actions\6.11_680NB_5Actions_PPC20150401_final.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 

DATE:  April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-680 Northbound Express Lane Project(PN721.0): 2000 Measure B 
Funding Allocation, Cooperative Agreement, Contract Amendment 
and two (2) Request for Proposal (RFP) Actions  

RECOMMENDATIONS Approve the following actions to support delivery of the I-680 
Northbound Express Lane Project: 

1. Allocate $4,500,000 of 2000 Measure B funds to the project; 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 3 to 
Professional Services Agreement No. A11-0034 with WMH 
Corporation for an additional $450,000 for a total not-to-exceed 
amount of $7,061,366 for Project Approval / Environmental 
Document (PA/ED) phase of the project 

3. Authorize the release of a RFP and authorize the Executive Director 
to negotiate a Professional Services Agreement with the top 
ranked firm for the design (PS&E) phase of the project;  

4. Authorize the release of a RFP and authorize the Executive Director 
to negotiate a Professional Services Agreement with the top 
ranked firm for the System Integration and System Installation 
Services for the project; and 

5. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a Cooperative 
Agreement with the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) for the design (PS&E) phase of the project. 

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC is the implementing agency for the project development phases of the 
I-680 Northbound Express Lane project (PN 721.0). This project proposes to widen I-680 to 
construct a Northbound HOV/Express Lane from SR 237 to SR 84 in Santa Clara and 
Alameda Counties.  The 14-mile project is scheduled to be cleared environmentally in 
summer 2015 and construction is expected to begin in mid-2017.  In order to provide 
accelerated congestion relief in this corridor, staff has developed a conceptual plan to 
deliver an initial construction phase (Phase 1 Modified Project), which would eliminate the 
current bottlenecks that contribute significantly to the daily congestion that occurs on this 
stretch of freeway.   The Phase 1 Modified Project will add 8.2 miles of new high occupancy 
vehicle (HOV)/Express Lane and could begin construction by late 2016, approximately six 
months in advance of the current schedule for the 14-mile project.  

6.11 

 

Page 99Page 99Page 99



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.11_I-
680NB_Actions\6.11_680NB_5Actions_PPC20150401_final.docx 

 

To expedite the delivery of the Phase 1 Modified Project, staff requests the Commission’s 
approval of the following actions: 

1. Allocate $4,500,000 of 2000 Measure B funds to the project; 
2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services 

Agreement No. A11-0034 with WMH Corporation for an additional $450,000 for a total 
not-to-exceed amount of $7,061,366 for Project Approval / Environmental Document 
(PA/ED) Phase of the project; 

3. Authorize the release of a RFP and authorize the Executive Director to negotiate a 
Professional Services Agreement with the top ranked firm for the design (PS&E) phase 
of the project;  

4. Authorize the release of a RFP and authorize the Executive Director to negotiate a 
Professional Services Agreement with the top ranked firm for the System Integration 
and System Installation Services for the project; and  

5. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a Cooperative Agreement with the 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) for the design (PS&E) phase of the 
project. 

 

Background 

I-680 from SR 237 to SR 84 is the one of the most congested freeways in the San Francisco Bay 
Area.  With the recent economic boom which has revitalized the commute and goods 
movement in this corridor, the level of traffic congestion and delays within the corridor has 
increased.  Traffic forecasts for the project indicate that traffic congestion is expected to 
worsen in coming years.   

The I-680 Southbound HOV/Express Lane was opened to the public in 2010, and since its 
opening has reduced the traffic congestion and provided travel reliability for motorists 
traveling the corridor during the morning commute hours.  Currently, heavy afternoon traffic 
congestion exists on I-680 Northbound from Scotts Creek Boulevard to Andrade Road. 
Traffic studies have confirmed that the congestion is caused by two bottlenecks: the first 
near Washington Boulevard and the second at the lane drop at the truck scales (located 
between Sheridan Road and Andrade Road).  The I-680 Northbound HOV/Express Lane 
Project will widen I-680 from SR 237 in Santa Clara County to SR 84 in Alameda County 
and construct a 14-mile long northbound HOV/Express Lane in the corridor.  This project is 
currently in the final stage of the PA/ED Phase which is expected to complete in summer 
2015.   

 

Phase 1 Modified Project 

Given the magnitude of delays that motorists currently experience, a conceptual plan 
has been developed to deliver an initial construction phase (Phase 1 Modified Project), 
which will provide operational benefits with minimal construction funds to expedite the 
much needed congestion relief. The Phase 1 Modified Project would: 

Page 100Page 100Page 100



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.11_I-
680NB_Actions\6.11_680NB_5Actions_PPC20150401_final.docx 

 

• Add a new HOV/Express Lane between Auto Mall Parkway and SR 84 to eliminate 
the two bottlenecks near Washington Boulevard and at the lane drop at the truck 
scales (located between Sheridan Road and Andrade Road) 
 

• Incorporate a Caltrans pavement rehabilitation project (from Auto Mall Parkway to 
SR 84) into the project 

The accelerated schedule for the I-680 Northbound HOV/Express Lane - Phase 1 Modified 
Project is as follows: 

• Final PA/ED Approval: July 2015 
• Final PS&E Approval / Ready to List:  September 2016 
• Construction: Late 2016 - Late 2018 

Staff has been working with Caltrans to explore ways to meet the accelerated schedule 
by expediting project delivery and identify funding opportunities to advance the Phase 1 
Modified Project.  Implementation of the Phase 1 Modified Project is anticipated to save 
approximately $80,000,000 in capital costs, which would be achieved as follows: 

• Lane and shoulder width reductions, at levels acceptable to Caltrans, significantly 
reducing the amount of highway and structure widening; approximately 
$65,000,000 in capital cost savings; and 
 

• Minimize right of way acquisition, utility relocation work, and environmental impacts 
to further reduce capital costs up to $15,000,000, and accelerate the design and 
construction phase schedules by approximately six months. 
 

The total Preliminary Engineering/PS&E cost for Phase 1 Modified Project, including work by 
Caltrans, is currently estimated at $17,800,000.  Available funding for the Preliminary 
Engineering/PS&E work associated with the Phase 1 Modified Project is provided in Table A. 

 

TABLE A: “ Phase 1 Modified” Funding Summary  
 for Preliminary Engineering/PS&E 

SOURCE FUNDING PARTNER FUND TYPE TOTAL 

State Caltrans  TCRP $3,500,000 

State Caltrans* SHOPP* $2,800,000 

Local  Alameda CTC 2000 Measure B 
(Previously allocated) 

$2,000,000 

Local Alameda CTC 2014 Measure BB  
(Previously allocated) 

$5,000,000 

Local Alameda CTC 2000 Measure B  
(This item) 

$4,500,000 

Total $17,800,000 
* Includes federal funds 

Page 101Page 101Page 101



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.11_I-
680NB_Actions\6.11_680NB_5Actions_PPC20150401_final.docx 

 

 
In order to meet the accelerated project schedule and achieve the maximum benefits 
and savings for the project, it is recommended that WMH Corporation, currently under 
contract with Alameda CTC, provide additional professional preliminary engineering 
services to refine the Phase 1 Modified project.  WMH will refine the alternative to identify 
key design elements that will require working closely with Caltrans to obtain design 
exceptions and other necessary approvals.  Performing this work while a design 
consultant is being brought on board will afford longer lead times for review and 
approval by Caltrans than if it waited until the design consultant is under contract. 
 

Table B provides a summary of Agreement No. A11-0034 with WMH Corporation.  
 

 

TABLE B: Agreement No. A11-0034 Contract Summary 

Contract Status Work Description Value Total Contract Not-
to-Exceed Value 

Original 
Professional 
Services 
Agreement with 
WMH Corp. (A11-
0034), executed 
 August 2011 

Project Approval and 
Environmental Clearance 
(PA&ED)- 
Provide Preliminary 
Engineering and 
environmental studies to 
complete a combined PSR/PR 
and ND/FONSI 

$3,661,366 $3,661,366  

Amendment No. 1 
July 2013 

Provide additional preliminary 
engineering and 
environmental services to 
complete PSR/PR & and 
EIR/EA 

$2,500,000 $6,161,366 

Amendment No. 2 
December 2014 

Provide additional preliminary 
engineering & traffic studies; 
develop Phase 1 modified: 
Update technical studies, PR 
and ED and extend contract 
termination date until June 30, 
2016. 

 

 
$450,000 

 
$6,611,366 

Proposed 
Amendment No. 3 
April 2015 
(This Item) 

Provide additional preliminary 
engineering and study to 
refine Phase 1 Modified 
alternative  

 

$450,000 $7,061,366 

Total Amended Contract Not-to-Exceed Amount $7,061,366 

Page 102Page 102Page 102



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.11_I-
680NB_Actions\6.11_680NB_5Actions_PPC20150401_final.docx 

 

The release of a Request for Proposal (RFP) will initiate the procurement of a design 
consultant for the next phase of project delivery.  
 
The release of the RFP for the System Integrator and System Installation will allow the 
successful proposer to begin work for the tolling system during the project design phase.  
The system design needs to be integrated into the final roadway design for successful 
implementation of toll operations on northbound I-680.  The selected consultant will 
design the system, develop software and hardware, conduct factory acceptance tests, 
install toll equipment, integrate the toll systems with the roadway infrastructure, conduct site 
acceptance tests, including testing interfacing requirements with the toll collection and 
customer services provider and Caltrans, and open the facility to the travelling public.  
  
Alameda CTC, in partnership with Caltrans, is the implementing agency for preliminary 
engineering, environmental studies, design, right-of-way acquisition, and utility relocation.  
The Cooperative Agreement is a required action to move the project into the PS&E phase by 
establishing roles, responsibilities, and funding obligations between Alameda CTC and 
Caltrans.  
 
There are no Levine Act conflicts with the recommended actions. 
 
Fiscal Impact: The fiscal impact of the recommended actions will authorize the 
encumbrance of $4,500,000 of 2000 Measure B funding for subsequent expenditure. This 
budget is included in the appropriate project funding plans and has been included in the 
Alameda CTC Adopted FY 2014-15 Operating and Capital Program Budget.  
 

Staff Contact  

James O'Brien, Project Controls Team  

Susan Chang, Project Controls Team 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 103Page 103Page 103

mailto:jobrien@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 104Page 104Page 104



 
 
 

  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.12_WebsterSMARTCorridor_ContractAcceptance\6.12_Webster_NoticeOfCompletion_Reso_2015331.docx 

 

Memorandum 6.12 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Webster Street SMART Corridor Project (PN 740.0): Construction 
Contract Acceptance (Alameda CTC Resolution 15-0016) 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Alameda CTC Resolution 15-0016 which authorizes acceptance 
of the completed construction contract with Amland Corporation for 
the Webster Street SMART Corridor Project. 

 

Summary  

Alameda CTC is the sponsor of the Webster Street SMART Corridor Project in Alameda 
which expands the existing East Bay SMART Corridor System along Webster Street in the 
city of Alameda.   

It is recommended that the Commission accept the completed construction contract with 
Amland Corporation for the Webster Street SMART Corridor Project (PN 740.0) through the 
adoption of Alameda CTC Resolution 15-016. 

Background 

The Alameda CTC in partnership with the City of Alameda, Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC), Caltrans and AC Transit are implementing the Webster Street SMART 
Corridor Project.  This project is an expansion of the existing East Bay SMART Corridors 
System.  The project installed Closed Circuit Television Cameras (CCTV) for monitoring, 
Video Image Detection (VID) Systems for actuating pre-timed traffic signals, and 
Microwave Vehicle Detection System (MVDS) devices along Webster Street in the city of 
Alameda.  The field elements connect to a communications network that will transmit the 
data to the City of Alameda Traffic Management Center (TMC).  The City of Alameda will 
be responsible for the Operations and Maintenance of this corridor. 

The Webster Street SMART Corridor Project opened bids on August 28, 2012.  On September 
27, 2012, the CMA Board awarded contract A11-0062 in the amount of $634,000 to Amland 
Corporation.  At that time the CMA Board also allocated $63,000 for contingency and 
supplemental work.  A summary of contract cost at completion is provided below: 

 

 

Page 105Page 105Page 105



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.12_WebsterSMARTCorridor_ContractAcceptance\6.12_Webster_NoticeOfCompletion_Reso_2015331.docx 

 

Contract Summary 

Awarded Contract Amount: $   634,000.00 

Total CCO Amount:   $     18,226.00 

Total:     $    652,226.00 

On March 9, 2015, Amland Corporation completed all contract work in accordance with the 
plans and specifications. The Construction Manager has recommended the acceptance of 
the completed contract as the Contractor has satisfied the contract requirements and 
completed the punch list items established in coordination with City of Alameda. 

A total of $1.8 Million of Federal Earmark, Federal CMAQ, VRF, FGCA, EECBG and City funds 
were programmed for the Webster Street SMART Corridor Project.  There will be 
approximately $73,000 in project savings after project closeout.   

Fiscal Impact:  The project contract was completed within the allocated budget for 
construction including contingencies. There are no financial impacts to the approved 
Alameda CTC budget due to these actions. 

Attachment 

A. Alameda CTC Resolution 15-016 

 

Staff Contact  

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

Connie Fremier, Project Controls Team 

 

Page 106Page 106Page 106

mailto:james@advancepdi.com
mailto:gsidhu@alamedactc.org


 
 
       ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

RESOLUTION 15-016 
 
Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of the Completed Construction 
Contract with Amland Corporation for the Webster Street SMART Corridor 
Project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Trish Spencer  
 
City of Albany 
Vice Mayor Peter Maas 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor David Haubert 
 
City of Emeryville 
Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor Bill Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Mayor Barbara Halliday 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Vice Mayor Larry Reid 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor Margaret Fujioka 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Mayor Pauline Cutter 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 
 

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2012, the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission (Alameda CTC) entered into Agreement No. A11-0062 with 
Amland Corporation (“Contractor”) for the Webster Street SMART Corridor 
Project (PN 740.0) (“Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has completed all final “punch list” items, and 
Alameda CTC, and the City of Alameda have completed final inspections 
which have indicated that the Project has been constructed in conformity 
with the Agreement for Construction with the exception of presently 
unknown defects not disclosed in the final inspection; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has requested a Notice of Completion be filed 
and final payment be made; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project was acknowledged as completed on March 9, 2015; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 
The Alameda CTC hereby accepts the Project specified in Agreement No. 
A11-0062. 
 
The Project was completed on March 9, 2015. 
 
The final contract price is the sum of $652,226. 
 
The Clerk of the Alameda CTC is hereby directed to file a Notice of 
Completion specifying April 23, 2015, as the completion date for this Project, 
copies of said Notice to be recorded in the Official Records of Alameda 
County, in the manner provided by law. 
 
DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda CTC at the regular meeting of 
the Board held on Thursday, April 23, 2015 in Oakland, California, by the 
following votes: 
 
AYES:   NOES:   ABSTAIN:  ABSENT: 
 
     

Scott Haggerty 
Chair, Alameda CTC 

   Vanessa Lee 
Clerk of the Commission 

6.12A

Page 107Page 107Page 107



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 108Page 108Page 108



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.13_Administrative_Amendments\6.13_Administrative_Amendments final.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.13 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Administrative Amendments to Various Project Agreements 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Executive Director to execute administrative 
amendments to various project agreements in support of the Alameda 
CTC’s Capital Projects and Program delivery commitments. 

 

Summary  

Alameda CTC enters into agreements/contracts with consultants and local, regional, 
state, and federal entities, as required, to provide the services, or to reimburse project 
expenditures incurred by project sponsors, necessary to meet the Capital Projects and 
Program delivery commitments. Agreements are entered into based upon estimated 
known project needs for scope, cost, and schedule. 

The administrative amendment requests shown in Table A have been reviewed and it has 
been determined that the requests will not compromise the project deliverables.   

Staff recommends the approval of the administrative amendments requests listed in Table 
A. 

Background 

Amendments are considered “administrative” if they do not result in an increase to the 
existing allocation authority approved for use by a specific entity for a specific project.  
Examples of administrative amendments include time extensions and project task/phase 
budget realignments which do not require additional commitment beyond the total 
amount currently encumbered in the agreement, or beyond the cumulative total amount 
encumbered in multiple agreements (for cases involving multiple agreements for a given 
project or program). 

Agreements are entered into based upon estimated known project needs for scope, 
cost, and schedule.  Throughout the life of a project, situations may arise that warrant the 
need for a time extension or a realignment of project phase/task budgets.   

The most common justifications for a time extension include (1) project delays and (2) 
extended project closeout activities.   

Page 109Page 109Page 109



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.13_Administrative_Amendments\6.13_Administrative_Amendments final.docx 

 

 

The most common justifications for project task/phase budget realignments include 1) 
movement of funds to comply with timely use of funds provisions; 2) addition of newly 
obtained project funding; and 3) shifting unused phase balances to other phases for the 
same project. 

Requests are evaluated to ensure that the associated project deliverable(s) are not 
compromised.  The administrative amendment requests identified in Table A have been 
evaluated and are recommended for approval.  

There is no Levine Act conflict. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. 

Attachments 

A. Table A:  Administrative Amendment Summary 
 

Staff Contact  

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

Trinity Nguyen, Sr. Transportation Engineer 

Page 110Page 110Page 110

mailto:james@advancepdi.com
mailto:tnguyen@alamedactc.org


A. Table A:  Administrative Amendment Summary 
 

  

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\PPC\20150413\5.9_Administrative_Amendments\SourceDocs\5.9A_AttachmentA.docx  

 

Index 
No. 

Firm/Agency Project/Services Agreement 
No. 

Request Reason Code Fiscal Impact 

1 Alameda 
County 

Castro Valley 
Circulation Study 

A07-0002 Phase budget realignment:  
Move $71,845.39 from scoping to 
environmental and design phases 

5 None 

2 BART I-580 Corridor/BART to 
Livermore Studies 

A08-0048 
A08-0005 

Phase budget realignment: 
Move $140,531.60 between agreements 
from scoping to environmental phase 

5 None 

 
(1) Project delays. 
(2) Extended project closeout activities. 
(3) Movement of funds to comply with timely use of funds provisions. 
(4) Addition of newly obtained project funding. 
(5) Unused phase balances to other project phase(s). 
 
 

 

6.13A

Page 111Page 111Page 111



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

6.13A

Page 112Page 112Page 112



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.14_Contract_Amendments\6.14_Contract_Amendments.docx  

 

 

Memorandum 6.14 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Contract Amendments to Administrative Professional Services 
Contracts with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc., GenSpring Family 
Offices, LLC, and Vavrinek, Trine, Day, & Co., LLP 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Executive Director to execute contract amendments to 
three administrative professional services contracts with Acumen 
Building Enterprise, Inc., GenSpring Family Offices, LLC, and Vavrinek, 
Trine, Day, & Co., LLP 

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC contracts on a periodic basis with a number of professional services 
consultant firms to assist staff in providing a range of general administration services, 
including, but not limited to, general counsel, legislative advocacy, planning development, 
outreach, technical assistance, project and program-wide management, and administrative 
support services. Involvement of the private sector is critical to the success of Alameda CTC 
and its work in delivering effective, high quality transportation programs and projects in 
Alameda County. 

Staff’s recommendations will authorize the Executive Director to execute amendments to the 
following three existing professional services contracts that are set to expire on June 30, 2015: 

1. Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. A11-0058 with Vavrinek, 
Trine, Day & Co., LLP for independent financial auditing services for an additional 
amount of $157,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $377,500 and a contract time 
extension to June 30, 2017; 

2. Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. A13-0004 with GenSpring 
Family Offices, LLC for investment advisory services for an additional amount of 
$300,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $470,000 and a contract time extension 
to June 30, 2018; and 

3. Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. A13-0088 with Acumen 
Building Enterprise, Inc. for policy, legislation, communications, and administrative 
support services for an additional amount of $1,700,000 for a total not-to-exceed 
amount of $3,820,948 and a contract time extension to June 30, 2016.  

 
  

Page 113Page 113Page 113



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.14_Contract_Amendments\6.14_Contract_Amendments.docx 

 

 

Background 

The Alameda CTC contracts on a periodic basis with a number of professional services 
consultant firms to assist staff in providing administration, planning and policy, programming, 
project management and controls, and program-wide support services. The background 
and recommendations for each of the administration support professional services contracts 
are discussed below. 

1. Independent Financial Auditing Services – The independent financial auditor provides the 
required independent audits of Alameda CTC and the Sunol SMART Carpool Lane Joint 
Powers Authority, and issuance of their opinions on separate audited financial reports, 
completion of the Federal Single Audit report and a report on Sales Tax Authority’s 
Limitations Worksheet, which attests to the agency’s compliance with the administrative 
cost limitations required by the Transportation Expenditure Plan and the Public Utilities 
Commission.  An RFP to obtain a consultant to provide these services was issued in 
December 2011, and Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP was awarded a contract after being 
selected as the top-ranked firm in April 2012. The original term of the professional services 
contract was for three years, with the option to continue for additional years of services 
for a term totaling no more than five years ending FY2016-17. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 
A11-0058 with Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP for independent financial auditing services 
for an additional amount of $157,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $377,500 and a 
contract time extension to June 30, 2017. 

2. Investment Advisory Services – The investment advisor currently manages a $177 million 
portfolio in accordance with the Commission approved Investment Policy.  However this 
balance is expected to grow once collections begin for Measure BB.  The advisory 
services are performed at a cost of about three to six basis points (one-hundredth of one 
percent) times the invested amount.  Alameda CTC also utilizes the State Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) cash pool for its investment needs.  An RFP for these services was 
last issued in March 2013, and GenSpring Family Offices, LLC, a registered investment 
advisor and SunTrust Bank affiliate, was awarded a contract after being selected as the 
top-ranked firm in May 2013. The original term of the professional services contract was for 
two years, with the option to continue for additional years of services for a term totaling 
no more than five years ending FY2017-18. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 
A13-0004 with GenSpring Family Offices, LLC for investment advisory services for an 
additional amount of $300,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $470,000 and a 
contract time extension to June 30, 2018. 
 

3. Policy, Legislation, Communications, and Administrative Support – Acumen Building 
Enterprises, Inc. (ABE), an Alameda CTC certified SLBE firm with offices in Oakland, 
California, has been providing policy, legislation, communications, and administrative 

Page 114Page 114Page 114



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent 
Items\6.14_Contract_Amendments\6.14_Contract_Amendments.docx 

 

 

support services since undergoing a formal competitive bid process in September 2013.  
These services include, but are not limited to, providing technical and administrative 
support for policy, legislative, communications, and outreach, general meetings support 
to Alameda CTC’s Community Advisory Committees, and assistance for planning 
activities such as the One Bay Area Grant Program implementation and monitoring, 
development of a PDA investment and growth strategy, and other clerical services. The 
original term of the professional services contract was for one and a half years, with the 
option to continue for additional years of services for a term totaling no more than five 
years ending FY2017-18. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 
A13-0088 with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc. for policy, legislation, communications, 
and administrative support services for an additional amount of $1,700,000 for a total not-
to-exceed amount of $3,820,948 and a contract time extension to June 30, 2016. 

Fiscal Impact 

The fiscal impact to the FY2015-16 budget for approving the three contract amendments is 
$1,871,500, and the budget will be included in the Alameda CTC’s consolidated FY2015-16 
proposed budget for Commission approval. 

Staff Contact 

Seung Cho, Contracting, Administration and Fiscal Resource Manager 

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance and Administration 

 

Page 115Page 115Page 115

mailto:scho@alamedactc.org
mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 116Page 116Page 116



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.15 
HRA_Amendment\6.15_HRA_Plan_Amendment_Staff_Report.docx 

 

Memorandum 6.15 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Amendment to the Alameda CTC Health Reimbursement Arrangement 
(HRA) Plan for Retirees 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve and adopt an amendment to the Alameda CTC Health 
Reimbursement Arrangement Plan for retirees. 

 

Summary 

The Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) Plan is a premium reimbursement plan for 
retiree health care premiums.  To be eligible for retiree health coverage under the currently 
adopted plan, a retiree must be vested with at least 10 years of CalPERS service, five of 
which must be for employment with the Alameda CTC or its predecessor agencies.  With 10 
years of CalPERS service, a retiree would be 50 percent vested for retiree health benefits 
increasing by 5 percent with each additional year of service up to 20 years.   

The HRA Plan is proposed to be amended to incorporate a second group of retirees 
which would allow the Alameda CTC to attract employees with significant experience in 
the delivery and implementation of transportation projects and programs and other 
related specialties from agencies that provide services similar to the services provided by 
the Alameda CTC.  The amendment would add a second group of retirees which would 
allow a retiree from the Alameda CTC with at least 25 years of CalPERS service, two of which 
must be for employment with the Alameda CTC, to be eligible for retiree health coverage.  
The vesting increases would be the same for this group as the existing group.  This is a 
necessary amendment which will help attract the talent needed in some project and 
program delivery situations.  Otherwise these experienced candidates would not be 
interested in becoming Alameda CTC employees because they would lose their health 
benefits, which they had previously earned, upon retirement. 

While the Finance and Administration Committee (FAC) approved this item to be 
recommended to the Commission for approval, they requested that staff include additional 
financial analysis to show the increase in cost over time, if any, which would arise from this 
change to the HRA Plan.  After reviewing the analysis prepared for a single employee 
(Attachment C), staff has determined that the present value of the increase in cost to the 
HRA Plan over the next 26 years for one employee in the proposed new category would be 
approximately $53,000. Staff believes that this cost would be more than offset by the 

Page 117Page 117Page 117



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\Consent Items\6.15 
HRA_Amendment\6.15_HRA_Plan_Amendment_Staff_Report.docx 

 

combined value of the benefits to projects in terms of cost and time efficiency as well as 
savings if an employee in this category decided to continue employment in order to vest 
under the criteria existing under the current plan.  

Background 

The Alameda CTC contributes only the required minimum contribution amount directly to 
CalPERS for retiree’s health premiums ($122 per month in 2015).  CalPERS requires that the 
remaining premium costs be deducted directly from the retiree’s monthly retirement check 
under the CalPERS pension plan.  Once CalPERS takes this deduction, the Alameda CTC’s 
HRA administrator will reimburse each retiree for the deduction, up to the annually 
determined amount set by the Commission, which is $1,307 per retiree per month for 2015 
($1,428.90 Kaiser Bay Area Employee [retiree] Plus One Rate, less $122 PEMHCA-required 
minimum contribution).  If a retiree’s elected health coverage costs exceed the amount 
approved by the Commission, the retiree will be required to pay for the additional amount 
from his or her own funds. 

Fiscal Impact  

There is no direct fiscal impact to the FY2014-15 or FY2015-16 budget related to the approval 
and adoption of this amendment to the HRA plan for retirees.  

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC Health Reimbursement Arrangement (Draft Amendment) 
B. Resolution Approving and Adopting an Amendment to the Health Reimbursement 

Arrangement Plan for Retirees 

Staff Contact  

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance and Administration 

 

Page 118Page 118Page 118

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org
mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


000258.0001\3884373.1  

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGEMENT 

 
 
 
 

As Amended Effective January 1, 2015 

 

 

 

6.15A

Page 119Page 119Page 119



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

 -i-  
 
 

000258.0001\3884373.1  

ARTICLE I. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF THE PLAN    1 

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS         1 

ARTICLE III. ELIGIBILITY, PARTICIPATION, AND COVERAGE    3 

ARTICLE IV. VESTING AND BENEFITS       4 

ARTICLE V. BENEFIT FUNDING        5 

ARTICLE VI. ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN      6 

ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE PLAN    8 

ARTICLE VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS       9 

 

Page 120Page 120Page 120



 

1 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGEMENT 

As Amended Effective January 1, 2015 

 

ARTICLE I. 
ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF THE PLAN 

The Alameda County Transportation Commission (the Employer) provides post-retirement 
health benefits to its Eligible Retirees.  The Employer hereby amends the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission Retiree Health Reimbursement Arrangement (the Plan), effective 
on February 1, 2012 (the Effective Date) to enable Eligible Retirees and their eligible 
Beneficiaries to pay for the health care benefits described herein. This amendment shall be 
effective as of January 1, 2015 (the Amendment Date). 

The Plan is intended to qualify as a health reimbursement arrangement within the meaning of 
Internal Revenue Service Notice 2002-45, and it is intended that the benefits under the Plan be 
tax-free to the maximum extent permitted under the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations 
issued thereunder.  The Plan will be administered and interpreted to accomplish that objective.  
Capitalized terms used in this Plan that are not otherwise defined have the meanings set forth in 
Article II.  

ARTICLE II. 
DEFINITIONS 

2.1 “Amendment Date” means January 1, 2015. 

2.2  “Beneficiary” means any Eligible Retiree's surviving family member who qualifies as 
an "annuitant” under California Government Code section 22760(c) or (h). 

2.3 “Board” means the Board of Commissioners of the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission. 

2.4 “CalPERS” means the California Public Employees’ Retirement System in which the 
Employer is a participating agency.   

2.5 “CalPERS Health” means the health care program made available by the Employer to 
Eligible Retirees under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act, codified 
under sections 22750 - 22948 of the California Government Code, which program 
provides health insurance under various coverage options from which covered 
individuals may select. 

2.6 “COBRA” means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as 
amended. 

2.7 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the Treasury Regulations and 
guidance issued thereunder, as amended. 

Page 121Page 121Page 121



 

2 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

2.8 “Effective Date” means February 1, 2012. 

2.9 “Eligible Retiree” means an Employee who has met the eligibility requirements in 
Article III.  An individual’s status as an Eligible Retiree will be determined solely by the 
Employer. 

2.10 “Employee” means an individual that the Employer classifies as a common-law 
employee and who is on the Employer's W-2 payroll, but does not include the following: 
(a) any leased employee (including but not limited to those individuals defined as leased 
employees in Code Section 414(n) or an individual classified by the Employer as a 
contract worker, independent contractor, temporary employee, or casual employee for 
the period during which such individual is so classified, whether or not any such 
individual is on the Employer's W-2 payroll or is determined by the IRS or others to be a 
common-law employee of the Employer; (b) any individual who performs services for the 
Employer but who is paid by a temporary or other employment or staffing agency for the 
period during which such individual is paid by such agency, whether or not such 
individual is determined by the IRS or others to be a common-law employee of the 
Employer; and (c) any employee covered under a collective bargaining agreement, 
unless the agreement provides for the employee's participation in this Plan.   

2.11 “Employer” means the Alameda County Transportation Commission. 

2.12 "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as 
amended. 

2.13 “MEC” means the minimum employer contribution required to be made by the Employer 
directly to CalPERS for an Eligible Retiree's coverage under CalPERS Health ($112 per 
month in 2012, and adjusted annually in accordance with California Government Code 
Section 22892). 

2.14 “Plan” means this Alameda County Transportation Commission Retiree Health 
Reimbursement Arrangement, as set forth herein and amended from time to time. 

2.15 “Plan Administrator” means the Employer unless the Employer designates another 
person or organization to hold the position of Plan Administrator.  The Employer may 
alternatively designate another person or organization to perform certain duties assigned 
to the Plan Administrator under this Plan. 

2.16 “Plan Year” means the calendar year (i.e., the 12-month period commencing January 1 
and ending on December 31).  The first Plan Year is a short plan year, beginning on the 
Effective Date and ending on December 31, 2012. 

2.17 "Predecessor Agency" means (1) the Alameda County Transportation Improvement 
Authority, or (2) the Alameda County Congestion Management Agency. 

2.18 “Trust” means the legal entity that the Employer may establish and/or adopt to hold any 
assets it has irrevocably set aside to pay benefits under the Plan. 

Page 122Page 122Page 122



 

3 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

ARTICLE III. 
ELIGIBILITY, PARTICIPATION, AND COVERAGE 

3.1 Eligibility.  Only Eligible Retirees are eligible to participate in the Plan.  An individual will 
become an Eligible Retiree under the Plan only upon meeting all of the following 
requirements.   

a) The individual retired under CalPERS directly from the Employer or a 
Predecessor Agency within 120 days after his or her employment with the 
Employer or Predecessor Agency terminated.  If the Employee retired under 
CalPERS from any other governmental agency (or retired under any other 
governmental retirement plan and not under CalPERS), he or she will not meet 
this requirement.   

b) The individual is eligible for coverage under CalPERS Health as a retiree, 
enrolled in CalPERS Health, and entitled to the MEC from the Employer. 

c) Either: 

(i) The individual has at least 10 completed years of credited service with 
CalPERS at retirement (as determined by CalPERS), and the individual 
performed at least five years of that service entirely for the Employer 
and/or a Predecessor Agency; or 
 

(ii) The individual has at least 25 completed years of credited service with 
CalPERS at retirement (as determined by CalPERS), and the individual 
performed at least two years of that service entirely for the Employer 
and/or a Predecessor Agency. 
 

3.2 No Benefits Unless Eligible.  An Employee will not have any interest under the Plan 
unless he or she meets all of the preceding requirements of this Article III, as applicable.  
Any person who does not meet these requirements will not be entitled to any benefits 
under the Plan. 

3.3 Commencement of Participation.  Each Eligible Retiree on the Effective Date will 
participate in the Plan beginning on that date.  Each person who becomes an Eligible 
Retiree after the Effective Date will begin participation in the Plan on the date of 
becoming an Eligible Retiree. 

3.4 Period of Coverage.  Participation in the Plan is tied to the Eligible Retiree’s enrollment 
in CalPERS Health as a retiree.  Coverage under this Plan for an Eligible Retiree will 
begin on the first day of the calendar month that coverage under CalPERS Health as a 
retiree begins.  

3.5 Termination of Participation.  An Eligible Retiree's participation in the Plan terminates 
upon the earlier of: 

a) the date he or she ceases to be an Eligible Retiree; 

b) the date that the Eligible Retiree is reemployed by the Employer, except as 
provided in Section 3.7; or 

Page 123Page 123Page 123



 

4 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

c) the Eligible Retiree’s death, except benefits may continue to the Eligible Retiree's 
Beneficiary in accordance with Section 3.6. 

3.6 Beneficiaries.   After an Eligible Retiree’s death, benefits will be provided under the 
Plan to the Eligible Retiree’s Beneficiary, if any, but only if the individual is (1) eligible for 
coverage under CalPERS Health and (2) entitled to the MEC from the Employer.  
Benefits will be provided under the Plan to such Beneficiary only during such periods 
that he or she meets these two requirements.  The Beneficiary will not be entitled to any 
benefits under the Plan for any period he or she does not meet these two requirements.  
To the extent required by the Code, the Employer will follow the tax withholding and 
reporting requirements applicable to benefits paid under this Plan to an Eligible Retiree's 
non-dependent domestic partner or same-sex spouse. 

3.7 Reemployed Retirees.  If the Employer reemploys an Eligible Retiree, any benefits 
provided under the Plan to that Eligible Retiree will cease effective on the reemployment 
date and his or her Plan participation will cease.  The Eligible Retiree will be entitled to 
benefits under the Plan upon subsequent termination of employment only if he or she is 
then eligible under this Article III.  If, however, after the reemployment date, the 
reemployed Eligible Retiree is entitled to continued receipt of retirement benefits under 
CalPERS as a retiree of the Employer and continues to be eligible for both the MEC and 
retiree coverage under CalPERS Health, any benefits provided under the Plan to that 
Eligible Retiree will continue uninterrupted. 

ARTICLE IV. 
VESTING AND BENEFITS 

4.1 Amount of Benefits.  Each Eligible Retiree will be entitled to receive Employer-funded 
health care coverage as specified in this Article IV, paid in the form of a reimbursement 
in accordance with Section 4.3.  The maximum benefit on behalf of an Eligible Retiree 
for any calendar month will be the amount established and adopted by the Board from 
time to time (and such benefit amounts are herein incorporated by reference), multiplied 
by the Eligible Retiree's Vested Percentage under Section 4.2.  In no event, however, 
will the benefit paid in any calendar month on behalf of any Eligible Retiree be greater 
than the Eligible Retiree's actual out-of-pocket premium cost for CalPERS Health 
coverage for that calendar month.  An Eligible Retiree may at any time decline benefits 
under the Plan by notifying the Employer.   

Page 124Page 124Page 124



 

5 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

4.2 Vested Percentage.   An Eligible Retiree's Vested Percentage is based on the Eligible 
Retiree's completed number of years of CalPERS credited service in accordance with 
the following table.    

Years of CalPERS 
Credited Service Vested Percentage 

<10 0% 
10 50% 
11 55% 
12 60% 
13 65% 
14 70% 
15 75% 
16 80% 
17 85% 
18 90% 
19 95% 

20+ 100% 
 

4.3 Reimbursements Under the Plan.  Benefits under the Plan will be provided in the form 
of monthly reimbursements of the health care coverage premium costs incurred by the 
Eligible Retiree (or his or her Beneficiary) for the coverage under the CalPERS Health 
option that the Eligible Retiree has elected for the applicable Plan Year, up to the 
maximum amount specified in Section 4.1.  Any such premium costs may not be paid or 
reimbursed from any other source and must be substantiated in accordance with Section 
4.4.  Under no circumstances will unused amounts for one calendar month be applied to 
costs in any subsequent calendar month and no unused amounts may roll over to any 
subsequent Plan Year.  The Eligible Retiree will be solely responsible for paying the 
coverage cost of any amounts that are not reimbursed under this Plan or otherwise paid 
by the Employer.   

4.4 Substantiation of Expenses.  Reimbursements of health care premium expenses 
under the Plan for an Eligible Retiree's (or his or her Beneficiary’s) individual coverage 
under CalPERS Health must be properly documented and substantiated at the time and 
in the manner determined by the Plan Administrator.  The Plan Administrator has 
authority to establish rules and procedures to be followed by individuals in filing 
applications for benefits, for furnishing and verifying proofs necessary to establish their 
rights to benefits under the Plan, or for any other reason it deems necessary for the 
efficient administration of the Plan.  Upon satisfactory documentation and substantiation, 
the Plan Administrator will direct payment to the Eligible Retiree (or his or her 
Beneficiary) as soon as administratively feasible. 

ARTICLE V. 
BENEFIT FUNDING 

5.1 Employer Contributions.  All benefits under the Plan will be paid by Employer 
contributions and earnings thereon.  Employee contributions are not permitted.  In 
addition, the Employer may set aside contributions and related earnings to pre-fund 
benefits under the Plan.  In determining the amount of any such contributions, the 

Page 125Page 125Page 125



 

6 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

Employer may engage an actuary to conduct actuarial experience studies and periodic 
actuarial valuations of the Plan benefits and to recommend to the Employer the amount 
of contributions that are needed in order to fund the Plan’s benefits. 

5.2 Trust.  The Employer may establish and/or adopt a Trust to receive and invest assets 
set aside by the Employer to pay benefits under the Plan.  The Trust may specifically 
provide, among other things, for the investment and reinvestment of the Trust assets 
and the income thereof, the management of the Trust assets, the responsibilities and 
immunities of the trustee, removal of the trustee and appointment of a successor, 
accounting by the trustee and the disbursement of the Trust assets.  The trustee will, in 
accordance with the terms of the Trust, accept and receive all contributions paid to it 
from time to time, and shall hold, invest, reinvest and manage such moneys and any 
increment, increase, earnings and income thereof for the exclusive benefit of Eligible 
Retirees and Beneficiaries and for the payment of reasonable expenses of administering 
the Plan. 

ARTICLE VI. 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN 

6.1 Plan Administrator.  The administration of this Plan will be under the supervision of the 
Plan Administrator.  It is the principal duty of the Plan Administrator to see that this Plan 
is carried out, in accordance with its terms, for the exclusive benefit of persons entitled to 
participate in this Plan. 

6.2 Powers of the Plan Administrator.  The Plan Administrator will have such duties and 
powers as it considers necessary or appropriate to discharge its duties.  It will have the 
exclusive right to interpret the Plan and to decide all matters thereunder, and all 
determinations of the Plan Administrator with respect to any matter hereunder will be 
conclusive and binding on all persons.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
the Plan Administrator will have the following discretionary authority: 

a) to construe and interpret the Plan, including all possible ambiguities, 
inconsistencies, and omissions in the Plan and related documents, and to decide 
all questions of fact, questions relating to eligibility and participation, and 
questions of benefits under this Plan;  

b) to prescribe procedures to be followed and the forms to be used by Eligible 
Retirees and Beneficiaries to claim reimbursements pursuant to this Plan;  

c) to prepare and distribute information explaining this Plan and the benefits under 
this Plan in such manner as the Plan Administrator determines to be appropriate;  

d) to request and receive from all Eligible Retirees and Beneficiaries such 
information as the Plan Administrator will from time to time determine to be 
necessary for the proper administration of this Plan;  

e) to furnish each Eligible Retiree and Beneficiary with such reports with respect to 
the administration of this Plan as the Plan Administrator determines to be 
reasonable and appropriate;  

Page 126Page 126Page 126



 

7 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

f) to receive, review, and keep on file such reports and information regarding the 
benefits covered by this Plan as the Plan Administrator determines from time to 
time to be necessary and proper;  

g) to appoint and employ such individuals or entities to assist in the administration 
of this Plan as it determines to be necessary or advisable, including legal counsel 
and benefit consultants;  

h) to sign documents for the purposes of administering this Plan, or to designate an 
individual or individuals to sign documents for the purposes of administering this 
Plan;  

i) to secure or require such evidence as it deems necessary to decide any claim for 
benefits under the Plan; and  

j) to maintain the books of accounts, records, and other data in the manner 
necessary for proper administration of this Plan and to meet any applicable 
disclosure and reporting requirements. 

6.3 Fiduciary Duties.  Each Plan fiduciary shall discharge its duties solely in the interest of 
Eligible Retirees and Beneficiaries and for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits 
under the Plan, or defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Plan.  Each Plan 
fiduciary, in carrying out such duties and responsibilities, shall act with the care, skill, 
prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person 
acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use.   A fiduciary may serve 
in more than one fiduciary capacity and may employ one or more persons to render 
advice with regard to its fiduciary responsibilities.  If the fiduciary is serving as such 
without compensation, all expenses reasonably incurred by such fiduciary will be paid by 
the Employer.  The Employer may, however, elect to have those expenses paid from 
Trust assets. 

6.4 Provision for Third-Party Plan Service Providers.  The Plan Administrator, subject to 
approval of the Employer, may employ the services of such persons as it may deem 
necessary or desirable in connection with the operation of the Plan.  Unless otherwise 
provided in the service agreement, obligations under this Plan shall remain the obligation 
of the Employer or Plan Administrator, as applicable. 

6.5 Inability to Locate Payee.  If the Plan Administrator is unable to make payment to any 
person to whom a payment is due under the Plan because it cannot ascertain the 
identity or whereabouts of such person after reasonable efforts have been made to 
identify or locate such person, then such payment and all subsequent payments 
otherwise due to such person will be forfeited following a reasonable time after the date 
any such payment first became due. 

6.6 COBRA and HIPAA Compliance.  The Plan will comply with the applicable 
requirements of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 
(“COBRA”), and with the applicable requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) in accordance with the rules set out in Appendix A 
below. 

Page 127Page 127Page 127



 

8 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

ARTICLE VII. 
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE PLAN 

7.1 No Vested Rights.  The Employer may at any time amend or terminate the Plan as 
provided in Sections 7.2 and 7.3 below.  Nothing in the Plan is intended to or will be 
construed to entitle any Eligible Retiree or other person to vested or non-terminable 
benefits. 

7.2 Amendment of the Plan.  The Employer may amend all or any part of this Plan at any 
time for any reason by resolution of the Board or by any person or persons authorized by 
the Board to take such action.  Any such amendment will supersede and override any 
claim to "vested rights" that any person may otherwise have with respect to benefits 
under the Plan. 

7.3 Termination of the Plan.   

a) The Employer has established the Plan with the expectation that it will be 
continued, but continuance is not a contractual or other obligation of the 
Employer and no employee of the Employer or other person will have any vested 
right to continuance of the Plan or to continuance of any Employer contributions 
to the Plan.  The Employer reserves the right at any time to terminate the Plan 
without prejudice and for any reason, and such termination will supersede and 
override any claim to “vested rights” that any person may otherwise have with 
respect to benefits under the Plan.  Such decision to terminate the Plan will be 
made in writing and must be approved by the Board. 

b) If the Plan is terminated, the Employer shall direct the trustee to compute the 
value of the Plan assets under the Trust as of the date of termination.  Those 
assets will continue to be held in the Trust, and will be distributed to pay any 
remaining benefits owed under the Plan until those benefits are satisfied. 

c) The “partial termination” rules of the Code that apply to qualified retirement plans 
will not apply under this Plan, and no action will be taken with respect to this Plan 
in connection with any event or events that would be a partial termination for a 
qualified plan. 

7.4 Determination of Effective Date of Amendment or Termination.  Any such 
amendment, discontinuance or termination will be effective as of the date the Employer 
determines. 

7.5 Assets After Termination.  Any assets remaining in the Trust after all benefits owed 
under the Plan and all Plan expenses have been paid will revert to the Employer unless 
otherwise determined by the Employer. 

7.6 Limitation of Obligations.  The Employer must provide all benefits accrued by Eligible 
Retirees or Beneficiaries under the Plan through its termination.  Once those benefits 
are satisfied, the Employer will not have any remaining obligations to provide any benefit 
under the Plan.  No one will accrue benefits under the Plan after its termination. 

Page 128Page 128Page 128



 

9 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

ARTICLE VIII. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

8.1 Governing Law.  The provisions of the Plan will be construed, administered and 
enforced according to applicable federal law and, to the extent not preempted, the laws 
of the State of California. 

8.2 Requirement for Proper Forms.  All communications in connection with the Plan made 
by an Eligible Retiree or Beneficiary will become effective only when duly executed on 
any forms as may be required and furnished by, and filed with, the Employer or Plan 
Administrator, as applicable. 

8.3 No Guarantee of Tax Consequences.  Neither the Employer nor any Plan 
Administrator makes any warranty or other representation as to whether any benefits 
under the Plan will be treated as excludable from gross income for federal, state, or local 
income tax purposes.   It will be the obligation of each Eligible Retiree or Beneficiary to 
determine whether each payment under this Plan is excludable from gross income for 
federal, state, and local income tax purposes and to notify the Employer or Plan 
Administrator if he or she has any reason to believe that such payment is not so 
excludable.  If for any reason it is determined that any amount paid for the benefit of an 
Eligible Retiree or Beneficiary is includable in gross income for federal, state or local 
income tax purposes, then under no circumstances will the recipient have any recourse 
against the Employer or Plan Administrator with respect to any increased taxes or other 
losses or damages suffered by the Eligible Retiree or Beneficiary as a result thereof. 

8.4 Compliance With Code and Other Applicable Laws.  It is intended that this Plan meet 
all applicable requirements of the Code and of all regulations and guidance issued 
thereunder.  This Plan will be construed, operated and administered accordingly, and in 
the event of any conflict between any part, clause, or provision of this Plan and the 
Code, the provisions of the Code will be deemed controlling, and any conflicting part, 
clause, or provision of this Plan will be deemed superseded to the extent of the conflict.  
In addition, the Plan will comply with the requirements of all other applicable laws. 

8.5 Headings.  The headings of the various Articles and Sections are inserted for 
convenience of reference and are not to be regarded as part of this Plan or as indicating 
or controlling the meaning or construction of any provision. 

8.6 Severability.  Should any part of this Plan subsequently be invalidated by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Plan will be given effect to the maximum 
extent possible. 

8.7 Administration Expenses.  The Employer will pay the reasonable expenses of 
administering the Plan, including but not limited to the reasonable compensation of any 
counsel, accountants, and other agents hired by the Employer, Plan Administrator, or 
Board, as well as any other expenses incurred in administering the Plan.  The Employer 
may, however, elect to have those expenses paid from Trust assets. 

8.8 Effect of Mistake.  In the event of a mistake as to the eligibility or participation of an 
individual, or the allocations made to the account of any Eligible Retiree, or the amount 
of distributions made or to be made to an Eligible Retiree or other person, the Employer 
or Plan Administrator will, to the extent it deems possible, cause to be allocated or cause 

Page 129Page 129Page 129



 

10 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

to be withheld or accelerated, or otherwise make adjustment of, such amounts as will in 
its judgment accord to such Eligible Retiree or other person the credits to the account or 
distributions to which he or she is properly entitled under the Plan.   

8.9 No Contract of Employment.  The Plan does not provide any person with any right to 
be retained in the Employer’s employment or service.  An Eligible Retiree's sole rights 
under the Plan are limited to those described in this document. 

8.10 Plan Provisions Controlling.  The Plan encompasses the benefits provided by the 
Employer to Eligible Retirees.  In the event that the terms or provisions of any summary 
or description of this Plan are interpreted as being in conflict with the provisions of this 
Plan as set forth in this document, the provisions of this Plan will be controlling.   

8.11 Non-Assignability of Rights.  The right of any Eligible Retiree or Beneficiary to receive 
any reimbursement under this Plan will not be alienable by the Eligible Retiree or 
Beneficiary by assignment or any other method and will not be subject to claims by his 
or her creditors by any process whatsoever.  Any attempt to cause such right to be so 
subjected will not be recognized, except to the extent required by law. 

8.12 Provisions Applicable During Periods of Military Service.  Notwithstanding any Plan 
provision to the contrary, contributions, benefits, and service credit with respect to 
qualified military service will be provided as required by any law concerning veterans’ 
rights. 

 

To record the amendment of the Plan, the Employer’s authorized representative hereby 
executes this document on this ___ day of _____________, 2015. 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 
 
By:  
 
Title:  
 
Date:    

 

 

 

Page 130Page 130Page 130



 

A-1 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

 

APPENDIX A:  HIPAA COMPLIANCE 

A.1 Provision of Protected Health Information to Employer 

Members of the Employer's workforce have access to the individually identifiable health 
information of Plan participants for administrative functions of the Plan.  When this health 
information is provided from the Plan to the Employer, it is Protected Health Information (PHI). 
The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and its implementing 
regulations restrict the Employer's ability to use and disclose PHI. The following HIPAA 
definition of PHI applies for purposes of this Article Appendix A: 

Protected Health Information. Protected health information means information that is created or 
received by the Plan and relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or 
condition of a participant; the provision of health care to a participant; or the past, present, or 
future payment for the provision of health care to a participant; and that identifies the participant 
or for which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the 
participant.  Protected health information includes information of persons living or deceased. 

The Employer will have access to PHI from the Plan only as permitted under this Appendix A or 
as otherwise required or permitted by HIPAA.  HIPAA and its implementing regulations were 
modified by the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH 
Act), the statutory provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference. 

A.2 Permitted Disclosure of Enrollment/Disenrollment Information 

The Plan may disclose to the Employer information on whether the individual is participating in 
the Plan. 

A.3 Permitted Uses and Disclosure of Summary Health Information 

The Plan may disclose Summary Health Information to the Employer, provided that the 
Employer requests the Summary Health Information for the purpose of modifying, amending, or 
terminating the Plan. 

“Summary Health Information” means information (a) that summarizes the claims history, claims 
expenses, or type of claims experienced by individuals for whom a plan sponsor had provided 
health benefits under a health plan; and (b) from which the information described at 42 CFR 
Section 164.514(b)(2)(i) has been deleted, except that the geographic information described in 
42 CFR Section 164.514(b)(2)(i)(B) need only be aggregated to the level of a five-digit ZIP 
code. 

A.4 Permitted and Required Uses and Disclosure of PHI for Plan Administration 
Purposes 

Unless otherwise permitted by law, and subject to the conditions of disclosure described in 
Section A.5 and obtaining written certification pursuant to Section A.7, the Plan may disclose 
PHI to the Employer, provided that the Employer uses or discloses such PHI only for Plan 
administration purposes. “Plan administration purposes” means administration functions 

Page 131Page 131Page 131



 

A-2 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

performed by the Employer on behalf of the Plan, such as quality assurance, claims processing, 
auditing, and monitoring.  Plan administration functions do not include functions performed by 
the Employer in connection with any other benefit or benefit plan of the Employer, and they do 
not include any employment-related functions. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Plan to the contrary, in no event will the Employer be 
permitted to use or disclose PHI in a manner that is inconsistent with 45 CFR Section 
164.504(f). 

A.5 Conditions of Disclosure for Plan Administration Purposes 
The Employer agrees that with respect to any PHI (other than enrollment/disenrollment 
information and Summary Health Information, which are not subject to these restrictions) 
disclosed to it by the Plan, the Employer will: 

• not use or further disclose the PHI other than as permitted or required by the 
Plan or as required by law; 

• ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it provides PHI 
received from the Plan agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply 
to the Employer with respect to PHI; 

• not use or disclose the PHI for employment-related actions and decisions or in 
connection with any other benefit or employee benefit plan of the Employer; 

• report to the Plan any use or disclosure of the information that is inconsistent with 
the uses or disclosures provided for of which it becomes aware; 

• make available PHI to comply with HIPAA's right to access in accordance with 45 
CFR Section 164.524; 

• make available PHI for amendment and incorporate any amendments to PHI in 
accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.526; 

• make available the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures 
in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528; 

• make its internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure 
of PHI received from the Plan available to the Secretary of Health and Human 
Services for purposes of determining compliance by the Plan with HIPAA's 
privacy requirements; 

• if feasible, return or destroy all PHI received from the Plan that the Employer still 
maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information when no longer 
needed for the purpose for which disclosure was made, except that, if such 
return or destruction is not feasible, limit further uses and disclosures to those 
purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible; and 

• ensure that the adequate separation between the Plan and the Employer (i.e., 
the “firewall”), required in 45 CFR Section 504(f)(2)(iii) is satisfied. 

The Employer further agrees that if it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits any electronic 
PHI (other than enrollment/disenrollment information and Summary Health Information, which 
are not subject to these restrictions) on behalf of the Plan, it will implement administrative, 
physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, 

Page 132Page 132Page 132



 

A-3 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

integrity, and availability of the electronic PHI, and it will ensure that any agents (including 
subcontractors) to whom it provides such electronic PHI agree to implement reasonable and 
appropriate security measures to protect the information.  The Employer will report to the Plan 
any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

A.6 Adequate Separation Between Plan and Employer 
The Employer will allow the following persons access to PHI: Director of Finance, Accounting 
Manager, Senior Accountant, Accountant, the Plan Administrator, and any other Employee who 
needs access to PHI in order to perform Plan administration functions that the Employer 
performs for the Plan (such as quality assurance, claims processing, auditing, and monitoring).  
No other persons will have access to PHI.  These specified employees (or classes of 
employees) will only have access to and use PHI to the extent necessary to perform the plan 
administration functions that the Employer performs for the Plan.  In the event that any of these 
specified employees does not comply with the provisions of this Section, that employee will be 
subject to disciplinary action by the Employer for non-compliance pursuant to the Employer's 
employee discipline and termination procedures. 

The Employer will ensure that the provisions of this Section A.6 are supported by reasonable 
and appropriate security measures to the extent that the designees have access to electronic 
PHI. 

A.7 Certification of Plan Sponsor 
The Plan will disclose PHI to the Employer only upon the receipt of a certification by the 
Employer that the Plan incorporates the provisions of 45 CFR Section 164.504(f)(2)(ii), and that 
the Employer agrees to the conditions of disclosure set forth in Section A.5.  Execution of the 
Plan by the Employer will serve as the required certification. 

A.8 Privacy Official 
The Employer will designate a Privacy Official, who will be responsible for the Plan’s compliance 
with HIPAA.  The Privacy Official may contract with or otherwise utilize the services of attorneys, 
accountants, brokers, consultants, or other third party experts as the Privacy Official deems 
necessary or advisable.  In addition and notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the 
contrary, the Privacy Official will have the authority to and be responsible for: 

• accepting and verifying the accuracy and completeness of any certification 
provided by the Employer under this Appendix; 

• transmitting the certification to any third parties as may be necessary to permit 
them to disclose PHI to the Employer; 

• establishing and implementing policies and procedures with respect to PHI that 
are designed to ensure compliance by the Plan with the requirements of HIPAA; 

• establishing and overseeing proper training of personnel who will have access to 
PHI; and 

• any other duty or responsibility that the Privacy Official, in his or her sole 
capacity, deems necessary or appropriate to comply with the provisions of 
HIPAA and the purposes of this Appendix A. 

 

Page 133Page 133Page 133



 

A-4 
000258.0001\3884373.1  

A.9 Interpretation and Limited Applicability 
This Appendix serves the sole purpose of complying with the requirements of HIPAA and will be 
interpreted and construed in a manner to effectuate this purpose.  Neither this Appendix nor the 
duties, powers, responsibilities, and obligations listed herein will be taken into account in 
determining the amount or nature of the benefits provided to any person covered under the 
Plan, nor will they inure to the benefit of any third parties.  To the extent that any of the 
provisions of this Appendix A are no longer required by HIPAA or do not apply to the Plan 
because the Plan is otherwise excepted from HIPAA, they will be deemed deleted and will have 
no force or effect. 

A.10 Service Performed for the Employer 
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Plan to the contrary, all services performed by a 
business associate for the Plan in accordance with the applicable service agreement will be 
deemed to be performed on behalf of the Plan and subject to the administrative simplification 
provisions of HIPAA contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 through 164, except services that relate 
to eligibility and enrollment in the Plan.  If a business associate of the Plan performs any 
services that relate to eligibility and enrollment in the Plan, these services will be deemed to be 
performed on behalf of the Employer in its capacity as Plan Sponsor and not on behalf of the 
Plan. 

 

Page 134Page 134Page 134



 
 
       ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

RESOLUTION 15-017 
 

AMENDING THE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGEMENT FOR RETIREES OF 
THE ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Trish Spencer  
 
City of Albany 
Vice Mayor Peter Maas 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor David Haubert 
 
City of Emeryville 
Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor Bill Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Mayor Barbara Halliday 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Councilmember Dan Kalb 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor Margaret Fujioka 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Mayor Pauline Cutter 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 
 

 WHEREAS, the Alameda County Transportation Commission 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Alameda CTC”) adopted the Alameda 
County Transportation Commission Retiree Health Reimbursement 
Arrangement (the “Retiree HRA”), effective February 1, 2012; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Retiree HRA was designed to reimburse eligible retirees 
and their eligible surviving beneficiaries for all or some portion of their 
California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) Health premium 
costs; 
 
 WHEREAS, to be eligible for retiree health coverage under the current 
Retiree HRA, a retiree must be vested with at least 10 years of CalPERS 
service, five of which must be for employment with the Alameda CTC or its 
predecessor agencies;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Alameda CTC requires the assistance of experienced 
job candidates to assist with projects and program delivery; and;  
 
 WHEREAS, the eligibility provisions of the current Retiree HRA impair 
the Alameda CTC’s ability to attract experienced candidates because they 
would lose health benefits they previously earned, were they to accept 
employment with the Alameda CTC; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has determined it to be in the 
Commission’s best interests to amend the eligibility provisions of the Retiree 
HRA to add a second group of retirees which would allow a retiree from the 
Alameda CTC with at least 25 years of CalPERS service, two of which must 
be for employment with the Alameda CTC, to be eligible for retiree health 
coverage 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Alameda CTC as follows: 
 
A. Amendment of Health Reimbursement Arrangement 
 
Section 1. Effective January 1, 2015, the Commission hereby amends the 
Alameda County Transportation Commission Retiree Health Reimbursement 
Arrangement, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A, to add a 
second group of retirees which would allow a retiree from the  

6.15B

Page 135Page 135Page 135



Alameda CTC with at least 25 years of service with a California Public Employees' Retirement System 
agency, two of which must be for employment with the Alameda CTC, to be eligible for retiree 
health coverage.  The amount of coverage will accrue at the same rate as for other retirees.   
 
Duly passed and adopted by the Alameda County Transportation Commission at the regular 
meeting of the Board held on Thursday, April 23, 2015 in Oakland, California by the following votes: 
 
 
 
AYES:  NOES:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT: 
 
 
SIGNED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Scott Haggerty, Chairperson 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Vanessa Lee, Clerk of the Commission  
 
 

Page 136Page 136Page 136



Cheryl M. Brown 
 

 
 

April 6, 2015 

 
Professional Experience 
 
2009-present Political and Legislative Director, AFSCME Council 57, Oakland, CA 
2006-2009  Labor Specialist, Center for Labor Research and Education, UC Berkeley 
2005-06 Policy and Political Consultant  
2004-05  Social Equity Caucus Coordinator, Urban Habitat Program, Oakland, CA 
2002-04  Political Director, Central Labor Council and Building Trades Council of 

Contra Costa County, AFL-CIO, Martinez,, CA 
2000-01   Community Outreach Coordinator, Good Jobs First, Washington, DC 
1998-2000 Labor-Community-Faith Organizer, Tennessee Industrial Renewal 

Network, Knoxville, TN 
1996-98   Community Organizer, Save Our Cumberland Mountains, Lake City, TN 
1993-95  International Program Assistant, Development Group for Alternative 

Policies, Washington, DC 
 
 
Education 
 
1996 M.A., International Development, School of International Service, American 

University, Washington, DC. 
1992 B.A., Interdisciplinary Studies, Friends World Program, Long Island University 
 
 
Select Boards and Memberships 
 
° Alameda Central Labor Council Executive Committee, 2012-present 
° UC Berkeley Center for Labor Research and Education Advisory Committee, 2010-

present 
° AFSCME California PEOPLE Steering Committee, 2009-present 
° Community Coalition for a Sustainable Concord, 2007-2009, 2014-present 
° Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority Citizens’ Watchdog 

Committee, ACTC, 2004-2006 
° Transportation Justice Working Group, 2004-2005 

 

6.16

Page 137Page 137Page 137



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 138Page 138Page 138



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20150409\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20150108.docx  

 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, January 8, 2015, 5:30 p.m. 

 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

BPAC Chair Midori Tabata called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. The meeting began 

with introductions, and the chair confirmed a quorum. All BPAC members were present, 

except for Lucy Gigli, Jeremy Johansen, Matt Turner, and Preston Jordan. 

 

Lucy Gigli, Jeremy Johansen, and Matt Turner arrived during item 2. Preston Jordan 

arrived prior to item 5. 

 

2. Public Comment 

Ken Bukowski informed the committee that he was videotaping the meeting, and all of his 

videos can be accessed at http://regional-video.com/.  

 

3. Approval of October 9, 2014 Minutes 

A member requested to update the minutes for agenda item 7 to reflect the discussion 

that the current Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan has many goals but no priorities. 

BPAC members want to revisit the goals versus priorities in the next plans. 

 

David Fishbaugh moved to approve the October 9, 2014 minutes with the above 

amendment. Sara Zimmerman seconded the motion. The motion passed 9-0 (Preston 

Jordan was absent). 

 

4. Metropolitan Transportation Commission Bay Area Bikeshare Expansion Presentation 

Matt Bomberg stated that BPAC members requested a presentation about the Bay Area 

Bike Share Expansion. He informed the committee that the current system is a pilot system 

in San Francisco and some Peninsula cities. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

(MTC) has programmed funding to expand the Bike Share System in San Francisco and 

the East Bay. Alameda CTC also programmed funding to support the expansion. Matt 

introduced the presenter Sean Co with MTC and representatives Kara Oberg from the 

City of Berkeley and Carlos Hernandez from the City of Oakland who will work on the Bike 

Share System in their respective cities. 

 

Sean Co informed the committee that the pilot Bike Share System was funded with MTC 

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) and Bay Area Air Quality Management 

District (Air District) Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) funds, and local matches 

from individual cities. Sean shared that the MTC did not produce a strategic plan for the 

pilot system and is currently working to generate a strategic plan for the expansion. The 

pilot system is doing well, and MTC and the Air District are looking to expand the program 

in Berkeley and Oakland along with San Francisco. 

 

Questions/feedback from the members: 

 The committee members had many questions regarding equity and what is being 

done with the bike sharing systems to expand their reach to ensure that the entire 

community is served. Members asked questions about increasing access to bike 

7.1

Page 139Page 139Page 139

http://regional-video.com/


 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20150409\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20150108.docx  

 

sharing for low-income communities and groups. Kara Oberg with the City of 

Berkeley informed the committee that Boston is one of the most successful equity 

bike sharing programs, with 1,000 participants in less than a year. San Francisco is 

rolling out a pilot equity program with Bank of San Francisco, and people who do 

business with the bank may participate in this program. Kara stated that a lot of 

research is being done to make sure that the Bay Area Bike Sharing Systems are 

equitable and affordable for all income levels. 

 Will the system expand to the Castro Valley/Hayward area eventually? Sean said 

eventually this could happen, and that both suitability and local interest are 

important.  

 Are both density and destinations important?  Where do you go from and to? If 

you are in an area that is less dense, how will the program work? Sean said the 

program is designed for short trips within dense areas, and that a density of stations 

is important for success. 

 What is the operational cost per passenger mile traveled the past five years? Sean 

said that since the program is using CMAQ and TFCA funds, it’s evaluated for the 

emission reduction benefits. He said that the evaluation is in progress. Metrics are 

generated in terms of number of trips per bike per day. Sean also noted that there 

are significant benefits in terms of health and mobility.  Matt Bomberg said that in 

terms of cost effectiveness, this is an investment similar to other transportation 

investments. Bike sharing is considered a type of transit service. 

 What are the demographics of the riders? Sean said the oldest bike share system is 

five years old. The majority of riders are young, white males, though to some extent 

this is true of bicycling more generally. The evaluation data they have is about nine 

months’ worth. The largest benefit of the system is health. It’s recommended that a 

trip should be approximately 30 minutes a day. 

 A member requested more details on the implementation of the system in Berkeley 

and Oakland. Sean said the first step is to advertise the request for proposals (RFP). 

Carlos Hernandez with the City of Oakland and Kara will help MTC and the Air 

District with selecting locations and looking into the possibility of placing stations 

within BART parking lots. 

 A member noted that it is crucial to consider equity as a part of system design, in 

particular as part of station siting decisions. Kara Oberg with the City of Berkeley 

informed the committee that Boston is one of the most successful equity bike 

sharing programs, with 1,000 participants in less than a year. San Francisco is rolling 

out a pilot equity program with Bank of San Francisco, and people who do 

business with the bank may participate in this program. Kara stated that a lot of 

research is being done to make sure that the Bay Area Bike Sharing Systems are 

equitable and affordable for all income levels. 

 A member inquired if a transit pass can be used to address the cost for the Bike 

Sharing System. For instance, bus operators could offer the option to buy a monthly 

pass that also covers BABS for an extra fee per month.  Kara said that the Clipper 

Card is being looked at as an option.   

 Who makes the final say regarding station siting?  Sean stated that this is ultimately 

a local decision. 

 How is payment other than credit cards being handled? Kara stated that if the 

payment can be broken down monthly, it may be easier for all people to afford. 

 Are you having community meetings, so the community may provide input? Sean 

mentioned that outreach will occur to address the concerns of the communities. 

Page 140Page 140Page 140



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20150409\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20150108.docx  

 

 Will outreach happen before the RFP is advertised? Sean said it will occur 

simultaneously. 

 Is 4th generation bike sharing where there are no fixed stations being explored?  

Sean stated that Tampa is experimenting with such a system and MTC hoped to 

learn from these experiences.  Matt Bomberg noted that some corporate 

campuses in the Bay Area are moving ahead with such systems, though there are 

tradeoffs in terms of losing potential advertising revenues and placemaking 

benefits from bikeshare stations. 

 Is there a concept of moving into the future with alternative power sources? Sean 

said there is one electric assist bike model available. The systems with electric assist 

bikes should be off the grid. 

 Are safety classes offered once you are a member of the bike sharing program? 

Sean said San Francisco partners with the San Francisco Bicycle Coalition for safety 

training. There is some talk of helmet vending machines. 

 Is bike education mandatory or optional? Sean said it’s offered not mandatory. 

 What approach did you use for equity outreach and the effort after the release of 

the RFP? Carlos said the priorities for the city of Oakland are: 1) provide alternatives 

to credit cards, which can be a barrier for some and; 2) regarding station sites, the 

city staff will focus on getting public feedback to ensure station locations permit 

equitable usage of bikeshareing.  

 Is there a Bay Area or national effort where people can talk about best practices 

and changes occurring? Carlos said the North American Bike Share Association is a 

fairly new organization that has these conversations. Heath Maddox, representing 

the Bay Area Bike Share, is on the board of this organization. 

 A member suggested adding a bike sharing station in the commercial district, if it 

will allow people to walk to/from BART. 

 Is it possible for a city to pay into the Bike Share System and subsidize it? Sean said 

these discussions are starting now, and they can take a long time. 

 Are there opportunities to work with developers to incorporate bikesharing as part 

of development agreements? Carlos said that the City of Oakland is having 

discussions with developers. 

 

5. BPAC Bylaws 

Matt Bomberg stated that BPAC adopted all sections of the bylaws except sections 

3.3 Member Qualification and 8.2 Conflicts of Interest. Matt told the committee that he 

discussed their concerns with Alameda CTC’s legal counsel and the changes proposed 

are very minor. The committee had a lively discussion on the language used in  

these sections. 

 Members asked about reviewing packages of projects.  Matt Bomberg stated that 

through the new project review role, Alameda CTC will bring projects for more 

focused, individual review. 

 Members expressed concern that language related to “evaluating…applications” 

and “significant or personal” is vague. 

 

Diane Shaw moved to approve sections 3.3 and 8.2 of the BPAC Bylaws as 

recommended. Ben Schweng seconded the motion. The motion passed 7-2 with one 

abstention, Kristi Marleau. Matt Turner and Sara Zimmerman voted no. 

 

 

Page 141Page 141Page 141



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20150409\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20150108.docx  

 

6. Comprehensive Investment Plan Overview and Project Selection Criteria 

Matt Bomberg informed the committee that Alameda CTC is developing its first 

Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP). The CIP translates long-range plans, including the 

Countywide Transportation Plan and Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans into a short-range 

implementation plan. Alameda CTC must develop project selection criteria and will look 

at all of its funding sources at once to determine which projects and programs to fund. 

One role of the BPAC is to review and provide input on the selection criteria. Tess Lengyel 

will provide the committee with more detailed input on the CIP and the project  

selection criteria. 

 

Tess Lengyel explained to the committee that Alameda CTC is creating for the first time a 

unified programming and allocations plan, and with the passage of Measure BB, it gives 

the agency an opportunity to make the CIP possible. She noted that Measure BB 

authorized the sales tax for transportation services to be collected and administered by 

Alameda CTC and governed by the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan (2014 Plan). 

Measure BB augments the half-cent Measure B sales tax by a half cent, beginning April 1, 

2015 through March 31, 2022. The full one-cent sales tax authorized by Measure BB will 

begin April 1, 2022 and will extend through March 31, 2045. 

 

Tess stated that the CIP’s project selection criteria will guide programming and allocation 

decisions for funds administered by Alameda CTC and will identify transportation funding 

over a five-year period. The CIP will consist of a two-year allocation plan that will be 

consistent with Alameda CTC’s budget. Tess reviewed the three funding categories for 

funding programs, projects, and planning, and provided information on the three phases 

of the selection methodology. 

 

Questions/feedback from members: 

 Consider criteria that promote public health benefits related to proposed 

transportation improvements. 

 Adjust the points so that “Needs/Benefits Criteria” will have more weight. Staff 

informed BPAC that the Alameda County Technical Advisory Committee (ACTAC) 

had the same concern. 

 Can Alameda CTC help with how the Alameda County Public Works deal with the 

unincorporated urban areas in terms of spending funds? The unincorporated 

urban areas are underserved by the public works. Staff suggested the member 

and the community could work with the county to develop projects to submit to 

the Countywide Transportation Plan for consideration. 

 Do equity requirements in the CIP include socio-economic equity?  Tess said that 

socio-equity will be considered as part of the long-range Countywide 

Transportation Plan. 

 Are there specific funding limits/targets for different modal categories?  Tess stated 

that Alameda CTC will sort projects into the different modal categories from which 

they are eligible for funding, then evaluate them in all relevant categories. 

 A member suggested that some readiness scoring criteria should be minimum 

requirements or screening criteria 

 How will Alameda CTC subdivide points within needs/benefit, readiness, etc. 

categories?  Tess stated that there will be internal scoring guidance for reviewers 

applying criteria. 

Page 142Page 142Page 142



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20150409\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20150108.docx  

 

 Will performance measures be used in CIP 2.0?  Tess stated that yes, this is the plan, 

and that there will be different performance measures for different categories of 

projects in CIP 2.0. 

 In terms of open enrollment for the cities, will the CIP include Local Streets and 

Roads (LSR) funding? Tess said the direct local distributions (DLD) funds that 

Alameda CTC gives to the jurisdictions are for LSR. The CIP will include information 

on balances, but the CIP will not serve as a decision-making document for DLD 

funds. The cities will complete program compliance reporting for all DLD funds, as 

they do now, and will need to do an independent audit at a local level. 

 Are countywide initiatives separate from the DLD funds? Tess said DLD monies go 

to cities and the county, and they decide what to do with those funds and report 

back to Alameda CTC. Alameda CTC has a requirement to develop performance 

measures. For the countywide initiatives that are capital projects, Alameda CTC 

needs to determine how the complete streets policy will apply. Those capital 

projects will come to BPAC, to ensure complete streets policies are being applied. 

 Tess explained the criteria for the discretionary funds not specifically named in the 

2014 Plan. Tess noted that the criteria will not apply to DLD and capital investments, 

which are projects specifically named in both the 2000 and 2014 Plans. She noted 

that projects and programs funded with discretionary funds are not called out in 

the 2000 and 2014 Plans. 

 

7. Commission Actions and Staff Reports 

7.1. Transportation Expenditure Plan Update 

Tess Lengyel stated that Alameda CTC completed an analysis on the 2014 

Measure BB election results. She told the committee that the analysis covers the 

changes in voting patterns in the different cities, and Measure BB received 

tremendous support from the North County voters (and she referenced the 

associated map). Tess invited BPAC to take a look at the analysis that is on the 

Alameda CTC website. 

 

7.2. East Bay Greenway Active Transportation Program Grant Award 

Matt Bomberg said the ribbon-cutting ceremony for the East Bay Greenway 

segment 7A is still to be scheduled, and Alameda CTC will keep BPAC informed 

when a date is set. The Commission is scheduled to authorize the release of an RFP 

for scoping and environmental phases at its January meeting. 

 

Matt reminded the committee that Alameda CTC is the project sponsor and 

recently secured $3 million in funds from an Active Transportation Grant Program 

award for the scoping and environmental phases of a 15-mile segment of the East 

Bay Greenway corridor from north of the Fruitvale BART station to the South Hayward 

BART station, running along the BART alignment through Oakland, San Leandro, 

Hayward, and the unincorporated communities of Ashland and Cherryland. 

 

7.3. Countywide Multimodal Plans and Upcoming Transportation Open Houses 

Matt Bomberg informed the committee that Alameda CTC is in the process of 

developing three multimodal plans: Countywide Goods Movement Plan, 

Countywide Transit Plan, and Countywide Multimodal Arterial Plan. He said that 

BPAC may be interested in the arterial and transit plans. Matt encouraged the 

members to join Alameda CTC at one of the five upcoming transportation open 

Page 143Page 143Page 143



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20150409\3.1_Minutes\3.1_BPAC_Minutes_20150108.docx  

 

houses/public workshops throughout the county in February and March. Tess also 

invited members to the January 21, 2015 Goods Movement Roundtable. 

 

7.4. Central County Complete Streets Implementation Project 

Matt Bomberg stated that this project will be managed by Alameda CTC, the cities 

of Hayward and San Leandro, and Alameda County Public Works Agency. The 

jurisdictions applied for assistance through the Alameda CTC Sustainable 

Communities Technical Assistance Program for help to implement their adopted 

complete streets policies. The project kick-off will be in the February time frame. 

 

8. BPAC Member Report 

Diane Shaw inquired if ACTAC approved the Bicycle and Pedestrian Guidelines. Matt said 

yes, the guidelines were approved today by ACTAC, and most of the BPAC comments 

were incorporated. He encouraged the committee to look at page 4 in the packet for 

the specific incorporated comments. 

 

Preston Jordan said that the City of Albany completed a pavement management system 

update based on a grant from MTC. Every two years, MTC will review the condition of the 

pavement in the city and provide LSR funds. The criteria did not include streets 

designated as bicycle routes. Preston asked that the BPAC recommend to Alameda CTC 

and then to MTC a requirement that the pavement management programs incorporate 

criteria for streets that are cycle routes. Midori Tabata requested Alameda CTC bring up 

the pavement management concern in a future meeting. 

 

Lucy Gigli said that the City of Alameda did not include streets that are cycle routes in 

the pavement management criteria. Alameda has two complete streets projects 

(Central Avenue and Clement Street) that are beginning the community process phase. 

 

Tess said all cities in the county have complete streets policies in place. The work being 

done in Central County is ideally work that can be used as a model around Alameda 

County. Bringing policy into practice will help local jurisdictions see what they can do. 

 

David Fishbaugh announced that Mike Bucci is now a city councilmember for Newark. 

 

Ben Schweng said the on May 21 Hayward is hosting a bicycle street fair that will include 

a bike rodeo, BMX show, and helmet giveaways.  

 

8.1. BPAC Roster 

The committee roster is in the agenda packet for review purposes. 

 

9. Meeting Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for April 9, 2015 at the 

Alameda CTC offices. 

Page 144Page 144Page 144



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
iss

io
n

Bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
A

dv
iso

ry
 C

om
m

itt
ee

Ro
st

er
 a

nd
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
r 2

01
4-

20
15

Su
ffi

x
La

st
 N

am
e

Fi
rs

t N
am

e
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

 
Be

ga
n

Re
-

ap
pt

m
t.

Te
rm

 
Ex

pi
re

s
M

tg
s 

M
iss

ed
  

Si
nc

e 
Ju

l '
14

*

1
M

s.
Ta

ba
ta

, C
ha

ir
M

id
or

i
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-4

Ju
l-0

6
Se

p-
13

Se
p-

15
0

2
M

s.
Zi

m
m

er
m

an
,

Vi
ce

-C
ha

ir
Sa

ra
Be

rk
el

ey
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-5

A
pr

-1
4

A
pr

-1
6

0

3
M

r.
Fi

sh
ba

ug
h

D
av

id
Fr

em
on

t
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r S
co

tt 
Ha

gg
er

ty
, D

ist
ric

t 1
Ja

n-
14

Ja
n-

16
0

4
M

s.
G

ig
li

Lu
cy

A
la

m
ed

a
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r W
ilm

a 
C

ha
n,

 D
ist

ric
t 3

Ja
n-

07
O

ct
-1

2
O

ct
-1

4
1

5
M

r.
Jo

ha
ns

en
Je

re
m

y
Sa

n 
Le

an
d

ro
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-3

Se
p-

10
Se

p-
13

Se
p-

15
0

6
M

r.
Jo

rd
an

Pr
es

to
n

A
lb

an
y

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r K

ei
th

 C
ar

so
n,

 D
ist

ric
t 5

O
ct

-0
8

O
ct

-1
4

O
ct

-1
6

2

7
M

s.
M

ar
le

au
Kr

ist
i

D
ub

lin
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-1

D
ec

-1
4

D
ec

-1
6

0

8
M

r.
Sc

hw
en

g
Be

n
A

la
m

ed
a

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

ay
or

s' 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-2
Ju

n-
13

Ju
n-

15
1

9
M

s.
Sh

aw
D

ia
ne

Fr
em

on
t

Tr
an

sit
 A

ge
nc

y
(A

la
m

ed
a 

C
TC

)
A

pr
-1

4
A

pr
-1

6
0

10
M

r.
Tu

rn
er

M
at

t
C

as
tro

 V
al

le
y

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r N

at
e 

M
ile

y,
 D

ist
ric

t 4
A

pr
-1

4
A

pr
-1

6
1

11
Va

ca
nc

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r R
ic

ha
rd

 V
al

le
, D

ist
ric

t 2

R:
\A

laC
TC

_M
ee

tin
gs

\C
om

m
un

ity
_T

A
Cs

\B
PA

C\
Re

co
rd

s_
A

dm
in

\M
em

be
rs

\M
em

be
rR

os
te

r\
BP

A
C_

Ro
st

er
 a

nd
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

_F
Y

14
-1

5_
20

15
01

26

Page 145Page 145Page 145



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 146Page 146Page 146



 Alameda County Transportation Commission
Citizens Watchdog Committee
Roster - Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Title Last First City Appointed By Term Began Re-apptmt. Term Expires Mtgs Missed  
Since July '14*

1 Mr. Paxson, Chair James Pleasanton East Bay Economic Development Alliance Apr-01 N/A 0

2 Ms. Taylor, Vice Chair Deborah Oakland Alameda County
Supervisor Wilma Chan, D-3 Jan-13 Jan-15 1

3 Ms. Dorsey Cynthia Oakland Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-5 Jan-14 Jan-16 1

4 Ms. Hamlat Sandra Oakland Bike East Bay Apr-13 N/A 0

5 Mr. Hastings Herb Dublin Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee Jul-14 N/A 0

6 Ms. Hawley Miriam Berkeley League of Women Voters Apr-14 N/A 2

7 Mr. Jones Steven Dublin Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-1 Dec-12 Jan-15 Jan-17 0

8 Mr. Lester Brian Pleasanton Alameda County
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, D-1 Sep-13 Sep-15 4

9 Ms. Lew Jo Ann Union City Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-2 Oct-07 Sep-13 Sep-15 0

10 Mr. McCalley Murphy Castro Valley Alameda County
Supervisor Nate Miley, D-4 Feb-15 Feb-17 0

11 Mr. Naté Glenn Union City Alameda County
Supervisor Richard Valle, D-2 Jan-15 Jan-17 0

12 Ms. Piras Pat San Lorenzo Sierra Club Jan-15 Jan-17 0

13 Ms. Saunders Harriette Alameda Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-3 Jul-09 Jul-14 Jul-16 0

14 Mr. Tucknott Robert A. Pleasanton Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-4 Jun-14 Jun-16 1

15 Mr. Zukas Hale Berkeley Alameda County
Supervisor Keith Carson, D-5 Jun-09 May-14 May-16 2

7.2

Page 147Page 147Page 147



 Alameda County Transportation Commission
Citizens Watchdog Committee
Roster - Fiscal Year 2014-2015

16 Vacancy Alameda County Taxpayers Association

17 Vacancy Alameda Labor Council AFL-CIO

Page 148Page 148Page 148



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_
Minutes_20150223.docx 

 

 

Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, February 23, 2015, 1:00 p.m.  

MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 

_P_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_P_ Larry Bunn 

_P_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_P_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P Jonah Markowitz 

_P Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_A Suzanne Ortt 

_P Thomas Perez 

_P Sharon Powers 

_P Vanessa Proee 

 

_A Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 

_A Harriette 

Saunders 

_P Esther Waltz 

_P Hale Zukas

 

Staff:  

_P_ Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Terra Curtis, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Cathleen Sullivan, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Christina Ramos, Project Controls Team 

 

Guests:  

Nathaniel Arnold, ATU Local 192/Genesis; Elizabeth Brun, Taxi-Up & Go; 

Ken Bukowski, Public Member; Catherine Callahan, Center for 

Independent Living; Cliff Chambers, Mobility Planners; Shawn Fong, City 

of Fremont Paratransit Program; April Haley, Taxi-Up & Go; Mary 

McNamora, Senior Support Program of the Tri-Valley; Andreã Turner, City 

of Oakland Paratransit Program; Tyrone Gibbs, Taxi-Up & Go; Leah Talley, 

City of Berkeley Paratransit Program; Yvonne Williams, ATU Local 192; 

Quiana Jackson, ATU Local 192; Sandra Lee, ATU Local 192 

 

  

7.3

Page 149Page 149Page 149



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_
Minutes_20150223.docx 

 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Sylvia Stadmire, PAPCO Chair, called the meeting to order at 

1:10 p.m. and confirmed a quorum. The meeting began with 

introductions and a review of the meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

 

3. Administration 

 

3.1. January 26, 2015 PAPCO Meeting Minutes 

Jonah Markowitz moved to approve the January 26, 2015 PAPCO 

Meeting minutes as written. Sandra Johnson-Simon seconded the 

motion. The motion passed (13-0-1; Member Larry Bunn 

abstained). Members Larry Bunn, Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, 

Joyce Jacobson, Sandra Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, 

Carolyn Orr, Thomas Perez, Vanessa Proee, Michelle Rousey, Will 

Scott, Sylvia Stadmire, Esther Waltz, and Hale Zukas were present. 

 

4. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: Taxi-Up & Go Project 

Andreã Turner and April Haley gave a Gap Grant Cycle 5 program 

report on the Taxi-Up & Go project. They gave an overview of the 

programs’ service parameters, goals, ridership, and challenges. She 

also noted that volunteers and clients from their program are also in 

attendance at today’s meeting. This shows the range of people that 

the program is currently working with. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Do you have a breakdown of how may non-English speakers and 

languages you serve? I don’t have the exact breakdown but we 

serve Spanish, Tagalog, Vietnamese and Mandarin/Cantonese 

speaking communities.  

 Do you also train the volunteers and caregivers? Yes, we trained 

our volunteers and caregivers. Volunteers and caregivers have 

to comply with the federal guidelines to be a senior companion. 

Page 150Page 150Page 150



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_
Minutes_20150223.docx 

 

 

The additional training that they received included service and 

resource information. 

 What is the age range? The age range is generally 45 and 

above. 

 What are some of the reasons why some of your clients do not 

like to use taxis without help? Some clients are not comfortable 

accessing the service in their own language, are unfamiliar with 

where to go, having enough available funds for payment and 

possibly having physical disabilities that may make it difficult to 

board the taxi. Due to these barriers, the program will match up 

the client with a companion that can assist with these issues. 

 How do you know that these taxi drivers are going to be trained 

and responsible and how do you report an incident? The senior 

companions are trained to handle emergency situations while 

on the ride. The federal government also requires that all 

volunteers be fully insured. There are also set procedures for filing 

an incident and following up. 

 In the future, when you provide information on ridership can you 

include information on your target goal so that we can see your 

progress? Yes, we can provide that information in our next report. 

 Are any of your taxis wheelchair accessible? No, our taxis are not 

currently accessible.  

 What is monolingual? Monolingual individuals speak only one 

language, which is usually a language other than English. We 

have simple language cards for individuals who may need to 

communicate with drivers but are not able to do so. 

 

5. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

Jonah Markowitz announced that today is his 50th birthday. 

Committee members congratulated him. He also expressed concerns 

regarding East Bay Paratransit drivers using their cell phones while 

driving and the tightness of the seatbelt on one of his rides. 

 

Herb Hastings noted that he attended Alameda CTC’s public 

transportation forum in Dublin. 

 

Page 151Page 151Page 151



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_
Minutes_20150223.docx 

 

 

Esther Waltz also attended Alameda CTC’s public transportation 

forum in Dublin. She learned a lot of information about other modes of 

transportation. 

 

Shawn Costello noted that he was in the hospital last month for his 

procedure. While he was there he was doing some outreach about 

paratransit and PAPCO’s work. He also invited the mayor of Dublin to 

a future PAPCO meeting. 

 

Will Scott noted that a new AC Transit coach will be released very 

soon and members of the public will be asked for input. 

 

Hale Zukas noted that AC Transit will have a double decker bus on 

display this Wednesday. More information will be shared with the 

committee soon. 

 

6. Committee Reports (Verbal) 

 

6.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC) 

There was no East Bay Paratransit SRAC report. 

 

6.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 

There was no CWC report. 

 

7. ADA Mandated Program and Policy Reports 

PAPCO members were asked to review the information provided in 

their packets.  

 

8. Information Items 

 

8.1. Mobility Management – Integrating Services Across 

Transportation Modes (Introduction) 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the Integrating Services Across 

Transportation Modes attachment in the agenda packet. She 

noted that the full report is free and is available online at 

www.nationalcenterformobilitymanagement.org. She also 

noted that staff is continuing their local mobility management 

Page 152Page 152Page 152

http://www.nationalcenterformobilitymanagement.org/


 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_
Minutes_20150223.docx 

 

 

efforts and the Alameda County Travel Training Working Group 

just met recently. 

 

8.2. Outreach Update 

Krystle Pasco gave an update on the following outreach 

events: 

 2/4/15 – Transition Information Night, Fremont Teen Senior 

from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

 3/14/15 – Transition Information Faire, College of Alameda 

from 9:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

 3/17/15 – Transit Fair, Pleasanton Senior Center from 10:00 

a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 3/20/15 – USOAC Annual Convention, Ashland Community 

Center from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 

8.3. Other Staff Updates 

Naomi Armenta noted that the meeting’s handouts include 

information on preparing your taxes and other local and 

regional event information. 

 

9. Draft Agenda Items for March 23, 2015 PAPCO Meeting 

9.1. Convene Finance and Program Plan Review Subcommittees 

9.2. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Progress Reports Status 

9.3. East Bay Paratransit Report 

9.4. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: AC Transit New Freedom 

Match 

 

10. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 2:00 p.m. The next PAPCO meeting is 

scheduled for March 23, 2015 at Alameda CTC’s offices located at 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in Oakland. 

Page 153Page 153Page 153



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 154Page 154Page 154



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_201
50223.docx 

 

 

Joint Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
and Paratransit Technical Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, February 23, 2015, 2:10 p.m.  

 
MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 

_P_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_P_ Larry Bunn 

_P_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_P_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P Jonah Markowitz 

_P Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_A Suzanne Ortt 

_P Thomas Perez 

_P Sharon Powers 

_P Vanessa Proee 

 

_A Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 

_A Harriette 

Saunders 

_P Esther Waltz 

_P Hale Zukas 

 

 

 

ParaTAC Members: 

_A_ Rhianna Babka 

_P_ Dana Bailey 

_A_ Beverly Bolden 

_A_ Melinda Chinn 

_P_ Pam Deaton 

_P_ Shawn Fong 

_A_ Brad 

Helfenberger 

_A_ Karen Hemphill 

_A_ Drew King 

_A_ Jackie Krause 

_P_ Kadri Külm 

_A_ Isabelle Leduc 

_P_ Wilson Lee 

_P_ Hakeim McGee 

_A_ Cindy Montero 

_A_ Mallory Nestor 

_A_ Gail Payne 

_P_ Kim Ridgeway 

_A_ Mary Rowlands 

_P_ Leah Talley 

_P_ Laura Timothy 

_A_ Jonathan Torres 

_A_ David Zehnder 

 

Staff:  

_P_ Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Terra Curtis, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Cathleen Sullivan, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Christina Ramos, Alameda CTC Projects/Programs Team 

 

Guests:  

Page 155Page 155Page 155



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_201
50223.docx 

 

 

Nathaniel Arnold, ATU Local 192/Genesis; Elizabeth Brun, Taxi-Up & Go; 

Ken Bukowski, Public Member; Catherine Callahan, Center for 

Independent Living; Cliff Chambers, Mobility Planners; April Haley, Taxi-Up 

& Go; Mary McNamora, Senior Support Program of the Tri-Valley; Andreã 

Turner, City of Oakland Paratransit Program; Tyrone Gibbs, Taxi-Up & Go; 

Yvonne Williams, ATU Local 192; Quiana Jackson, ATU Local 192; Sandra 

Lee, ATU Local 192 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator, called the meeting to order 

at 2:10 p.m. and confirmed a quorum. The meeting began with 

introductions and a review of the meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

Shawn Costello made a comment regarding the floor of the 19th Street 

BART station street elevator. He also made a comment regarding 

bicyclists attending to their bikes while riding BART. 

 

3. Final Implementation Guidelines 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the final Implementation Guidelines. She 

went over the summary and background of the Implementation 

Guidelines as well as the proposed revisions and next steps. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO and ParaTAC members: 

 With the capital expenditures, will those be separate line items or 

a total expense? Staff noted that capital expenditures have not 

been requested frequently in the past but that may change with 

the Measure BB funding. Any request will be at least one line item 

on the programs’ budgets. If staff needs further breakdown of 

the items, then more information regarding the capital 

expenditures will be requested. 

 The City-based Specialized Accessible Van Service Guidelines in 

the Implementation Guidelines is inconsistent with the City of 

Berkeley’s program. The cost for some trips is actually higher than 

the ADA-mandated provider cost per trip because it functions 

more like a same day, emergency transportation option. Staff 

Page 156Page 156Page 156



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_201
50223.docx 

 

 

noted that since the average of all the trips is lower, Berkeley will 

still be considered in compliance with the Guidelines. However, 

this may warrant a change to the Guidelines for next year. 

 Members liked the language regarding the consumer deciding 

the importance of their trips. Can the schedulers still prioritize 

medical trips if they wanted to? Programs can propose 

prioritizing medical trips but they would need to check in with 

Alameda CTC staff beforehand just to verify that funding and 

capacity concerns are valid. 

 Proposed capital expenditures can be included in Program Plans 

without the prior approval of Alameda CTC staff. 

 

Esther Waltz moved to approve the final Implementation Guidelines as 

written. Herb Hastings seconded the motion. The motion passed (13-0-

1; Member Vanessa Proee abstained). Members Larry Bunn, Shawn 

Costello, Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra Johnson-Simon, 

Carolyn Orr, Thomas Perez, Sharon Powers, Vanessa Proee, Michelle 

Rousey, Will Scott, Sylvia Stadmire, Esther Waltz, and Hale Zukas were 

present. 

 

4. Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Discussion – Countywide Transit Plan 

Kara Vuicich and Cliff Chambers gave a presentation on the 

Countywide Transit Plan. They reviewed the plan’s relationship to other 

transportation plans, travel patterns, transit system characteristics, 

transit issues, needs, and opportunities for PAPCO input.  

 

Short comments and feedback from PAPCO and ParaTAC members: 

 Easier inter-county connections and transfers 

 Better coordinated trips on paratransit 

 One payment system for all transportation services including 

fixed route transit, ferries, shuttles, paratransit vehicles, etc. 

 Improved fare integration for discounts and transfers 

 Same day accessible transportation options 

 Expanded fixed route and paratransit service area 

 Improved elevator maintenance and BART station modernization 

 Improved on-call paratransit van service during elevator 

breakdown or maintenance 

Page 157Page 157Page 157



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_201
50223.docx 

 

 

 Increased transit service in suburban areas of the county i.e. 

Southern Alameda County 

 More focus on non-commute trips that may speak to a demand 

that centers more around senior and disabled transportation; 

cost analysis of same 

 Transportation network companies to consider accessible 

vehicles in their system 

 Reach out to local medical centers for funding opportunities and 

partnership 

 Real time public transportation information 

 Use of technology for travel training 

 General technological advances and access to transportation 

 Video relay translators available at fixed route stations 

 Improved ramp grading for wheelchair on- and off-boarding on 

buses 

 Increased space for wheelchairs, strollers and shopping carts on 

buses 

 Driver sensitivity, education and training (including dispatchers) 

 Bus infrastructure improvements 

 Improved signage and safety related to bicyclists on sidewalks  

 Improved bicycle education 

 Wheelchair access in bike lanes 

 

5. Information Items 

 

5.1. Member Announcements 

Kim Ridgeway shared information on the viewing of the double 

decker AC Transit bus as well as route information for the demo 

rides. 

 

5.2. Staff Updates 

There were no staff updates. 

 

6. Draft Agenda Items for April 27, 2015 Joint PAPCO/ParaTAC Meeting 

6.1. Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Discussion 

6.2. BART Fleet of the Future Presentation 

 

  

Page 158Page 158Page 158



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2015\20150323\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_201
50223.docx 

 

 

7. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. The next Joint PAPCO/ParaTAC 

meeting is scheduled for April 27, 2015 at Alameda CTC’s offices 

located at 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in Oakland. 

Page 159Page 159Page 159



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 160Page 160Page 160



Alameda County Transportation Commission
Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee

Roster - Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Title Last First City Appointed By Term 
Began Re-apptmt. Term 

Expires
Mtgs Missed 
Since July '14

1 Ms. Stadmire, Chair Sylvia J. Oakland Alameda County
Supervisor Wilma Chan, D-3 Sep-07 Jan-13 Jan-15 1

2 Mr. Scott, Vice Chair Will Oakland Alameda County
Supervisor Keith Carson, D-5 Mar-10 May-14 May-16 0

3 Mr. Bunn Larry Union City Union City Transit
Wilson Lee, Transit Manager Jun-06 Dec-13 Dec-15 5

4 Mr. Costello Shawn Dublin City of Dublin
 Mayor David Haubert Sep-08 May-14 May-16 1

5 Mr. Hastings Herb Dublin Alameda County
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, D-1 Mar-07 Jan-14 Jan-16 0

6 Ms. Jacobson Joyce Emeryville City of Emeryville
Mayor Ruth Atkin Mar-07 Jan-14 Jan-16 1

7 Ms. Johnson-Simon Sandra San Leandro Alameda County
Supervisor Nate Miley, D-4 Sep-10 Dec-13 Dec-15 0

8 Mr. Markowitz Jonah Berkeley City of Albany
Vice Mayor Peter Maass Dec-04 Oct-12 Oct-14 0

9 Rev. Orr Carolyn M. Oakland City of Oakland
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan Oct-05 Jan-14 Jan-16 3

10 Ms. Ortt Suzanne Union City City of Union City
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci Sep-12 Sep-14 2

11 Mr. Perez Thomas M. Fremont Alameda County
Supervisor Richard Valle, D-2 Feb-14 Feb-16 2

12 Ms. Powers Sharon Fremont City of Fremont
Mayor William Harrison Dec-07 Jan-14 Jan-16 1

Page 161Page 161Page 161



Alameda County Transportation Commission
Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee

Roster - Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Title Last First City Appointed By Term 
Began Re-apptmt. Term 

Expires
Mtgs Missed 
Since July '14

13 Ms. Proee Vanessa Hayward City of Hayward
Councilmember Marvin Peixoto Mar-10 Jan-14 Jan-16 2

14 Ms. Rivera-Hendrickson Carmen Pleasanton City of Pleasanton
Mayor Jerry Thorne Sep-09 Feb-14 Feb-16 5

15 Ms. Rousey Michelle Oakland BART
Director Tom Blalock May-10 Jan-14 Jan-16 0

16 Ms. Saunders Harriette Alameda City of Alameda
Mayor Trish Spencer Jun-08 Oct-12 Oct-14 1

17 Ms. Waltz Esther Ann Livermore LAVTA
Executive Director Michael Tree Feb-11 May-14 May-16 0

18 Mr. Zukas Hale Berkeley A. C. Transit
Director Elsa Ortiz Aug-02 Jan-14 Jan-16 0

19 Vacancy City of Berkeley
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli

20 Vacancy City of Livermore
Mayor John Marchand

21 Vacancy City of Newark
Councilmember Luis Freitas

22 Vacancy City of Piedmont
Mayor Margaret Fujioka

23 Vacancy City of San Leandro
Mayor Pauline Cutter

Page 162Page 162Page 162



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\8.1_Education_Outreach_Update\8.1_I580_EL_Education_Outreach_Update_2
0150413_final.doc 

 
 

  

Memorandum  8.1 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes Outreach and Education Update 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on I-580 Express Lanes Education and Outreach. 

 
Summary  
The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV)/Express 
Lane Projects along the I-580 corridor in the Tri-Valley. The new carpool~express lane 
facility will open on east- and westbound I-580 in fall 2015, providing a new incentive to 
carpool, a new choice for solo drivers, and enhanced mobility by reducing travel times and 
improving travel time reliability. The express lanes will utilize available HOV lane capacity by 
offering solo drivers the choice to pay a toll electronically to access the lanes, while 
carpoolers, vanpools and transit vehicles continue use the lanes at no cost. Currently there is 
one eastbound HOV lane open in this corridor. This lane will be converted to a 
carpool~express lane. This lane, plus an additional eastbound and one new westbound 
carpool~express lane will all open simultaneously this fall. 

Background 
A comprehensive, research-based education and outreach approach is underway to inform 
motorists about the benefits of the new lanes, how to use them, and how to obtain the 
required FasTrak and FasTrak Flex toll tags.  I-580 Express Lanes outreach and education is 
being implemented within the project area and the I-580 travel sheds, which also include San 
Joaquin, Stanislaus and Contra Costa Counties.  In September 2014, staff presented research 
findings and the process for integrating the results into activities that are now being 
implemented throughout the Tri-Valley and the commute shed. The education and outreach 
aims to ensure safe and proper use of the lanes, promote carpool and transit use along the 
corridor, a clear understanding of how enforcement works, and to support positive 
perception of the lanes to set the stage for successful future projects in the planned region-
wide Bay Area Express Lanes network. 
 
Education and Outreach Update Key Messages 

Staff has developed outreach materials and updated project webpage content focusing on 
the following clear messages: 

Page 163Page 163Page 163



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\8.1_Education_Outreach_Update\8.1_I580_EL_Education_Outreach_
Update_20150413_final.doc 

The I-580 Carpool~Express Lanes provide a smart, reliable choice for your commute along 
the 14-mile Tri-Valley corridor through Dublin, Pleasanton and Livermore. 

Solo Drivers 
A FasTrak transponder is required. You may use your existing FasTrak or the new FasTrak Flex, 
which will be available this summer at www.bayareafastrak.org 

Carpoolers (and others eligible to use carpool lanes) 
Two new carpool~express lanes are opening Fall 2015. A FasTrak Flex transponder is required 
for toll-free use of the lanes. Get your new Flex transponder beginning this summer at 
www.bayareafastrak.org 
 
Key Recent Activities 

 March 17 presentation to the Stanislaus Council of Governments staff 
 Monthly working meetings with MTC/BAIFA/BATA to coordinate development and 

implementation of consistent messages for Bay Area Express Lanes 
 Development of public outreach materials and project webpages 
 Coordination with corridor cities to place carpool~express lane signage on banners 

and in informational kiosks 
 Attendance at public outreach events  

 February 26: Dublin Business Expo 
 March 14-15: Dublin St. Patrick’s Day Celebration 
 March 24: Castro Valley Business Expo 
 April 11-12: Manteca Crossroads Street Faire 

 
Key Upcoming Activities 
 Attendance at public outreach events 

 April 18: Cinderella Classic Bike Race in Pleasanton  
 April 26: Stockton Earth Day Festival  
 May 2-3: Livermore Wine Festival 
 May 6:  Pleasanton’s First Wednesday Street Party 
 May 16: Tracy Farmers Market 
 May 21: Dublin Farmers Market 
 May 28: Livermore Farmers Market 

 
 Outreach to employers within commute shed  
 Placement of on-corridor signage and banners and informational posters in city kiosks 
 Coordination with 511.org and San Joaquin County’s employer-based Travel Demand 

Management program to include 580 Express Lane information on websites, through 
social media and e-newsletters   

 Finalize media outreach plan 
 Support MTC/BATA’s efforts to provide FasTrak Flex at retail locations throughout the I-

580 commute shed when the tag becomes available this summer and coordination to 

Page 164Page 164Page 164

http://www.bayareafastrak.org/
http://www.bayareafastrak.org/


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\8.1_Education_Outreach_Update\8.1_I580_EL_Education_Outreach_
Update_20150413_final.doc 

schedule Xerox to attend outreach events to supply FasTrak Flex directly to customers 
during outreach events August – October.  

 
Next Steps 
Staff will continue to bring outreach and education updates to the I-580 Express Lane Policy 
Committee and Commission throughout the coming year as staff plans and implements 
public education and outreach tasks to ensure the successful launch and post-launch use of 
the I-580 Express Lanes.  Topics will include: 

1. FasTrak transponder user education and marketing – June 2015 

2. Update on launch activities – September 2015 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this item. This is 
information only.  

Staff Contact 
Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 
Heather Barber, Communications Manager  

Page 165Page 165Page 165

mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org
mailto:hbarber@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 166Page 166Page 166



 
 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx 

 

Memorandum  9.1 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Legislative Update 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on state and federal legislative activities and 
approve legislative positions. 

 

Summary 

This memo provides an update on federal, state and local legislative activities including 
an update on the federal budget, federal transportation issues, legislative activities and 
policies at the state level, as well as an update on local legislative activities.   

Alameda CTC’s legislative program was approved in December 2014 establishing 
legislative priorities for 2015 and is included in summary format in Attachment A.  The 2015 
Legislative Program is divided into six sections: Transportation Funding, Project Delivery, 
Multi-Modal Transportation and Land Use, Climate Change, Goods Movement and 
Partnerships. The program was designed to be broad and flexible to allow Alameda CTC 
the opportunity to pursue legislative and administrative opportunities that may arise 
during the year, and to respond to political processes in Sacramento and Washington, 
DC.  Each month, staff brings updates to the Commission on legislative issues related to 
the adopted legislative program, including recommended positions on bills as well as 
legislative updates. 

Background 

Federal Update 

The following updates provide information on activities and issues at the federal level and 
include information contributed from Alameda CTC’s lobbyist team (CJ Lake/Len Simon). 

Highway Trust Fund: During the last full week of March, through a bi-partisan effort from 
members in the House Ways and Means Committee, a proposal was offered that would 
tie a gas tax increase to the rate of inflation while creating a bicameral committee to find 
a long-term funding solution for the Highway Trust Fund (HTF). 

Members are pressuring Congress to craft a bipartisan bill that would create a funding 
mechanism for the Highway Trust Fund or pay the political consequences of a gas tax 
increase. 

Page 167Page 167Page 167



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx  

 

 

The plan would index the 18.4 cents per gallon gas tax to inflation starting this year. The 
money generated over the next decade from that change would keep the HTF solvent. 
The bill would then create a bipartisan, bicameral commission to find a long-term solution 
to the trust fund’s ongoing problems. 

A bill is expected to be introduced soon after the April recess with co-sponsors mostly 
drawn from members of the Ways and Means Committee.  House leadership has 
continually been opposed to increasing the gas tax. However, the proposed legislation 
would increase the gas tax in a gradual way, allowing people to adjust to the new rates. 

Since 2008, Congress has transferred more than $64 billion into the HTF.  Although specific 
language has not been formally introduced, it is expected that the legislation will only be 
a short-term fix, keeping the HTF solvent through the end of the 114th Congress. 

Chairman of the House Ways and Means Committee, Paul Ryan (R-WI) said that he is 
working closely with Chairman Bill Shuster (R-PA) of the Transportation and Infrastructure 
Committee on a short-term funding fix for the Highway Trust Fund. Chairman Ryan is doing 
so to buy more time for the Ways and Means Committee to come up with an approach 
for business-centered tax reform that also provides a funding mechanism to replenish the 
Highway Trust Fund.   

Members of Congress have discussed a short-term extension to allow the Ways and 
Means Committee more time to finish drafting tax reform legislation. A short-term 
extension through September 30 would require about $3 billion in extra funds transferred 
into the HTF and an extension through December 31 would cost several billion more. The 
Budget Chairmen in both the House and Senate have indicated that they want any 
bailouts of the Highway Trust Fund offset with spending reductions or revenue increases 
elsewhere. 

State Update 

Recess: The state legislature went on recess for a week beginning at the end of March.  
When members reconvene on April 6th, there will be a series of legislative committee and 
budget deadline actions that will need to be met before June, including approval of a 
budget by June 15.   

The Governor will release his May revise by May 15, which will include two cap and trade 
auctions since his budget release in January.  

According to the LAO, the combined auction revenue for 2014-15 and 2015-16 will range 
from $3.3 billion to $7.7 billion, which is over twice the amount assumed in the Governor’s 
budget.  If the LAO’s mid-range estimate comes true then an extra $2 billion in Cap & 
Trade revenue could be available for programs in 2015-16.  Based on the existing 
expenditure plan, 60%, or $1.2 billion, would be allocated to the continuously 
appropriated programs, which include High Speed Rail, transit capital, transit operations, 

Page 168Page 168Page 168



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx  

 

and affordable housing & sustainable communities programs.  The remaining $800 million 
could be appropriated by the Legislature for existing or new funding programs. 

Legislation 

February 27 was the final date for bill introduction this year, and almost 3,000 separate 
pieces of legislation were introduced.  Staff is evaluating bills and bringing 
recommendations for Commission consideration throughout the spring and early summer.  
In May, staff will bring bills related to Cap and Trade as well as addition bills related to the 
Alameda CTC legislative platform. 

Recommended bill positions: 

AB 194 
(Frazier D)  
High-
occupancy 
toll lanes. 

AB 194 would authorize Caltrans or transportation entities to seek the 
approval of the CTC to build and operate express lanes, or convert an 
existing HOV lane into an express lane.  The bill would remove the 
limitations on the number of approved facilities and would delete the 
January 1, 2012, deadline for HOT lane applications. The bill would 
provide that each application is subject to the review and approval of 
the CTC. Before submitting an application to the commission, the bill 
would require a regional transportation agency to consult with a local 
transportation authority whose jurisdiction includes the facility that the 
regional transportation agency proposes to develop and operate 
pursuant to the above-described provisions. 

This bill would additionally authorize the department to apply to the 
commission to develop and operate HOT lanes and associated 
facilities pursuant to similar provisions. 

The bill allows Joint Powers Authorities, such as the Sunol JPA, to submit 
an application with consent of the MPO.  The author has noted that the 
bill will be amended to increase opportunities for agencies, such as 
other CMAs, to expand HOV/Express Lanes.  Alameda CTC’s legislative 
program supports HOV/toll lane expansion in Alameda County and the 
Bay Area; therefore, staff recommends a support position on this bill.   

Support 

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC 2015 Legislation Program 
Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Page 169Page 169Page 169

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20194');
http://asmdc.org/members/a11/
mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 170Page 170Page 170



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\PPLC\20150112\5.1_Legislation\5.1A_2015_Legislative_Platform_Table_20150105.docx 

2015 Alameda County Transportation Commission Legislative Program 
The legislative program herein supports Alameda CTC’s transportation vision below adopted in the 2012 Countywide Transportation Plan: 

“Alameda County will be served by a premier transportation system that supports a vibrant and livable Alameda County through a connected and integrated multimodal transportation 
system promoting sustainability, access, transit operations, public health and economic opportunities. Our vision recognizes the need to maintain and operate our existing transportation infrastructure 
and services while developing new investments that are targeted, effective, financially sound and supported by appropriate land uses. Mobility in Alameda County will be guided by transparent 
decision-making and measureable performance indicators. Our transportation system will be: Multimodal; Accessible, Affordable and Equitable for people of all ages, incomes, abilities and 
geographies; Integrated with land use patterns and local decision-making; Connected across the county, within and across the network of streets, highways and transit, bicycle and pedestrian routes; 
Reliable and Efficient; Cost Effective; Well Maintained; Safe; Supportive of a Healthy and Clean Environment.” 

(adopted December 2014) 

Issue Priority Strategy Concepts 

Transportation 
Funding 

Increase transportation funding 

 Support efforts to lower the two-thirds-voter threshold for voter-approved transportation measures. 
 Support increasing the buying power of the gas tax and/or increasing transportation revenues through vehicle license 

fees, vehicle miles traveled, or other reliable means. 
 Support efforts that protect against transportation funding diversions. 

Protect and enhance voter-approved funding 

 Support legislation and increased funding from new and/or flexible funding sources to Alameda County for operating, 
maintaining, restoring, and improving transportation infrastructure and operations. 

 Support increases in federal, state, and regional funding to expedite delivery of Alameda CTC projects and programs. 
 Support efforts that give priority funding to voter-approved measures and oppose those that negatively affect the ability 

to implement voter-approved measures. 
 Support efforts that streamline financing and delivery of transportation projects and programs. 
 Support rewarding Self-Help Counties and states that provide significant transportation funding into transportation systems. 
 Seek, acquire, and implement grants to advance project and program delivery. 

Project Delivery 
Advance innovative project delivery 

 Support environmental streamlining and expedited project delivery. 
 Support contracting flexibility and innovative project delivery methods. 
 Support high-occupancy vehicle/toll lane expansion in Alameda County and the Bay Area, implementation of AB 1811, 

and efforts that promote effective implementation. 
 Support efforts to allow local agencies to advertise, award, and administer state highway system contracts largely funded  

by local agencies. 

Ensure cost-effective project delivery 
 Support efforts that reduce project and program implementation costs. 
 Support accelerating funding and policies to implement transportation projects that create jobs and economic growth. 

Multimodal 
Transportation and 
Land Use 

Reduce barriers to the implementation of 
transportation and land use investments 

 Support legislation that increases flexibility and reduces technical and funding barriers to investments linking 
transportation, housing, and jobs. 

 Support local flexibility and decision-making on land-use for transit oriented development (TOD) and priority development 
areas (PDAs). 

 Support innovative financing opportunities to fund TOD and PDA implementation. 

Expand multimodal systems and flexibility 

 Support policies that provide increased flexibility for transportation service delivery through innovative, flexible programs  
that address the needs of commuters, youth, seniors, people with disabilities and low-income people and do not create 
unfunded mandates. 

 Support investments in transportation for transit-dependent communities that provide enhanced access to goods, 
services, jobs, and education. 

 Support parity in pre-tax fringe benefits for public transit/vanpooling and parking. 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA  94607 
510.208.7400 

www.AlamedaCTC.org  

 
9.1A

Page 171Page 171Page 171



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\PPLC\20150112\5.1_Legislation\5.1A_2015_Legislative_Platform_Table_20150105.docx 

Issue Priority Strategy Concepts 

Climate Change Support climate change legislation to reduce 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 

 Support funding for innovative infrastructure, operations, and programs that relieve congestion, improve air quality, 
reduce emissions, and support economic development. 

 Support cap-and-trade funds to implement the Bay Area’s Sustainable Communities Strategy. 
 Support rewarding Self-Help Counties with cap-and-trade funds for projects and programs that are partially locally funded 

and reduce GHG emissions. 
 Support emerging technologies such as alternative fuels and fueling technology to reduce GHG emissions. 

Goods Movement Expand goods movement funding and policy 
development 

 Support goods movement efforts that enhance the economy, local communities, and the environment, and  
reduce impacts. 

 Support a designated funding stream for goods movement.  
 Support goods movement policies that enhance Bay Area goods movement planning, funding, delivery,  

and advocacy. 
 Ensure that Bay Area transportation systems are included in and prioritized in state and federal planning and  

funding processes. 

Partnerships Expand partnerships at the local, regional, state 
and federal levels 

 Support efforts that encourage regional cooperation and coordination to develop, promote, and fund solutions to 
regional transportation problems and support governmental efficiencies and cost savings in transportation. 

 Support policy development to influence transportation planning, policy, and funding at the county, regional, state, and 
federal levels. 

 Support efforts to maintain and expand local-, women-, minority- and small-business participation in competing  
for contracts. 

 

Page 172Page 172Page 172



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\10.1_City of Oakland MeasureBB Request for Funds\10.1_City of Oakland 
Request for Measure BB funds_R2.docx  

 
 

Memorandum 10.1 

 

DATE: April 16, 2015 

SUBJECT: Report on Coordination with the City of Oakland on its Prior Request for 
$39.2 Million of Measure BB Funds  

  

Summary   

The passage of Measure BB in November 2014 will result in the collection of a new 
countywide sales tax effective April 1, 2015.  On March 26, 2015, the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission approved a FY 15-16 Measure BB 2-Year Allocation Plan 
representing the initial allocations of Measure BB funding for certain projects and 
programs included in the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP). 

During the same meeting and prior to the Commission approval of the Measure BB 2-Year 
Allocation Plan, the Commission discussed a letter from the City of Oakland, dated March 
24, 2015, (Attachment A) that was provided to the Commission at the meeting requesting 
approval of $39.2 million for three projects in addition to those identified in the FY 15-16 
Measure BB 2-Year Allocation Plan.  A staff response letter to the City of Oakland’s 
request was also submitted to the Commission (Attachment B).   

The Commission took action directing staff to bring both letters to the Alameda County 
Technical Advisory Committee (ACTAC) and through the Alameda CTC Programs and 
Projects Committee (PPC) for discussion and a recommendation to the Commission at its 
April meeting.   

Based upon discussions with the City of Oakland and Port of Oakland, they will follow the 
same process as all other projects to submit project requests in June 2015, as described in 
further detail below. This item is for information only. 

Discussion 

Per direction of the Commission, the City of Oakland’s letter and the Alameda CTC 
response letter were included in agendas for the April 9, 2015 ACTAC and April 13, 2015, 
PPC meetings for discussion/action.   

On April 8, 2015, Alameda CTC met with the City of Oakland and Port of Oakland to fully 
discuss the funding request and project details included in the City of Oakland request 
letter.  After a detailed discussion about the Oakland Army Base project, the 7th Street 

Page 173



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150423\10.1_City of Oakland MeasureBB Request for Funds\10.1_City of Oakland 
Request for Measure BB funds_R2.docx  

 

 

Grade separation and the Coliseum BART area projects, both the City and Port agreed 
that they will be able to submit project requests within the timeframe of the Alameda CTC 
schedule, which includes a request for projects in June 2015.   

In addition, because of the importance of the Oakland Army Base project to goods 
movement in Alameda County, the Bay Area and the nation, Alameda CTC will work 
closely with both the City and Port on their projects to facilitate development of project 
information that Alameda CTC needs to support project implementation over time.  Funds 
are programmed in the 2014 TEP for the projects and Alameda CTC will receive 
applications this summer to identify the timing of future allocation actions.  Alameda CTC 
will work with all project sponsors to support project development through construction. 

On April 9 and 13, 2015, this information was presented to both ACTAC and the 
Commission’s Programs and Projects Committee, respectively, and no action was taken.   

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments  

A. City of Oakland Letter Requesting $39.2 Million in Measure BB funds 
B. Alameda CTC staff response to City of Oakland letter 

 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

 

Page 174

mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org
mailto:jobrien@alamedactc.org


10.1A

Page 175Page 175Page 175



Page 176Page 176Page 176



10.1B

Page 177Page 177Page 177



Page 178Page 178Page 178


	Commission_Meeting_Notice
	hyperlinked_Commission_Agenda_20150423
	Commission_Packet_20140423
	6.1_Combo
	6.2_Combo
	6.3_Combo
	6.3_I580_HOV_EL_Update
	6.3A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate
	6.3B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	6.3C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	6.3D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	6.3E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate
	6.3F_I580CorridorProjects_LocationMap
	6.3G_I580Express_LocationMap

	6.4_Combo
	6.4_EnvironmentalDocReview
	6.4A_Attachment A_TracyHillsSpecificPlan_DSEIR_031015_Signed

	6.5_Combo
	6.5_CTC_Meeting_Summary
	6.5_Attachment_A_CTCSummaryItem-revised

	6.6_Combo
	6.7_Combo
	6.8_Combo
	6.8_MeasureBB_Affordable_Student_Transit_Pass_Program_20150413_rv1
	6.8A_Particpants_Stakeholder_Attendees_Meetings_Jan_March

	6.9_Combo
	6.9_TFCA_Guidelines_memo_PPC_20150413_final
	6.9A_ACTC_Draft_FY1516_TFCA_CPM_Guidelines
	6.9B_Air_District_FYE2016_TFCA_CPM_Policies
	6.9C_ACTC_FY2015-16_TFCA_Draft_FE

	6.10_Combo
	6.10_I-580EL_CT_Coop_Amends-final
	6.10A_I-580EL_CT_Coop_Amends_04-2440-A3_Draft
	6.10B_I-580EL_CT_Coop_Amends_04-2396-A4_Draft

	6.11_Combo
	6.12_Combo
	6.12_Webster_NoticeOfCompletion_Reso_2015331
	6.12A_Webster_Resolution_20150401

	6.13_Combo
	6.13_Administrative_Amendments final
	6.13A_Administrative_Amendments_Sum

	6.14_Combo
	6.15_Combo
	6.15_HRA_Plan_Amendment_Staff_Report
	6.15A_HRA_Draft_Amendment_Effective_1-1-15_Attachment_A
	ARTICLE I.  ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF THE PLAN
	ARTICLE II.  DEFINITIONS
	ARTICLE III.  ELIGIBILITY, PARTICIPATION, AND COVERAGE
	ARTICLE IV.  VESTING AND BENEFITS
	ARTICLE V.  BENEFIT FUNDING
	ARTICLE VI.  ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN
	ARTICLE VII.  AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE PLAN
	ARTICLE VIII.  GENERAL PROVISIONS

	6.15B_Resolution_15-017_VLFINAL_20150406

	6.16_Combo
	Professional Experience
	Education

	7.1_Combo
	7.2_Combo
	7.3-Combo
	8.1_Combo
	9.1_Combo
	9.1_LegislativeUpdate
	9.1A_2015_Legislative_Platform_Table_20150105

	10.1_Combo
	10.1_City of Oakland Request for Measure BB funds_R2
	10.1A_City of Oakland Letter_Schaff Kaplan ACTC letter 3 24 15
	10.1B_AlaCTC_ResponseLetter_City-of-Oakland_20150325




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




